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NREFR

Corporate Information

LEGAL NAME OF THE COMPANY
Want Want China Holdings Limited

PLACE OF LISTING AND TRADING CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock code: 0151
Guaranteed Bonds: 5446 (WANT WANT B2204)

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung
(re-designated as an executive Director on 1 July 2019)
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia (Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung (Chief Marketing Officer)
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui
Ms. Lai Hong Yee

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Maki Haruo
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Toh David Ka Hock

Dr. Pei Kerwei

Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou (passed away on 19 June 2019)
Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen

Mr. Lee Kwok Ming

Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang (appointed on 21 August 2019)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Lai Hong Yee
AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Toh David Ka Hock (Chairman)

Dr. Pei Kerwei

Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou (passed away on 19 June 2019)
Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen

Mr. Lee Kwok Ming

Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang (appointed on 21 August 2019)
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Corporate Information
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Corporate Information

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Chu Chi-Wen
Ms. Lai Hong Yee

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Principal

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586
Grand Cayman, KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Maples Corporate Services Limited
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND
ADDRESS OF HEADQUARTERS

Unit 918, 9/F, Mira Place Tower A
132 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

400 Orchard Road
#17-05 Orchard Towers
Singapore 238875
WEBSITE

www.want-want.com
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4 2019/2020% # | ANNUAL REPORT

EERE

REXFTE
REEzt

RiBRERLE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586
Grand Cayman, KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

EBDE

EBPRFSFELAMRAA
58

EMBPITIE1712-17169E 58
M EE

Maples Corporate Services Limited
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman lIslands

TEEXMERERLL
BEENERDBHEIGE 1325
EEEESARIEIISE
400 Orchard Road

#17-05 Orchard Towers
Singapore 238875

#Huk

www.want-want.com

g {2313

O




9 B BEBE =R B PR/ R Want Want China Holdings Limited

HISTORY AND DEVELOPMENT

1962

1983

1989

1992

1996

2007

2008

2009

2011

2013

2019

| Lan Foods Industrial Co., Ltd. was established in May 1962,
which manufactured canned agricultural products mainly for
export.

In 1983, we collaborated with Iwatsuka Confectionery Co., Ltd.
(“ICCL”), one of the leading Japanese rice cracker producers, to
jointly develop the rice cracker market in Taiwan region. Since
1983, we have been producing and marketing our products under
the “Want Want” brand.

We introduced the “Want Want” brand in the Chinese mainland in
1989.

We ventured into the Chinese mainland and established our first
subsidiary in Hunan province in the Chinese mainland in 1992. In
the following years, we grew from a pure rice cracker company to
a diversified food and beverages company.

In May 1996, Want Want Holdings Ltd. (“WWHL?”), our subsidiary,
was listed on the Main Board of Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) and subsequently diversified into the
hospital, hotel and property businesses and other investments.

WWHL delisted from SGX-ST in September 2007 and conducted
a group restructuring which involved (i) the incorporation of Want
Want China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) as the new holding
company of our core operations related to the food and beverages
businesses; (ii) the divestment and transfer of the hospital, hotel
and property businesses and other investments to San Want
Holdings Limited (“San Want”) on 31 December 2007, and the
interests in San Want were distributed to the then shareholders of
WWHL by way of dividend in specie.

Our Company was listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “HK Stock Exchange”) on 26 March 2008 (the
“Listing”). In the same year, we were selected as a constituent
of the Hang Seng Mainland Composite Index and the Morgan
Stanley Capital International China Index.

Our Taiwan Depositary Receipts (“TDRs”) were listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation (“TWSE”) on 28 April 2009.

Our Company was selected as a constituent stock of the Hang
Seng Index in Hong Kong on 5 December 2011.

On 15 October 2013, our TDRs were voluntarily withdrawn from
listing on the TWSE.

Our Company was selected as a constituent stock of the Hang
Seng China Enterprises Index.

NAEN
Corporate Profile
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NAEEN
Corporate Profile

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Want Want”, “We” or the “Group”) are the manufacturing,
distribution and sale of rice crackers, dairy products and beverages, snack
foods and other products.

KEY MARKETS

Most of our operations are located in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), which is one of the fastest growing economies in the world. We
have an extensive nationwide sales and distribution network throughout
the PRC. We also export our products to other markets, including North
America, East Asia, South East Asia and Europe.

6 2019/20205F %R | ANNUAL REPORT
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Corporate Culture

HHERERZDHEBRESHS

Want Want Family Day Activities & Fun Games
IREEEET c PEESTREBMNERBBEIN
RUADXEBK SRR AIRMBRENLESE BB
HEREHZTBRTET - BB TEEEERR] - HE
EIZXBNERR  REHBRANERERR RALHE
MR - AIRREERE EMRHEE o

To enhance the two-way communication and interaction
between the Company and its employees and between
the Company and family members of its employees, to
foster a harmonious relationship among team members
of the Company, and to create a corporate culture
of harmonious development. Want Want Family Day
activities were organized to demonstrate the work
performance and achievements of employees and teams.
This also arose a sense of pride among employees’ family
members, brought about the understanding and support
of relatives, enhanced the corporate cultural image, and
created a healthy and positive corporate culture.

8 2019/20205 % | ANNUAL REPORT
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Want Want Year Festivals
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i

Every year, the Group organizes traditional Chinese
festive activities during the Lantern Festival, Dragon
Boat Festival and Mid-Autumn Festival as a way to build
colleagues’ team spirits and enhance their sense of
belongings. Family members of employees are invited
to participate so that employees and their families can
experience the cultural philosophy of “Want Want is a big
family”.
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Corporate Culture

[FLBEHE | HBROFRE

“Don’t Forget Our Original Aspiration
and Sing for Want Want” Corporate
Song and Slogan Competition

KERE& - BF AESINEEES  BE[EG0A
R-E&H BEINER - AIRE TNEHEEHRED -
00 BAREREEE - SR REER AT B
RERE | ASE KBRS ©

The Group adheres to the business philosophy of “People-
Oriented, Self-Confidence and Unity” and insists on
achieving the goal of “Undivided Commitment, Harmony,
Joint-Efforts and Cooperation”. In order to strengthen
the cohesion and centripetal force of employees and
distributors, and to boost the spirit of the Group, we
specially planned and held the “Don’t Forget Our Original
Aspiration and Sing for Want Want” corporate song and
slogan competition.
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FEE FEE A5 4
Spirit of Want Want

MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY:

10

People Oriented

Hot-Kid's round head shape signify “congenial”
The head seems to have just been washed,
but the hair is not dry, so it is known as holding
the hair. “Hair holding” comes from <Zhou
Gong Quotation>: “three times hair holding
in one shower and, three times spiting in one
meal. Just fear to lose the talented people in
the world.” So “Hair holding” also implies the
eagerness to attract talented people.

Message from the Chairman: we believe
excellent employer-employee cohesion fosters
long-lasting harmony and progress. Equally
important is a strong management cadre.
Hot-Kid's crown of spiky hair symbolizes our
eagerness to embrace new talents. We deeply
value relationships and talents.

MANAGEMENT GOALS:
Elite Dragons of the World

S
e

Hot-Kid’s open arms reflect that WANT WANT
is a big united family which brings together
outstanding talents from all over the world.
With the development and expansion of our
businesses, the Giant Dragon of the World is
born.

United with People of
Common Aspirations

Hot-Kid’s right arm denotes a helping hand.
Corporate advancement is the product of the
intricate interplay among management talents,
skills, capital funds and markets. As we strive
to achieve our corporate vision of becoming
the "Elite Dragons of the World", our doors are
always open to people of common aspirations
sharing our ideals.

Self Confidence

-

Confidence comes from good preparation.
Hot-Kid’s smiling countenance reflects our
belief in preparedness and the confidence
that glows with it. Heart-shaped tongue of the
Hot-Kid represents our sincere heart to the
Group: Be faithful to the leaders, be kind to the
subordinates, and be sincere to our customers.
This effort would definitely enhance our
performances!

High Margins,
Great Success

Hot-Kid’s upward-looking eyes point to where
our management sights are set - the skies. We
aim high and achieve far. Only through prudent
management and judicious foresight, will our
enterprise progress with sustainable profits.
Preparedness also prevents any unwanted
events. With good yields, our shareholders and
employees will share the fruits of our success.

2019/20205 % | ANNUAL REPORT

Hot-Kid’s open arms reflect our team spirit.
His welcoming left arm denotes our unity. We
believe with the right strategies and concerted
efforts, victory is already half won. Even with
less-than-expected performances, our collective
efforts will ensure minimal deviations.

Successful Business
Ventures

A~ 4

Hot-Kid’s roll-up sleeves and pants imply
embracing our future with hard work. To realize
our goal of becoming the "Elite Dragons of
the World", we will undertake new ventures
periodically. Every employee should exert
themselves to ensure tasks are successfully
accomplished.

Prosperity for the Group
and the Individuals

Hot-Kid’'s bare feet symbolize our unwavering
pragmatism. To garner customer support and
recognition, a company needs to conduct its

business honestly and earnestly. To win our
customers’ and associates’ support, every
employee should be conscientious and down-
to-earth when dealing with them.Consequently,
a company will prosper and likewise its
employees.
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Spirit of Want Want
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R RE
Elite Dragon of the World

As at 31 March 2020:
Chinese mainland: around 9,000 wholesalers, 424 sales offices, 35 production bases and 84 factories

2020538318 -
FRERA : #99,000 B 4857 - A24R & 2FT - 35ELEEE M - 84K Tk
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MBRE
Financial Highlights
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MBBE

Financial Summary

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Fena®
Fifteen months
ended 31
March 2018
Year ended 31 December BZ0185E Year ended 31 March
BE2AALEFE 3B31A L BZ3A3IALEE
2015 2016 TafEA 2019 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETR ARBT ARBTR ARETR
(Restated) (Restated)
(&E51) (fEE5)
Revenue g 21,389,320 19,710,128 24,705,513 20,712,027 20,094,531
Profit before income tax BRFTS BRI R 4,797,083 4,895,848 5,322,733 4,806,321 5,048,789
Income tax expense FEHER (1417,734)  (1,378473)  (1,468,445)  (1,343,750)  (1,412,546)
Profit for the year/period FE/BRFE 3,379,349 3,517,375 3,854,288 3,462,571 3,636,243
Profit attributable to: FEAEFIE
Equity holders of the Company KAARREEA 3,382,526 3,519,168 3,862,603 3,476,599 3,649,215
Non-controlling interests FEBIMER (3,177) (1,793) (8,315) (14,028) (12,972)
Dividends RE 1,549,137 1,524,314 2,473,233 2,877,682 3,649,215
RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents
AREBS ARBS AREBD ARBS ARBD AR%S
(Restated)
(EE5)
Earnings per share BREF
Basic B-ViN 25.82 27.70 30.90 24.93 27.93 29.38
Diluted BE 25.82 27.70 30.90 24.93 27.93 29.38

14 2019/2020% %k | ANNUAL REPORT
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MBHRE

Financial Summary

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

FeEEARER
As at 31 December As at 31 March
W12A31H RM3A31H
2015 2016 2018 2019 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT AR¥Tr AR®ETxR ARETR
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(=E50) (E5) (EE5)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE 10,842,577 10,308,135 9,330,069 8,649,036 8,218,962
Current assets RENEE 13,873,185 16,901,072 17,353,034 21225369 21,606,028
Total assets HERE 24715762 27,209,207 26,683,103 29,874,405 29,824,990
EQUITY R
Total equity BREG 12,168,280 12,320,923 14,610,900  15/459,827 15,354,214
LIABILITIES &%
Non-current liabilities I A= 6,755,682 6,116,287 3,343,251 8,116,043 8,649,259
Current liabilities RBaE 5,791,800 8,771,997 8,728,952 6,298,535 5,821,517
Total liabilities BeE 12,547,482 14,888,284 12,072,203  14,414578 14,470,776
Total equity and liabilities BEEREE 24715762 27,209,207 26,683,103 29,874,405 29,824,990

2019/2020% ¥, | ANNUAL REPORT 15
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ERW|E

Chairman’s Statement

Dear shareholders:

The COVID-19 pandemic, which occurred in early 2020, has caused global
disruption and has, indeed, affected some of our original planning. While
doing our best at undertaking different precautions, our employees and we
were also committed to fulfil our corporate social responsibility by donating
various pandemic prevention supplies and products of the Company and
provide our utmost supports to our customers and suppliers during this
difficult time. With the help of different levels of government, we endeavored
to gradually resume the operation of all our production facilities and offices
in March 2020. | hereby express my heartfelt thanks to all who joined in
the effort and, using this opportunity, | would once again like to show my
greatest respect to all frontline personnel who have been fighting against
the virus.

Due to the adverse impact caused by the pandemic on the fourth quarter
of 2019FY, revenue in the 2019FY decreased by 3.0% to RMB20,094.5
million as compared with that of 2018FY. Benefiting from the product-
mix optimisation and the decrease in cost of certain raw materials, our
gross profit margin nevertheless grew from 45.4% in 2018FY to 48.0%.
Operating profit also increased by 4.8% as compared with that of 2018FY
to RMB4,805.9 million. Lastly, net profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company was RMB3,649.2 million, representing a 5.0% increase over that
of 2018FY.

To cope with the ever-changing market and to serve more consumer
groups, we established a new branding business team called “Shi Ji Yan” (&
) in 2019, in an attempt to explore a more diversified marketing practice
to cater for more young consumer groups outside our existing business
model. In addition, our sales entity in Vietnam also commenced operation
in 2019, with several other sales entities in Southeast Asia scheduled to
begin their operations gradually during 2020. We expect overseas markets
to become another growth engine for Want Want in the future. Furthermore,
targeting at specific consumer groups, we launched a series of products
under different brands including “Prime of Love” ( B & & ) (which targets
at the middle-aged and the elderly), “Fix Body” (a brand for fitness lovers
and beauty enthusiasts), and the “Baby Mum-Mum” ( B tb3535 ) series for
new parents. | believe these distinctive Want Want products will bring lots of
excitement and delight the taste buds of our consumers in the years ahead.
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Chairman’s Statement

The COVID-19 pandemic has underscored the importance of multiple BEREETPEMEER THZREREN
channels and digital platforms. It has also created many market opportunities EFEENEE RARKEZETHZTER
that are waiting for us to explore. At a time filled with uncertainties, we learn BESGRMEFR - EEEZRTHEEN
more about ourselves and make the very most of our potentials. | requested BAT RMARSIEEC  EmBs
our management to regard the year of 2020 as a “year of learning”. Only by EBC  c REREHEEEIL 2020 FEX
remaining humble and continuing to learn new knowledge and new ideas at AIBEF| HESHEATHiRES
every moment could Want Want keep progressing forward steadfastly in the BEH > TEEEETEEBES DHREHE

face of different hardships and challenges ahead of us and to grow with our hEHESZERL RE@A] - W HEEK

customers, and to keep abreast with new development! MHEF—REEBFAER & HEEFHEE !
Tsai Eng-Meng AT

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer EFETERITEHAER

16 June 2020 2020 %6 H 16 H
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Major Awards and Recognition
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The Group has been listed in the "Taiwan
Top 20 International Brands”™ for 11
consecutive years

The list of "Taiwan international brand value 2019" was
released on 24 October 2019. Want Want continued to
rank third and has won awards for 11 consecutive years,
with a growth in the brand value by 5%.
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Want Want won the China Food Health
Seven Star Award Again

The opening ceremony of the 8th China Food Health
Seven Star Awards was held in Beijing on 18 April 2019.
Want Want won the “Annual Seven Star Award” and has
won the China Food Health Seven Star Award for five
consecutive years.
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Hot - Kid Baby Mum - Mum original
flavour rice rusks won the Gold Quality
Award of Monde Selection

In May 2019, Hot — Kid Baby Mum — Mum Rice Rusks
(Original Flavor) won the 2019 Monde Selection Gold
Quality Award. Baby Mum — Mum won the gold medal
of Monde Selection again, which is an evidence of Want
Want's quality assurance.

' MONDE SELECTION"
Imtminational Quality institute Since 1061
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Hot-Kid Baby Mum-4um Rice Rusks (Onginal Flavous|
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“Tian She Mi Shao”
(HZXK¥H%) won the
New Consumption
Innovation Product
Award at the 2019
Global Food &

Beverage Innovation

Conference (FBIC) @

On 11 April 2019, in I See! fil WAK !
the 2019 Global Food e

& Beverage Innovation
Conference held in
Shanghai, Want Want “Tian
She Mi Shao” (H& X&)
won the best snack award

e

of "New Consumption
Innovation Product Award" FOODAILY
over 150 competing : FBIC 2019
products with a popularity

of more than 35,000 votes.

FERBRKE

Major Awards and Recognition
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Want Want
won two silver
awards in the
11th Golden
Mouse Digital
Marketing
Contest

The marketing and
promotion activities
for Want Want
“Dongchi” (BRHI) won
the Video Integrated
Marketing Silver
Award and the single
“Be One” (AMA—)
by Hot-Kid from 56
ethnic groups won
the Social Marketing
Silver Award.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Overview of key points of the report

Reporting Scope

During the reporting period, more than 90% of the Group’s revenue and
businesses were generated and conducted in the Chinese mainland, so
this report sets out the data and information generated in the Chinese
mainland exclusively. The reporting period refers to the period from 1 April
2019 to 31 March 2020 (“reporting period” or “2019FY”).

References

The report was prepared in accordance with the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” (‘ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out
in Appendix 27 to the “Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited” issued by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx”) and with reference to the “Sustainability
Reporting Standards” issued by Global Reporting Initiative (“GRI”). During
the reporting period, we acted in accordance with the “comply or explain”
provisions in the “ESG Reporting Guide”.
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About products

= 100%

IMEEIER

Pass rate of external inspections

I N RIS

The Group possesses 2,457
trademarks in the Chinese
mainland.

2,457 +
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Complaint resolution rate
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of finished goods
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About environment

2016F3A
Since 2016

BETR M RIR F+ (3 EE 20155 ) (compared with 2015)
Energy efficiency increased by 17.97%

A 17 97 B REHER
% equivalent to saving

----------------- 30,900 tonnes of
standard coal

= " /30,900

RERIMBUERFTIRA

Cumulative investment in upgrading

9> ] BEBZ AR BBR/A ) Want Want China Holdings Limited

RiE - HERERERS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

KERR AMERIEF (820155 ) (compared with 2015)

Utilisation efficiency of water resources increased
by 20.48%

A 20 48 IHEREHAE
% equivalent to saving
------------------ 1,920,000 tonnes of
- - water

environmental protection technologies 1 9 8 -
was RMB198 million = BARYE

BRRMBEERA

RMB5 million was devoted
in upgrading environmental
protection technologies

E FIFSCLL K SFIZR M8 RRAE
e

The Group used 3.5 billion cartons certified by
the Forest Stewardship Council ("FSC") and the
Sustainable Forestry Initiative ("SFI")
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Reducing carbon dioxide emission by about
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

I. The prevention and control mechanism and

measures for COVID-19 and social assistance

At the beginning of 2020, COVID-19 spread across the country. The Group
actively took up corporate social responsibilities and tided over hardship
with people of the country, worked with joint efforts to fight against
COVID-19. After the outbreak of pandemic, the Group actively donated
Water God sanitizing products and other Want Want’s products to relevant
institutions across the country. At the same time, in order to protect health
and safety of employees, all departments established leadership teams for
pandemic prevention and control and prepared emergency plan to combat
the pandemic. A defense line against COVID-19 was established through
the concerted effort from management to employees.

While preventing and help controlling the pandemic, the Group promoted
the resumption of work and production in an orderly manner according
to government requests. The company stayed committed to fully resume
production and supply, and ensure product quality and safety and maintain
stable market price. By adhering to the three guarantee principle of “quality
guarantee, price guarantee, and supply guarantee” after work resumption,
the Group contributed to the protection of people’s health and consumers’
rights with practical actions. In the face of pandemic outbreak, Want Want
fulfilled corporate responsibility through actions.

1. Measures and mechanisms protecting employees

during pandemic

In order to effectively respond to the impact caused by the outbreak of
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group prepared 3 employee services items,
7 management mechanisms, and 4 new management concepts based
on the actual situation, combatting pandemic impact. These measures
were formulated in compliance with government notices and guidelines to
protect health and life of employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

“‘Pandemic
prevention and

advocacy”
[FhEEE

“Work
resumption
mechanism”

[ 18 THH

“Prevention
and control
mechanism’

[ Br A=t

H

PrEAEES | ZHREIARE | ETREEE
Disseminating information of pandemic prevention | Adjustment of attendance
mechanism | Safeguarding employees’ health

o 3 2 T AR5 T 0wk
Knowledge on the COVID-19

e HATKREMEASHITERPLD
Working from home is implemented on personnel
who traveled through Wuhan

o KA BREIREE

Distribution of “Water God” sanitizing products

AR 03RIR

FERHKETRE | BrERRESIFIE | BEROKS | &
BIhENRES | E TRRMERIEEN
Adjustment of Spring Festival holiday and work resumption | Protection and

quarantine mechanism | Flexible working time and place mechanism | Continuous
protection knowledge | Employees health protection and condition tracking

o SERFEIRER
Spring Festival holiday was extended
o SHEARFARETE L WinF B
Work resumption day adjusted AkAhAES : ey
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according to local government policies )
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Formulated Want Want Protection Manual

s ETHHREITF

Daily health record of employees

ZEHHGIAR | ETREEN | 518 EYIHE

Adjusted attendance mechanism | Employee health tracking | Staggered rush hour mechanism

e ETEMERELR AR I AT
Wechat daily report on health Shanghai Office|  Factories Branches
condition
AN gy Repfcigrjt:?é:ﬁalth B TR A%

© i%ﬁﬁ%g@% %ﬂ - Employees report health conditions daily
Mobile Clock in on WeChat ~ ~ ~

BBZH/ | BEEY/ | BEEW

o ANEIERERIE S 255 JZEEI N JEES N BXMA
Staff number control for Attendance Mobile Flexible Flexible
staggering rush hour Method attendance / | attendance/ | attendance /

home office home office home office

fnslE PG | gEs s ReR SR EH
Shift-duty  |Off-duty by shift % RERATRARHT
BIEEEIE F I In accordance with local
ﬁﬁtﬂﬂg%“ Off ;eak regulations and Shanghai Office
Off peak working| -\ Jin oy | policies, each unit adjusts and
mechanism s implements by itself
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

2. Production and anti-COVID-19 measures and

COVID-19 prevention reserves

Prepare emergency plans in accordance with the actual conditions

Before work resumption, the Group’s production bases across the country
began to prepare anti-COVID-19 emergency plans in accordance with the
actual conditions of each place and local government policies, and set
up a leadership team for prevention and control work immediately, with
the senior management acted as team leader, checking each COVID-19
prevention work and simulating various operational processes. Since 10
February, all factories have obtained the approval of work resumption in
the first instance respectively and resumed work smoothly. Anti-COVID-19
plan has been recognized by local governments and has become a model
for other local enterprises to learn from.

Strict control of personnel, no blind spot in testing and disinfection

During the COVID-19 outbreak, the Group’s 29 production bases set up 65
channels equipped with Water God sanitizing products, which were all put
into daily use. After work resumption, employees of each factory must go
through temperature detection and information registration before entering
the factory, and must enter the factory area through the channels spraying
with Water God disinfectant. Persons with abnormal body temperature
were not allowed to enter the factory until they have obtained a hospital
health certificate or nucleic acid test clearance.

Reserve of COVID-19 prevention materials, help resume work and
production

In order to allow employees to resume work and production at ease, the
Group allocated funds for epidemic prevention as soon as possible and
purchased anti-COVID-19 materials to secure the supply and reserve
of anti-COVID-19 materials. A total of approximately 400,000 masks, 8
tonnes of alcohol, and 470 sets of Water God disinfectant generation
equipment were purchased, and all areas of the plant were sprayed with
Water God disinfectant daily.
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3. Fighting the COVID-19, Want Want in action —

Donating Water God disinfection and sterilization products
On 25 January, Want Want donated the first batch of Water God
disinfectant generation equipment and sterilization products to Wuhan.

On 3 February, Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, chief executive officer and Mr. Tsai
Wang-Chia, chief operating officer of the Group once again instructed
relevant units of the Group to donate disinfection and sterilization
products to the pandemic area of Hubei Province urgently, to fight against
COVID-19. The recipients were mainly major hospitals in Huanggang City
and Xiaogan City and some hospitals in Xiantao City.

In early February, Water God disinfectant generation equipment were
donated to medical institutions in Hangzhou, Zhejiang, and Minhang
District and Jinshan District, Shanghai, etc.

In late February, the Group and Acer Incorporated donated Water God
disinfectant generation equipment to over 100 schools across China.

3 MBRE  HEETEH -1
BKHSREEm
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[I. Communication with stakeholders and materiality

assessment

We attach importance to our communication with stakeholders,
and encourage all the stakeholders to take part in and monitor the
implementation of our environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
strategies. Want Want's key stakeholders include mainly shareholders and
investors, government and regulatory authorities, consumers, partners,
employees, communities and the media. Through a variety of effective
channels, we understand the stakeholders’ expectations and requirements
on ESG which become our important references for formulating ESG
strategies. In order to truly understand the concerns of the stakeholders,
the Company performed a material issue analysis of stakeholders and
identified issues that are of great significance to stakeholders and to the
Company. The Company will respond to and communicate effectively
in respect of the concerns of the stakeholders, and will attach great
importance during the Company’s operation process and will continue to
improve in related issues.

s RAGERREE

e RAEMEERZS

Improving product quality and safety
s RAEMBERE

Developing healthy and nutritious products
s RARFMEE

Enhancing customers’ satisfaction

o REXBERE

o HEHEEE

EmEE

HEEE
Business management

BTk

Product responsibility Employee development

Supply chain management

s RAESEERNEERE
Improve advertising content management

Environmental protection

AN ERLTEEREEM
aHil

BAERERHAE S AEE - SR
BRZAELSE  EERMNRE - 1
EREA (ESG) RMEMNEN - HEMNEE
MNEAELBERRRREE - BAKRE
BB HBE SERBH BT - HE
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® Improve corporate integrity management

Intellectual property protection

o SR

Responsible procurement
o ZENTIBR
Charitable donation

HESE
Cooperation with
communities

R RE

* BRIESMEZERETIRE
Ensuring workplace safety and employees' health
o HIFETM@EHILT
Prohibiting child labour and forced labour
o RAFER
Enhancing salary and welfare benefits
* RAETREE
Enhancing employees’ satisfaction
* Zt{LiEMRE
Adopting diversified employment
* MTETI TSRS
Granting employees with equal opportunities
® (REBRBRNZI

Promoting career development and training

RSN ERE

Exhaust emission management
KERFEEKER

Water resource and waste water management
REFHREN B2

Energy consumption and management
BRIRRIFEE

Environment-friendly activities
RERFEMRBEME

Environment-friendly products and packaging
materials
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lll. Product Responsibility - Making Products Perfect

from Inside out

The Group adheres strictly to laws and regulations such as “Food Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests”, implements
national food safety strategies, and controls quality by forming an excellent
quality management team, establishing a professional quality control
system, enhancing Want Want’s standard quality management system
(WSQM System) and promoting the construction of a food safety culture.
The Group endeavours to make the products perfect from inside out and
safeguard the quality. Want Want is determined to let consumers eat
with ease, feel relieved and happy, have confidence in Chinese food and
become the promoter of positive energy in the Chinese food industry.

We are committed to “establishing a standard management system with
Want Want characteristics, fostering a mature employee development
system, forming the best production team in the industry, and becoming
the most superior, competitive and trust-worthy food brand in China.” With
the ultimate goal of “creating the best Want Want practices”, we ensure
that we will create an industry-leading standard management system by
2020.

The Group adopts advanced food safety management concepts and
standards at home and abroad to establish a WSQM system that matches
the Company’s own features and integrates the requirements of FSSC
22000, BRC and other food safety management systems approved
by the GFSI (Global Food Safety Initiative) organization, with HACCP
principles as foundation and risk prevention as the main management
philosophy. Currently, the Group has 84 factories, in which 70 factories
are certified with 118 certificates obtained, which covers crackers and
chips, bakery, candies, dairy products and beverages produced by the
Group. The certifications passed by the Group include food safety systems
certifications such as 1S022000, HACCP, FSSC22000 and BRC. It also
passed certifications for HALAL, dairy products GMP, corporate integrity
management system, organic food, gluten-free food and other certifications
to meet the needs of different regions and customers.

The Group has launched a Quality Control Circle (QCC) improvement
project in all factories across the nation, and carried out continuous
improvement activities focusing on the quality, efficiency, energy, cost,
innovation, environment, safety and other aspects in order to continuously
improve the market competitiveness of our products through full
participation. During the reporting period, there are national QC teams
of 223, in-service circle members of 1,823, QCC benefits of RMB1.9603
million; number of improvements proposed by employees of 28,344,
proposals accepted by the Company of 14,178 and tangible benefits
amounting to RMB8.2353 million.

1. Innovation breakthroughs

Adhering to the spirit of independent innovation, Want Want is committed
to developing leading and prospective products, orienting towards
consumer demand, targeting at safety, health and delicacy and establishing
the R&D strategy of “leading in technology and innovating the entire
industrial chain”. On this basis, we will achieve the followings in the future:
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FHEESL  WROTEAMEY 2 HURGETHEEEHFAER !

Continue to lead, overcome common difficulties in the industry, and go all out to let consumers experience better!

BHREIRREERE  HHE—EHETE !

Always pay attention to nutrition and health of nationals, Want Want has been in action!

TEBN MR FEEEERERNNFR !

Spare no effort to meet the in depth needs of different consumers!

On 23 June 2019, the Group was invited to attend the 11th China Food
Safety Forum organized by China Economic Net, Mr. Yu Huimin, deputy
managing director of the Group's quality center, said at the Forum that
the focus of technological innovation is on how to prevent risk through our
experience and technology, and that preventive measures should be taken
from the perspective of food safety.

Want Want R&D always pays attention to the health of consumers.
Noticing the demand of various functional products from different consumer
groups, Want Want will continue to develop series of tasty functional
products. Want Want develops products from the four aspects of constant
sugar reduction, organic nutrition, functional health and green packaging,
and by reducing the content of unhealthy fat, sodium salt and sugar while
increasing the content of whole grain, fruits, vegetables, potatoes, (purple)
sweet potatoes, beans and nuts with healthy carbohydrate ingredients.
Want Want values inheritance and development of Chinese food culture,
integrating tea culture and soup culture into related products, such as
natural herbal tea drinks, instant noodles with rich flavor, convenient soup,
etc., so that the products are delicious, nutritious and convenient. The
Group also values organic connection between ecological environment
and life and health in harmonious coexistence, therefore our products
upgrading and evolution are developing towards green, natural and healthy
directions.

2 Quality guarantee at source

Supplier management system:

From the introduction of suppliers to back-end management, there are
strict processes and systems, the Company carries out strict qualification
examination for suppliers, selects suppliers according to quality and
environmental protection standards, and signs the “Statement of Integrity”
and “Undertaking for Prohibition of Commercial Bribery” with all suppliers.
The Group adheres to the principles of operation with integrity, benefit
sharing and mutual benefit, and continuously improves the procurement
process and mechanism. A fair and impartial evaluation system is
established which respects the reasonable quotations of suppliers,
maintains the suppliers’ product benefits and technology development
interests, and creates a good competitive environment for suppliers.
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1) Development of suppliers and risk assessment

In the stage of introducing raw material suppliers, the Group looks for
suppliers on the basis of the principle of “multi-channel introduction and
multi-department decision”, and compiles with internal policy statements of
suppliers’ development process for the relevant raw materials. The Group
follows strictly the entry standards for different kinds of suppliers to conduct
qualification examinations. There are strict requirements for product quality
and the standards are generally higher than the national standards.

1) HrEE B R B R e R (h
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HERESERERFE  Brief flow chart of supplier introduction
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Procurement unit
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1 Quality assurance unit
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EBEEZX Bt al
Examination and
verification of
qualification

Sample testing

° i E{y

R&D unit

In terms of risk assessment, it is mainly evaluated through third-party
platforms and on-site visits. The qualification information provided by
suppliers is examined and verified through third-party platforms. In
addition, the potential financial and legal risks of suppliers are evaluated
based on public information. The production environment of supplier's
factory and their personnel management are inspected through on-site
visits. On the one hand, the information obtained can be verified. On the
other hand, we could gain better understanding of the supplier's actual
management situation and assess the risks on production environment
and other risk factors. The Group will not consider those suppliers who do
not meet the standards and may have significant risks.

30 2019/2020% %k | ANNUAL REPORT
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2) Supplier management

As for supplier management, it mainly relies on assessment standards and
feedback mechanisms for suppliers to complete the building of supplier
grading management.

A quantifiable assessment standard is established based on the four
dimensions of quality, delivery, cost and service, with equal weighting.
Each month, the quality center, supply chain center and procurement
center make assessment on the suppliers, and the supplier management
office is responsible for timely identification of any existing problems in
our cooperation with the supplier. Through the supplier’'s regular feedback
mechanism, disputes and other issues in the cooperation between the
Group and the supplier are communicated for optimizing our internal
workflow or for urging supplier for improvement.

=g V
= 1
CEll Delivery

ZHE

Assessment and
evaluation

According to the data obtained from daily supplier management, through
grading management, we will provide incentives to responsible Grade A
suppliers, search for potential Grade B suppliers and provide them with
guidance and support, replace those unqualified suppliers and constantly
adjust the supplier structure to facilitate a positive development for
cooperation between the Group and its suppliers, and to establish a long-
term strategic cooperative relationship which would ultimately achieve the
goal of mitigating supply chain management risk of the Group.

3) Information on supplier cooperation

In 2019FY, there were 1,403 centralised procurement suppliers transacting
with the Group, most of them were local suppliers, and were managed in
accordance with the Group's supplier management measures.

BE®E
Optimize
management

2) HEEEE

EHEREE L  TRMEREHIER
ZRREKT  TREEFESREENE
2o

RRmE ~ A~ A - IRB AL
ENRAZYAJEHNTERE  SYHE
BumEFL - HEERO - REHLE
R ERETTIR  HENEEEEE
REFBIRE AR S ETHIRER - B
BEEERTEHRENKS  HRETES
e FRNERETRE - BRI
TR ERERETRE

T HAFE X
Regular
assessment

EEREE
Pay attention
to feedback

RRAFHEFEEENNEE  BAD
REENLSN  HEHEENAREEEH
THE  SHRARBENNBRUEEST
BB KRTARMHER - TR
BEREAE  REEEERENSFRE
HRMBRE  BYRBRKESFREER &
REIREEEHEREERMRAOB -

3) EE S FEREEHKE
201981 F - REGBHERSERES
1,403% » UARMHEBAHE - (KREH
HEREEERITERE

2019/2020% %R | ANNUAL REPORT 31



9 B BEBE AR BBR/A R Want Want China Holdings Limited

RIE - EREBERE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

gt &
Area

It i PE R : E

Local suppliers : China

b =M
North America

Overseas suppliers N

FEM

Oceania

4) Environmental protection standards for suppliers

When selecting raw material suppliers, the qualifying certification standards
require that the manufacturer must have QS certificate, ISO environmental
management system certification and other operation-related documents.
The Group also needs to perform site visits and issue a corresponding
site visit assessment report to ensure that the supplier complies with the
Group's standards on product quality and environmental factors.

The Group continues to conduct the source quality management of
upstream suppliers towards raw materials suppliers, establishes the
“Materials Survey Form” for edible raw materials to monitor its upstream
raw material suppliers, their production processes, ingredients and
proportions. Meanwhile, we make random visits to the suppliers’ factories
to inspect the raw materials used by the suppliers to reduce the quality
risks from the source.

As for supplier management, in addition to annual review of suppliers on
the system, quality and other cooperation-related matters are also tracked
through our daily supplier assessment management. Once its qualification
does not meet with our requirements, the supplier concerned will be
blacklisted and will not be considered for cooperation.

3. Building food safety culture.

1) Establishing a food safety training system

— In order to let every new employee to learn the basic knowledge of food
safety in a timely manner, the Group organizes food safety training for
new employees during their induction and signs the “Undertakings on
Food Safety” with them.

32 2019/2020% 3 | ANNUAL REPORT
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— In order to improve the food safety knowledge of employees, food
safety trainings were carried out in 32 production bases across the
nation, and food safety evaluation and analysis were conducted to
provide optimization directions for the follow-up food safety culture
implementation plan. As at the end of the reporting period, 1,749 food
safety trainings were conducted with 69,327 participants and with a
total 4,658.9 training hours.

— In order to create a food safety culture atmosphere and stimulate the
quality consciousness amongst the employees, the Group posted
560 memos of Want Want Food Safety Vision and Mission Code of
Conduct internally to carry out advocacy learning for employees. At
the same time, factories across the country published a total of 1,457
articles on food safety, and 374 selected articles were published on the
internal sharing platform of the Group.

— June 2019 was the food safety publicity month of the country, and it
was also the food safety publicity month of Want Want. The Group
responded to national policies, and 32 production bases carried out
food safety cultural activities both inside and outside the factories.

2) Establishing quality model image

We motivate employees with the power of role models, strengthen the
focus on quality, and promote the further improvement of product quality.
2,030 “One-Day Auditor” activities were carried out in 32 production bases
in the PRC, through cross-auditing multi-dimensionally with different
perspectives and angles. At the same time, through evaluation of quality
models, 1,394 employees were recognised as food safety quality model.

3) Promoting externally food safety culture

— We provide free warehouse rectification services for customers, and
the quality assurance supervisors train our customers on warehouse
management standards on site. At the same time, we regularly publish
relevant articles and training videos on food safety, warehousing
management, etc. to customers through WeChat public accounts.

— At the International Potato Expo, in addition to displaying excellent
Want Want foods, we also actively introduced food safety culture with
“Want Want Features” to friends at home and abroad. The products
and food safety culture received unanimous acclaim.

4. Quality services

Adhering to the Company’s motto of “Be caring, Be Attentive and Be
considerate”, we strive to create a high quality and complete consumption
experience for our consumers and serve with our sincere and friendly
services in exchange for the satisfaction of every customer.

1) Considerate service

In accordance with the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests” and “Food Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, we attach importance to every customer’s
complaints and have formulated the “Action Procedures for Customers’
Complaints” so as to ensure the satisfactory resolution of customers’
complaints.
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KRR
Procedures for complaint handling:

AT

Appointment for visit

* 2/ »

within 2 hours

o 2EATEHR

within 2 working days

The complaint resolution rate for 2019FY was 100%. For some complaints,
a consumer satisfaction survey was conducted, and 94% of the consumers
expressed satisfaction to our resolution. Among which, complaints on
quality improvement was 5% less than that of 2018FY.

Want Want has a comprehensive food safety control system covering the
whole industrial chain and has implemented thoroughly the national food
safety strategy. In order to further safeguard food safety, improve service
levels and improve overall operational efficiency, Want Want develops
an online quality assessment system by making use of the advanced
information technologies to identify causes of any quality issues and
address the issues in a focused manner, provide early warning signs
of risks and prevent reoccurence in the future. It can also help drive
management improvement, providing more in-depth reference and thinking
for technological innovation, legal compliance and cultural construction,
etc.

2) Privacy protection

The Group respects fully customers’ rights and interests, handles with
upmost confidentiality on customers’ private information obtained through
the sales channels, sets the system’s users authority according to the
functions, and achieves technical realization of consumers’ personal
information management systematization and standardisation. According
to the “Action Procedures for Customers’ Complaints (Product Service-3-
WQ-035)”" of our Group, such data are not allowed to be disseminated or
used without permission. A written request with appropriate reason has
to be made by relevant department and reviewed by the headquarters’
internal auditing department to ensure the protection of consumers’
personal information during the process of obtaining, storing and using
such information. During the reporting period, there were nil complaints
regarding infringement of customers’ right of privacy and loss of customers’
information.
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Simulation traceability:
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3) Recall management

In order to protect the rights and interests of consumers, we abide
strictly by the “Food Recall Management Measures” and other laws and
regulations, and establish a standardised simulation traceability system
and a complete recall process. From food safety risk identification and
judgement to making recall announcements, implementing recalls, and
improving products in a timely manner, the Group achieves full process
control to ensure product quality. The simulation traceability system makes
use of ERP database to monitor the production and sales process of the
product, and realises two-way traceability of raw materials and finished
products. All production bases in the country simulate the recall once a
year, and conducts two-way simulation traceability from finished products
to raw materials and from raw materials to finished products twice a year.
During the reporting period, the total traceability time is less than 4 hours,
the average traceability time used is 3.18 hours, and conformity is 99.10%.
The traceability and the recall systems of the Group operates well.

5. Product compliance

1) Intellectual property right protection

The Group attaches great importance to the maintenance and
management of intellectual property rights and abides strictly by the laws
and regulations such as the “Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, “Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of China” and “Patent
Law of the People’s Republic of China”.

At present, the Group owns 2,457 trademarks, 32 patents and 112
copyright registered in the Chinese mainland. There are 1,439 trademarks,
17 patents and 130 copyright registered under the name of other
enterprises controlled by the ultimate controlling parties of the Group.
When the Group has the need to use such intellectual property rights,
it may obtain unconditional authorisation to use or even have them
transferred. The intellectual property rights department monitors strictly the
trademarks that have been preliminarily reviewed by the Trademark Office
every month. After screening, this department classifies and analyses
the trademarks according to their importance, similarity and impact, and
disputes those trademarks that are critical, highly alike and posing great
impact. This department sorts out the trademarks to be expired and
required to pay annual fee on renewal in the following year and timely
applies for renewal and makes payment according to the Group’s needs
for these trademarks and patents, to ensure the Group’s intellectual
property rights will remain valid.
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The intellectual property rights department supports the brand maintenance
office in carrying out its routine rights protection and fighting against
counterfeiting work, assists in identifying whether there is infringement of
the product, provides complaint materials, participates in on-site work to
fight counterfeiting, and provides full legal support. For major and important
cases and some online infringement cases, the intellectual property
rights department will actively initiate trademark infringement civil claims
procedures, assign and instruct the Group’s local legal advisor or those in
close proximity or engage external lawyers to complete the claiming action
based on where the infringement occurred.

In order to diversify its products and enrich its brand image, the Group has
collaborated with other well-known brands or images in recent years. The
intellectual property rights department is responsible for the authorization
and mandated management of brands and images. For the mandated
management in particular, the department reviews vigorously the continuity
and effectiveness of the authorization rights, carefully monitors the fitness
and integrity of the authorization content and the actual needs of the Group
so that the intellectual property rights of others could be respected while
ensuring the legality of self operations.

The intellectual property right department provides regular trainings for
product managers, digital marketing personnel, e-commerce personnel,
customer service personnel and advertising personnel on basic legal
knowledge, which focuses on intellectual property rights, product labelling,
advertising etc.. To enhance their awareness of respecting intellectual
property rights is an important part of the Group’s intellectual property
rights management and the core of enhancing the overall intellectual
property standards of the Group. A training programme on “Brand Building
and Must-Know Legal Knowledge related to Advertising Promotion" was
launched in April, June and October 2019 respectively for our product
managers, personnel in digital marketing, e-commerce, and advertising
production departments and customer service staff, etc. and a total of
7 “Corporate Brand Building and Marketing Compliance” trainings were
orgainized for local marketing directors and departmental heads during the
whole of 2019FY.

The intellectual property rights department has joined the Oriental
Intellectual Property Club (OIPC) for six consecutive years. The Club is
composed mainly of university professors, corporate intellectual property
rights managers, lawyers and other personnel. It regularly organizes
exchange activities such as conferences, trainings, salons etc. The
intellectual property rights department sends staff to participate in the
Club activities, learn and discuss about front-line issues of the industry,
analyze and study recent typical cases, and consult for solving the Group’s
practical problems. To pay respect is the cornerstone for intellectual
property rights protection and continuous learning provides nutrient for the
operation of intellectual property rights.
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2) Advertisement and label management

We abide strictly by the “Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, GB 7718 “General Rules for Prepackaged Food Labels” and GB
28050 “General Rules for Prepackaged Food Nutrition Labels” and other
relevant regulations and standards. We review in a responsible manner all
labels in strict compliance with the process of the regulatory review method
to protect the consumers’ rights to know and to choose.

The Group’s product packaging, promotional materials, website
information, and commercials are subject to the review of the intellectual
property rights department and other related departments before coming
into the market or being released to ensure that the Group’s products and
marketing activities are in compliance with the laws and regulations.

IV. Mutual Growth — Creating Happiness

The Group adheres to the management philosophy of “People-Oriented,
Self-Confidence and Unity”, and is associated with every fellow enthusiast.
We strive to build a “family” atmosphere, and work together with each
Want Want employee in the spirit of “Unity”.

We carry out human resource management strictly in accordance with the
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China” and other laws and regulations. We strive
to create a good working environment for employees, provide safe and
healthy workplace, and establish a career development platform so that
every employee can grow together with the Group.

1. Safety and health

We abide strictly by the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on Safe
Production”, “Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases” and “Measures for the Administration of
Contingency Plans for Work Safety Incidents” and other national laws and
regulations to ensure the steady implementation of production safety and
occupational disease prevention.

The Group abides strictly by the “Safe Production Law” and relevant
safety laws and regulations, adheres to the safety production policy of
“safety first, prevention driven, comprehensive governance”, insisting on
people-oriented and implements fully the production safety standardisation
construction. At present, except for some individual factories which have
not implemented the production safety standardisation due to relevant
location policy reasons, all other factories have reached the production
safety standardisation (class C) (of which factories in Beijing and
Shijiazhuang reach Class B standard) and passed the regular reviews.
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The Group carries out quarterly projects every year, of which the theme
of the safety project in the second quarter of 2019 was “Full Inspection
of Risks and Hidden Dangers” which is to cater to the themes of the
national safety production month (“risks prevention, elimination of hidden
dangers and accidents”). All factories across the nation were required to
actively cooperate and participate in the safety production month activities
organised by local governments. The project with the theme of “Safety
Production during Peak Season” is a compulsory project carried out by
the Group during the peak season in the fourth quarter of each year.
During the peak season, the factories will focuse on safety training, hidden
dangers inspection and emergency drills to ensure safe production during
peak season.

2019 was the Group’s “Year of intensifying Environment, Health and
Safety (EHS) Management”. On the basis of the national “Safe Production
Law” and “Occupational Disease Prevention Law” and other national
regulations and decrees, the Group implements thoroughly the Want-
Want Standard Safety Management (WSSM) System and continues to
standardise factory occupational health management. Taking 1SO45001
occupational health and safety system as a reference, the Group
regulates its factories to gradually standardise on-site occupational health
management. The factories carry out occupational hazard factor detection
and status assessment work in accordance with the law, and strive to
improve the on-site occupational health environment, optimize the process
and improve equipment to reduce noise; warning signs are posted in
areas of hazardous positions in accordance with the national occupational
hazard notification standard, and factors leading to occupational hazards
are included in the identification and control of workshop safety maps, and
occupational health education and training are implemented on a continual
basis. According to the Group's “Management Measures on Personal
Labor Protection Products Standard Configuration”, we provide employees
with suitable protective equipment; regularly arrange employees who
are exposed to occupational hazards to undergo occupational health
examinations, and occupational health files and accounts are being put up
gradually and comprehensively for each factory to ensure the occupational
health of all employees.

There was nil employee fatal accident due to work occurred during the
reporting period.
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2. Protection of employee rights

1) Employee salary

The remuneration system is based on the actual situation of the Group
taking into account systematic, comprehensive and scientific consideration
of various factors, and is subject to revision and adjustment in a timely
manner. We also follow the principles of distribution according to work with
efficiency as priority, fairness and sustainable development as principles
and making full use of the incentive and guiding functions of remuneration.

Internal fairness

According to the responsibilities undertaken, the level of expertise
required, and the different nature of the job requirements, the salary level
would reasonably reflect the differences in value creation for the Group in
terms of job position and grading.

External competitiveness
Maintaining the competitiveness of the Company's remunerations and
welfare benefits in the industry can attract high calibre people to join us.

Correlation to performance
Remuneration is closely linked to the performance of the team and
individuals.

Incentives

Incentives: The remuneration for production/sales staff consists of fixed
salary and incentive performance bonus. In response to the PRC food
safety requirements, to protect the rights of all consumers, and assure
the quality of the Group’s products, the Group set up a quality and safety
bonus scheme specially for production staff.

2) Attendance and holidays

The Group has established an attendance management system applicable
to its internal operation in strict compliance with the national laws and
regulations. The system stipulates the rights to holiday of all employees
and the attendance system that must be followed. In addition to statutory
leave, the March 8th Women's Day and May 4th Youth Day, an additional
two to five days of annual leave are granted to employees according to
their position.
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The Company advocates the completion of work tasks within working
hours, and always reminds employees to pay attention to personal
health and safety, work and life balance while ensuring work progress
and efficiency. Work efficiency can be raised through management
improvement, setting clear objectives, strengthening coordination among
departments, reasonable allocation of working time and other methods. If it is
impossible to complete the work within the scheduled time, the supervisor
will review the situation. For overtime work during weekdays and rest days,
compensation time off will be arranged. If compensation time off cannot be
arranged, overtime payment shall be made according to law.

3) Employee benefits and care

The Group always adheres to the people-oriented principle and cares
about the work and life of employees. In order to enhance the welfare
management of the Group and ensure that employees enjoy corresponding
benefits, the Group has set up various festival welfare (including Spring
Festival, Women’s Day, Labour Day, National Day), start-up red packets,
wedding gifts, funeral consolation money, new-born welfare, seniority
commemoration, honorary retirement commemoration, and employees
commercial insurance, and other welfare benefits.

FEIRA
Festival welfare

FEEE
Marriage gifts
EREEA
Marriage candies
=imEAl
High temperature benefits
EVAV =54 1) RTINS
March 8th Women's Day Funeral consolation money
45 BMIA"
May 1st Labour Day Start-up red packets
+—EEE TESREF
October 1st National Day Golden medal and golden chain
E=350] benefits
Spring Festival FE AT 7 3
Want-Want Wallet
B
Spring wine

“IhTE RERE" SRR D
“Contribution to Want-Want”

honorary retirement commemoration

ERER
Conventional welfare
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Other welfare

BTIEE
Staff dormitories
TR
Working meals
b3
Shuttle bus
EENHLEES
Rich community activities
EHER
Birthday benefits
AR
Inauguration day
FERBREE
Annual physical health check
2R
Health talks
HHRE TS
Care for special employees
HAE
Lactation room

4) Recruitment

The Company has a well-established management system for recruitment.
Upon request by the department in need of the additional manpower, the
Company will verify and post the relevant employment information on its
internal platform and social media for recruitment.

Employment principle: The Company does not allow any discrimination
(such as sex discrimination, disability discrimination, etc.) on employment,
and stands against engaging any child under the age of 16 in strict
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations such as the “Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and “Labour Contract Law of
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the People’s Republic of China”. The Group adheres to fair employment
principle and allows no discrimination on grounds of age, gender,
nationality, race, religion, etc. All employed staff are recruited voluntarily
and forced labour is strictly prohibited. The Group follows strictly the
guidelines of the Food Safety Law which requires practitioners to provide
qualification certificates for relevant positions.

As of 31 March 2020, the number of employees of the Group in the
Chinese mainland was 40,406.

SE{ES MRS M

Gender distribution

B AE Male
ZAE Female

SEESFERD M

Age distribution

18-25p% A BL
18-25 years old

26-455 AE
26-45 years old

s 46EE A EAH

Over 46 years of age

5) Resignation and termination of employment

The Group complies strictly with the “Labor Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China”. In the process of the termination of an
employment contract, following the principles of legality, fairness, equality,
voluntariness, consensus, honesty and credibility, the Group would clarify
the rights and obligations of both parties to the employment contract. The
legitimate rights and interests of employees are protected and harmonious
and stable labour relations can be built and developed.

In order to increase the retention rate of talents, after receiving a
resignation application, the Group’s personnel staff will proactively and
actively interview the employee concerned. Employee with outstanding
performance will be counselled for the purpose of retention. The real cause
of resignation, the major incident leading to such decision, comments of
the resigning staff on the management culture of the Company, working
environment and internal interpersonal relationship will be examined
and constructive suggestions for improvement on the departmental or
Company level, as well as future work proposal for the position concerned
will be invited to share. Such comments and suggestions of the resigning
staff in the exit survey will be compiled for future reference in improving the
satisfaction and sense of belonging of existing employees.
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Years of service
3 LA within 3 years
3-5%F 3to5years

5% LLE over 5 years

SEEEEHFRE
Education level of management

RELT AE

Personnel without junior college diploma

REAH

Holders of junior college diploma
B A B Bachelors

@ FE+ L AE Masters
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3. Training and development

The Group advocates a notion of competition that encourages life-long
learning. The Group’s sustained growth has always been closely related
to fulfilment of individual values and career development of every Want
Want employee. We endeavour to provide learning and development
platforms by wholeheartedly formulating whole-year training schemes for
all employees with an effort to achieve common development of the Group
and employees.

1) Performance assessment and promotion

The Group has always attached importance to talent development and
cultivation. In order to nurture talents at all levels, the Group has set up a
dual-track system for promotion. This includes two promotion channels,
one for managements and one for others (sales/technicians), enabling
excellent employees to choose their own directions of career development
paths according to their expertise, interest and experience. In addition,
through a comprehensive training system, the Group assists employees
to get trained on expertise relevant to their positions and to achieve their
promotion goals.

ZyFEAEE
Dual-track system for promotion

(REER)

(Administrative system)

BER/MBKE
Managing director/General manager

EEMEEE
Promotion channel for management

EREIEEREIRZE

Director/Deputy managing director/

Deputy géneral manager
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FEEHEEBRE
Promotion channel for others

I
B R/
Deputy director/Assistant general manager
sz
Manager
* o
Interconnection
ki
Deputy manager “

FRRERER

Section supervisor/Deputy section supervisor

%

FEEIEE
Supervisor/Deputy supervisor

I
Bl R /15
Special assistant/Adviser

BREE/SRTIZM
Senior specialist/Senior engineer

L)

EE/TEM

Specialist/Engineer

L )

EIEE/E T2

Associate specialist /Associate engineer

%

BREBE/ERFEME

Senior officer/Senior technician

EEET
Junior employees
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(EEBZR)

(Production organisation)

EEREE
Promotion channel for
managerial personnel

RATREE
Promotion channel
for technicians

(EHER)

(Sales organisation)

EEREE
Promotion channel for
managerial personnel

FFEERBE
Promotion channel for
non-managerial personnel

533 BRTEM 3 BREE
Factory director Senior engineer Director Senior specialist
Bl & Ti26m B/ 58
Vice factory director Engineer Deputy manager/manager Specialist
BB BB
‘ Interconnection ‘ ‘ Interconnection ‘
LERE - BT e K2 EE L]
Production supervisor Associate engineer De %‘gt?gr?t'gﬂpseurﬁ’ﬁ&’)'for/ Associate specialist

BEEE
Workshop director

BRRME

Senior technician

AR F TS
Middle-level technician
B E
Technician
HEST
Junior employees
2) Staff training

The Group combines the strategic needs of its development with talent
planning in the provision of training to its staff, with focus being placed on
the requirements of different levels and positions. In 2019FY, the average
training time per employee was 41 hours.

BHEER
Workshop leader

HEER
Team leader

l.,

To facilitate the growth of new recruits and at the same time care for
the employees and enhance their sense of happiness, regular trainings
are conducted covering induction training, open courses and training for
business expansion.

To build a pool of highly talented individuals for the key positions
of the Group, a management training and reserve cadre training
project was launched. At the same time, various levels of reserve
management trainings were carried out for the promotion ladder: in the
marketing system, trainings are provided to junior, and mid-and-high
level supervisors, while at the Group’s Shanghai Office, JMT growth
acceleration class, MMT excellence training class and Want Want « Tetra
Pak MBA class are organized for junior supervisors, mid-level supervisors
and senior supervisors respectively. In 2019FY, all these course structure
were optimized.

In order to build a group of lecturers and cultivate outstanding teachers for
staff training, a special internal training team was established. As at March
2020, there were 697 internal lecturers.

On-the-job training of professional skills carried out by various units is
mainly performed by combining internal training and outsourced training.

team leader

BlEE/EE SESEZ TES =]
Deputy supervisor/supervisor Senior officer/salesman

RERMAR
Vice team leader/

PAREBIEBE

Intermediate officer/

salesman

HEESET
Junior employees
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4. Clean governance

The Group has always attached great importance to integrity and self-
discipline of employees, business partners and stakeholders, and abided
strictly by the “Criminal Law of the People's Republic of China”, the
“Interim Provisions on Prohibition of Commercial Bribery”, the “Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China” and other applicable
laws and regulations.

Work and business ethics have always been the most fundamental
requirements for our employees and business partners. The Group has
been committed to building of anti-corruption and anti-fraud mechanisms,
adopting a “zero tolerance” attitude towards any violation of work and
business ethics and conducting special audit in areas at a high risk of
exposure to corruption and fraud. The Group carried out promotion and
education about anti-corruption and anti-fraud continuously by making
relevant videos, publishing articles on internal publications and media,
advocating probity of our clients through WeChat and preparing case
studies for special publicity.

The Group has established a whistle-blowing mechanism, set up a hotline
and mailbox to encourage staff, customers and suppliers to report improper
conduct involving corruption and fraud. Reported cases are investigated
and verified by our internal audit team independently. Necessary
confidentiality measures are taken to protect the reporter or related
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personnel involved in the investigation from any form of harassment.
Where a violation of the relevant regulations is verified, punishment would
be imposed with reference to the provisions of “Human Resources Reward
and Punishment System” until legal liability is pursued. The Group has
also set up reward system for real name whistle-blowing by our staff and
offers different levels of rewards according to the investigation result of
such report.

V. Green Development - Pursuing Harmonious

Coexistence with the Society and Nature

Environmental and social responsibilities are an integral part of job duties
assumed by our staff. Upholding the people-oriented notion and guided by
consumers demands, while satisfying our consumers with delicious food,
we replaced traditional production technologies and non-environmental
friendly materials with greener and more environmental-friendly ones,
extending the concept of green, environmentally friendly and sustainable
development to each product item and each package of our products of
the Group.

1. Environmental protection and emission reduction

In strict compliance with the “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Law of People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution”, the “Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution” and other
applicable laws and regulations, the Group has formulated a series of
systems and procedures to regulate environmental protection measures
of the Group, including “Procedures for Boiler Operation in the Production
process”, “Boiler Steam Management” and “Measures in the Production
Process for Administration of Sewage Plant”. In order to ensure the full
implementation of the relevant systems, we have formulated the “Audit
Manual for Work System” and the “Project Manual for Energy Conservation
and Waste Reduction” to set out specifically the operation requirements
of relevant systems in a feasible manner. In 2019FY, RMB5 million
was devoted in upgrading environmental protection, also, all emission
indicators meet national standard requirements.

RRBAER

Index of environmental protection investment 2019FY

201981 &
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1) Waste gas and waste water

Through progressively improved technologies and enhancement of onsite
management of the sewage treatment plant, Want Want ensures that the
discharge of waste water and gas meets the required standards and the
emission of pollutants is reduced. With respect to the operation of the
sewage treatment plant, we have formulated the “Management Measures
for Sewage Treatment Plants”, our internal monitoring standards, to
ensure the operators perform on-site operations strictly in accordance with

1) BESREEK

BT FEIEIB T T Y T 820 R N385 7k Ih R
BEE > BREKNERERFERNE
B - fRAESSRMABEL - $HEDSKEE T
BITHIE CoKIEEEIE) REEEZE
£ BEARREASBREEEETRER
1F - BREERFBUKERERIELTE

2019/2020% ¥, | ANNUAL REPORT 45



9 B BEBE AR BBR/A R Want Want China Holdings Limited

RIE - dERERBRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

the standards, and the discharge of treated waste water meets national or
local standards. We have established a system for collection of emission
data and priority is given to improving key items. During the reporting
period, the amount of waste water discharge was reduced by 620,000
tonnes as a result of production water process optimization.

BEHNEEREELRHNE

Total emission generated in the reporting period

REEHIRE - RPEYL T HHBIERER
o RBRELARNEREHNNE - BED
B BREERAKIZEREZELHDEK
B 2628 o

297TH{LBFERE
297 tonnes Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD)

In respect of operation of the boiler equipment, we have formulated our
internal monitoring standards such as “Gas Boiler Operation Standards",
“Boiler Water Treatment Operation Standards” and “Boiler Room
Machine Equipment Inspection and Maintenance Standards” to ensure
that operators perform on-site operations in strict accordance with the
standards and that the boiler is under normal operation and the discharge
of waste gas meets national and local standards.

2) Greenhouse gases

The greenhouse gas emitted consisted mainly of the direct emissions
(scope 1) from fuel burning of boilers possessed or controlled by the
Group and indirect emissions from each factory’s consumption of energy
produced by electricity, thermal power and steam. The Group vigorously
organised activities for energy conservation and emission reduction,
and endlessly promoted solar photovoltaic power generation projects to
optimise energy utilisation structure.

S IR IE R B 1T I E (MR IB IR IR (EAR
EE) - (BEKEEBEXERES) -
(BEEHBRRREMRREEXFES)
ENPERERE  BREREASBEES
BETRSRE  BRBELEEET ¥
EERE DB XM 5 BERURZE -

2) BEREE

HENEFEREREHNEERNERRE
BEHINEE - EERRREEENE
E-HEAERBHRAAEES THE
RENER - BRONBRFMELENRRERE
BERKBHK - BT RIRMANBEERE
PR AREEBEAREREREEES - X
ﬁgﬁﬁk%%%ﬁﬁ%'@m%ﬁﬁm

......................................................

BRER 2019814 2018815
Use of resources 2019FY 2018FY
JSE P45 B >
R 22 SR B (1) 523,465 570,937
Greenhouse gas emission (tonne)
BREE (M, BBTAREER)
Emission intensity 27.5 28.9

(tonne per million RMB of output value)

Since the commencement of operation of the photovoltaic power
generation project in our Shanghai factory in 2016, all equipment has been
running normally with steady power generation. The cumulative power
generation is 5.67 million kWh, and the cumulative reduction in carbon
dioxide emissions is about 4,529 tonnes. During the reporting period,
the actual power generation of such project was 1.32 million kWh with a
reduction of approximately 1,055 tonnes of carbon dioxide emissions.
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The Group continued to promote photovoltaic projects and build solar
power facilities. In December 2019, the photovoltaic project of the Group’s
Zhejiang Plant with a total installed capacity of 6.4MW commenced
construction. This photovoltaic project of the Zhejiang Plant is expected to
generate 5.83 million kWh of electricity per year, reducing carbon dioxide
emissions by approximately 4,647 tonnes per year.

Since the plants in Jiyang, Shandong and Qihe, Shandong were put into
operation in July 2019, the equipment has been operating normally and
the power generation is stable. As at 31 March 2020, the cumulative power
generation was 1.23 million kWh, saving 981 tonnes of carbon emissions.

3) Non-hazardous waste

The Group classifies the non-hazardous waste into metals, plastics,
paper, food and other waste. Sound internal control systems for all
waste, including “Administrative Measures for Waste” to ensure that the
waste is disposed in accordance with applicable regulations has been
established. Having in mind our commitment to reducing solid waste from
the source, we refine management, introduce new equipment and change
existing waste into treasure through classified disposal. We take effective
measures to dispose of recyclable waste to prevent it from re-entering the
market.

Bl IMER R EREREY

Recycling of non-hazardous waste
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Since 2019FY, the Group has started to use the production bases in
Jiangsu, Zhejiang and Anhui as pilot factories for recycling, disposal and
reuse of Tetra Pak paper packaging waste products by the ecological
company, which is a member unit of the special committee for recycling
and reuse of beverage paper-based composite packaging, such institution
has been receiving business guidance from relevant competent authorities,
such as the National Development and Reform Commission, Ministry of
Commerce, Ministry of Ecology and Environment.

In 2019FY, the Group’s factory disposed 11 tonnes of Tetra Pak bags,
and subsequently expanded the amount of pilot factories based on
the cooperation between the pilot production base and the ecological
company.

4) Hazardous waste

In 2019FY, the Group's factories generated 416 tonnes of hazardous
waste, a decrease of 34 tonnes from that of 2018FY. Except for the
increased scrapping of forklift batteries, other hazardous wastes have
decreased as compared with the same period of last year, of which the
output of hazardous wastes (glue, paint), barrels (waste type HW49 other
waste), organic solvents and paints, inks, glue (waste types HW06, HW12,
HW13) decreased by 44 tonnes over the same period of last year.

The main measures are:
1) The factory continues to optimize the production process, and reduce
the use of related organic solvents, glue, ink, paint, etc.;

2) Centralized production, reducing downtime and use of related organic
solvents;

3) The packaging material production plant uses large-sized packaging
containers (glue etc.) for repeated use, reducing the generation of
hazardous waste products such as glue buckets;

48 2019/2020%F# | ANNUAL REPORT
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In addition, the factory complies strictly with the “Law on Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste of the People’s Republic
of China”, “Hazardous Waste Transfer Management Measures”, “Directory
of National Hazardous Waste 2016” and other regulations which require
for the hazardous waste to be identified and recorded in the ledger for
unified collection. The hazardous wastes of the factory so generated are
disposed of by means of recycling by the relevant factory and disposal by
third parties (units with qualifications for hazardous waste management)
to ensure that the Group’s hazardous waste disposal complies with
national laws and regulations. Due to local objective conditions (the
disposal units are without relevant qualifications), hazardous wastes that
cannot be disposed of are temporarily stored in the factory. The factory's
environmental safety department will search for other operating units with
hazardous waste disposal qualifications for legal disposal in accordance
with national regulations and local environmental protection requirements.

2. Resources conservation

We continue to improve the management system for lean production and
to guide and urge the production bases to effectively utilise and manage
resources and to achieve zero defect within reasonable costs.

1) Energy conservation management

We attach great importance to energy conservation management and have
formulated management systems including the “Administrative Measures
of the Group for Energy Conservation” and “Guidelines for Energy
Conservation and Emission Reduction in Production Bases” to identify
elements of energy management and areas for improvement, as well
as to implement targeted improvements. After analysis and optimization
of energy-intensive equipment, we established energy saving operation
standards for equipment that consumes most energy, such as “Energy
Saving Operation Standards for Water Chillers of the Group” and “Energy
Saving Operation Standards for Air Compressors of the Group”. We also
improved the operation procedures and set up standards of startup and
shutdown of equipment in line with their capacity and production schedule.

Water meters, electricity meters and steam gauges with three levels are
installed in each production base to ensure precise measurement of
energy consumption. We analyse energy utilisation by checking the daily
output and energy consumption to timely identify abnormal consumption
and avoid waste of energy.
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BREAE S NEENK EZERER

Direct and indirect energy consumption by categories

REREE 201981 & 201881 &
Type of energy 2019FY 2018FY
: . : 323,945 : 357,413 :
Electricity ’ ’ :
.. o ................................... ;};; ................................ o ................ o ................ o
ARR, : 962,700 1,121,059
Natural gas :
.. o ....................................................................... o ................ o ................ o
E e :
$ : 361,812 355,219
Steam :
.. o ............................ L.\k:%.%.i.g.l ; .(;L.Hﬂi) ........................... o ................ o ................ o
REFERR = OLRLBF :
Total (MWh) 1,648,457 1,833,691
.. o ....................................................................... o ................ o ................ o
HREE KRR EEARBER) : 86.49 92.97
Energy intensity (MWh per million RMB of output value) ’
. .o ....................................................................... .o' ................ o ................ o

The Group has improved the measurement equipment facilities, established
an energy management and control center, and regularly analyzed and
optimized the dynamic balance and consumption between various levels
rationally to achieve efficient use of energy.

We evaluate the energy pipeline network, prioritize the use of energy-
saving components, optimize the process parameters so as to reduce the
loss of energy during transportation process.

Energy maps are used to identify high energy-consuming areas
and exploration of further room for saving energy. We also perform
standardized management and aim for horizontal promotion of our energy
saving efforts across the Group.

During the reporting period, we continued to upgrade key energy-intensive

equipment, promoted the energy-saving projects and the solar photovoltaic
power generation, and optimized energy utilisation structure.
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2) Water resource management

We continue to improve the strategy for
water saving, recycling and usage based
on the quality grade of water and to require
the production bases to improve water
efficiency in line with our strategy. We
attach much importance to recycling of

water resources and to recycle reverse >
osmosis rejected water, steam condensate i sl
water and other recyclable water resources ALLIANCE FOR

as much as possible. In October 2019, WATER STEWARDSH'P

the Group initiated and officially joined the ASIA-PACIFIC
Alliance for Water Stewardship (AWS) in

January 2020. At the same time, the Group’s Guangzhou factory took
the lead in promoting water certification and environment certification,
to strengthen the management of sustainable development of water
resources and water risk. The Group has formulated a 3U strategy for
water conservation, recycling, and grading of water from the Group level,
and guided production bases to implement investigations and assessment
improvements to improve water efficiency. 500,000 tonnes of water was
saved by the Group in 2019FY.

The system investigates each water consumption point, analyzes whether
the consumption of water is reasonable according to the 3U strategy. It
implements energy-saving transformation and process optimization for
key water-consuming equipment such as upgrades of our rice washing
facility and vacuum pump cooling water recycling process, and soft water
backwash frequency improvement.

Water-saving management systems were developed based on the overall
water optimization of the factory, such as water-saving management of
the factory’s hand-washing faucets, requirements for the recycling of
equipment cooling water and classification of different types of water. The
water points of milk-containing beverages, candies, rice crackers and
other production lines were rearranged and made a total of 150 water
consumption improvements, saving about 400,000 tonnes of water. At
the same time, in conjunction with local government planning, we carried
out in-depth treatment of the treated wastewater for municipal and factory
greening, and planned to use it for toilet flushing in the factories. The
Group has not encountered any problem in obtaining water sources.
During the reporting period, the utilization efficiency of water resources
(tonne water/RMB million) increased by 20.48% in total as compared with
that of 2015 (9.52% for the current period), and the 5-year target (8%) was
achieved by 256%.
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ERERA 2019814 2018B1
Use of resources 2019FY 2018FY
FA7K 48 1 (1) : :
Amount of water used (tonne) 7,835,049 9,379,828
. 9 . }k{%{}‘ﬁ‘ (ﬁg/gg}\géﬁé%{ﬁj ................. 9 ............... o
: Water intensity :
: - 4111 : 475.6
<:> (tonne per million RMB of o O o

output value)

2019/2020% ¥, | ANNUAL REPORT 51



9 B3 BZBE =R B PR/ R Want Want China Holdings Limited

RIE - tERERHRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

3) Green packaging

The Group is involved actively in reducing packaging without undermining
the product quality, such as using lighter cans and carton boxes and
reducing packaging size. The Group has selected the “FSC” Tetra Pak
packaging materials from the renewable forests as the first choice for
packaging materials. During the reporting period, the total production
output was 1,583,000 tonnes and the total usage of packaging materials
was 279,000 tonnes; the packaging materials used per unit produced
accounted for 17.6%.

4) Green procurement

The Group is committed to promoting green development of supply
chains. In active response to the call for building a conservation-minded
society, we prefer to cooperate with enterprises discharging less waste, for
example, we prefer to work with flexible packaging materials enterprises
equipped with solvent recyclers and continue to promote volatile organic
compounds (VOCs) treatment, and step up the cooperation with such
suppliers.

3. Ecological protection

The Group’s preliminary planning includes multi-directional assessments
on the environment of the industrial land and pursuant to related
regulations. The selected production bases are located in the areas
permitted by the local government. Pollution control measures are
formulated to ensure that the local environmental capacity is not exceeded
and the biodiversity is not sabotaged and to avoid effects on the local
biodiversity environment as much as possible. During the production and
operation process of the Group’s factories, all factories are equipped with
pollutant discharge treatment devices to ensure that pollutants are properly
handled to fulfil national and local regulations. Regarding the Group’s
investment and operation of environmental protection facilities, it will work
with third-party professional organizations to evaluate the investment
feasibility; so as to take effective environmental protection measures
and protect the ecological environment to better reduce the impact of
production activities on environment.

52 2019/2020%#k | ANNUAL REPORT

3) aaH

EREFEEFRT @ HHBEESHEENRE
EirE  MEETERE R RRAR
WE - BERES - ZEEK[ATHEM]
F&BMEAEMBRANE BTRIE - 3]
HHIRES158 .38 - G AE279 B
Mg - BE{v{5EE17.6%

4) BRI
AEE-ERIRESHEENZER
B RMEBEEERERENVEUSE
R BEEZFRHIBERDIFRVEREE
TRE - W RMELEERRATE DR
KENREMEER  WIFESIEREE
ITEBMAERY(VOCS)REREL - N
RELERESELH -

3~ ERERE

SERHRIEAHE TEAMIRTEN
BOERETS ML B EERMN
PLEEERBFANEEA - LHE
BRREEN - BETSEHEBRER
ERBREYZHEMN  SURBREE N
EMEHRMRBEERFERTE - XEH
THELEEELBRED  1IRERITRY
FHRIEERE BRETRMETEZZER
B FHREERRETERER » K&
BRRRERARBTHGEE=FEX
BB R ARARTIE  BREMBR
RRER  BHRELRRE UKL
MEEEERBHRESE -



9> ] B BT =R BBR/AE Want Want China Holdings Limited

R HERERKRE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

VI. Charity Undertakings - Dissemination of Positive
Energy

The Group has always adhered to the principle of “Giving back to society”
and set up the Want Foundation in 1997 which has been dedicated to
charity work and promotion of Chinese traditional virtues. The Foundation
actively engages in disaster relief, rescue work, respect for the elderly
and care for the children, sponsoring senior citizen medical care, cultural
and sports events, emergency assistance and other charity activities.
Besides, the Group has formulated specialized guiding documents
including “Regulations of Want Foundation on Charity Undertakings” and
“Urgent Aid Management Measures of the Group” for internal use. With 18
branches set up in various regions of China, the Want Foundation carries
out charitable activities across the country from time to time.

1. Disaster relief, fighting against COVID-19 and care

for the victims

The Group demonstrated actively the national spirit of “one in trouble, all to
help” by giving our support and expressing our sympathy and solicitude to
the people in areas hit by disasters.

— 3 EEHRAR
- __.:

——
< - —
-

201966817 H22/555% @ M) HEMREHBLEC.ORME  EES
DA K BEITIRE -

At 22:55 on 17 June 2019, a 6.0-magnitude earthquake occurred in
Changning County, Yibin City, Sichuan Province, and Chongging
Branch donated to the disaster area.
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In the early morning of 10 August 2019, typhoon “lichima” landed in
Taizhou. A large area of villages and towns were seriously affected.
Hangzhou branch donated to the “lichima” affected areas.
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2. Responding to the call for poverty alleviation
The Group sets a good example, dedicates compassion and encourages
the community to care for the people in need, thereby putting the Group’s
business philosophy of “People-Oriented, Self-Confidence and Unity” into
practice and builds a good relationship with this warm society.

Yayi Town, Mojiang County, Pu'er City, Yunnan Province is a poverty-
stricken area in Yunnan Province. Kunming Branch donated a batch of
Want Want products to the poor people in Yayi Town, Mojiang County
through the Yunnan Red Cross Society.

2 BEGH RERE
AEBEEEERSAR > USER £
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3. Helping poor students

We continue to launch Want Want Caring Program to continuously care for
children in need and see that they could grow up healthily and organised
tours to Nanjing to broaden their horizons. In the reporting period, 1,621
participants spent 4,745.5 hours in this program, benefiting 14,132 persons
from various disadvantaged groups.
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Year ended 31 March

BZE3A3LHLFE
2020 2019 Change
2020 2019%F HE
RMB’000 RMB’000 %
ARET T AR¥ET T %
Key income statement items FEWRFEKRER
Revenue & 20,094,531 20,712,027 -3.0
Gross profit EF 9,655,032 9,400,171 +2.7
Core operating profit (excluding /& ERiH
other income and other gains —  (BIBREMlR A
net) B E Uk & FEE) 4,378,554 4,077,414 +7.4
Operating profit EERE 4,805,934 4,586,483 +4.8
EBITDA' KREFRIE - FrEH -
TERBHEAER 5,711,832 5,440,400 +5.0
Profit attributable to equity holders ZR A BERHIFE A
of the Company FEAL F) 3,649,215 3,476,599 +5.0
% point
Key financial ratios FEHKLE % % (EERE
Gross profit margin EF= 48.0 454 +2.6
Core operating profit margin BOEEREE
(excluding other income (BIRRE MU A
and other gains — net) BE Uk 2 FEE) 21.8 19.7 +2.1
Operating profit margin EEREE 23.9 22.1 +1.8
EBITDA margin KREFE - FriEHi
TEREHERRE 28.4 26.3 +2.1
Margin of Profit attributable to AARERFE A
equity holders of the Company  FE{5 A= 18.2 16.8 +1.4
1 EBITDA refers to earnings before interest, income tax, depreciation and 1 RETFIE - 8 - IFERBHEAIENE
amortization. It is calculated by adding back depreciation and amortization BHBRFE - FEHR - ITERBHEANE
expenses to the operating profit for the year. Eﬂ%ﬁoﬂﬁ WEBEFEMETERBHEER
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SUMMARY

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”") pandemic at the
beginning of 2020 has interrupted the daily life of all people and order
around the world. Upon the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group immediately
set up an emergency and contingency team and formulated standards and
guidelines for pandemic prevention to safeguard life, safety and health of our
employees as our top priority. By adhering to the operating policy of “assuring
quality, securing supply and promoting sales”, the Group actively resumed
production and operations. At the same time, the Group provided incentive
policy and resource supports and cooperated with our bankers to provide
financing solutions by means of various digital financial products, such as
“Want Want Cloud Notes” (FEFEZEF¥) and “Loans to Small and Medium-
sized Enterprises” (“NM#EFR), to our distributors and suppliers to relieve
them from their operating pressure. In addition, the Group actively fulfilled
its corporate social responsibilities and swiftly dispatched and donated
the “Water God” (7K##) branded slightly acidic electrolytic hydrochlorous
acid disinfection and sterilization equipment and antiseptic liquid to needy
medical institutions, administrative units and schools. Various Want Want

products were also donated to the frontline pandemic prevention workers
who were fighting against COVID-19.

e

2020 FF4) - HBIHRRE AT EHBEE
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TAERRENGREERETEMN - UIRE
B REE  RESIREXSH  BEE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SUMMARY (Continued)

Affected by the pandemic, China’s gross domestic product (GDP) in the
first quarter of 2020, declined by 6.8% year-on-year, of which the wholesale
and retail sectors contracted by 17.8%, according to data released by the
National Bureau of Statistics. At the early stage of the outbreak, the Group’s
Chinese New Year operation was, in general, satisfactory, and sales for
the period of 90 days leading up to the Chinese New Year (“CNY Sales
Period”) in 2020 (i.e. the period from 26 October 2019 to 23 January 2020)
achieved a high single-digit growth rate as compared with that of the CNY
Sales Period in the previous year (i.e. the period from 6 November 2018
to 3 February 2019). However, the Group’s sales in February and March
2020 suffered a relatively heavy impact as a result of the adverse effect
of COVID-19 on the overall supply chain and sales. With the continuous
improvement in the prevention and control of COVID-19 in China, the
market gradually returned to normal. During the period from April to May
2020, the Group resumed its normal trend in sales and achieved double-
digit revenue growth over that of the same period in the previous year. In
addition, as at 31 March 2020, the Group maintained a net cash position of
RMB8,376.3 million, with RMB17,256.9 million cash and cash equivalents
on hand, which enables it to be more resilient in face of the uncertain global
financial market condition.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SUMMARY (Continued)

In summary, total revenue of the Group for 2019FY decreased by 3.0%
to RMB20,094.5 million as compared with that of 2018FY. Benefiting from
the product-mix optimization and the decrease in the cost of certain key
raw materials, the Group’s gross profit margin for 2019FY increased by
2.6 percentage points year-on-year to 48.0%. The operating expense
(the aggregate of distribution costs and administrative expenses) as a
percentage of revenue was 26.3% and increased by 0.6 percentage point
year-on-year to RMB5,276.5 million. The core operating profit (excluding
other income and other gains — net) increased by 7.4% to RMB4,378.6
million as compared with that for the same period in the previous year.

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for 2019FY
increased by 5.0% year-on-year and reached RMB3,649.2 million while the
margin of profit attributable to equity holders of the Company increased by 1.4
percentage points to 18.2%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SUMMARY (Continued)

Summary of operating strategies

The Group continued to adhere to its channel diversification strategy,
actively explored new marketing models and integrated online and offline
sales channels to cover more consumer groups. The implementation of
brand differentiation and product diversification strategies facilitated the
penetration of refined market and fitted well with the fragmented consumers’
demands. Brand recognition was strengthened, a healthy, joyful and
energetic brand image was created, and the interaction and emotional
exchange with consumers were enhanced by the use of a lively and diverse
digital marketing method. Through investing in digitalization, production
and supply chain flexibility was enhanced and overall operation and
management efficiency was improved.

COVID-19 has changed the consumption pattern and sense of spending
of people. The Group will seize the market opportunities, accelerate the
deployment of emerging channels such as e-commerce, smart vending
machines and community marketing, and guide our traditional distributors
to transform their sales models into a combination of both online and offline
sales. At the same time, we plans to launch brands featuring the quality of
health and introduce more food flavors to meet the needs of consumers who
are health conscious and prefer more diversity in choice.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SUMMARY (Continued)

Channel diversification

In 2019FY, excluding the impact of COVID-19 on sales, the Group’s
traditional distribution channels maintained its growth momentum. It was
mainly due to the initiatives taken by the Group, such as safeguarding
the interest of distributors by maintaining market order and implementing
effective incentive policies, intensively developing the market, strengthening
the weaker points of sales, and driving sales. The implementation of phased
incentive policies enhanced the market coverage of our potential products
and promoted the balanced development of our products. In 2020FY (from
1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021), the Group will guide distributors to ride
on the digital marketing trend and transform into a sales model combining
online and offline. On the one hand, it will be conducive to the expansion of
business scales of distributors and will thereby improve their working capital
efficiency. On the other hand, the Group’s coverage of points of sales will
be increased and better services will be provided to end points of sales and
thus achieve a win-win operation. The Group will also encourage distributors
to try other sales models which directly reach out to retailers or end
consumers to facilitate faster product movement throughout the channels.

Despite the impact of COVID-19, the profitability of modern channels in
2019FY was further improved as compared to that of 2018FY. This was
due to the optimization of our organizational structure and the sorting
out of customers’ matters, thereby improved the efficiency of resources
utilisation. In 2020FY, the Group will further improve the product structure,
optimize product packaging design to meet the characteristics of modern
channel sales, and increase the category penetration rate at hypermarkets,
supermarkets, and convenience stores to facilitate the sustainable
development of these channels.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SUMMARY (Continued)

Channel diversification (Continued)

Emerging channels continued to pursue diversification and maintain the
trend of rapid growth in 2019FY. In addition to continuing the cooperation
with many mainstream e-commerce platforms and actively expanding B2B,
B2C and 020 businesses, sales models such as vending machines, OEM
orders, Want Want official online store (FE{7BE##) (an online sales platform
operated by the Group), special channels and Hot-Kid theme stores were
also expanding rapidly. Through system upgrades of vending machines and
issuance of coupons, the Group improved consumers’ shopping experience
and actively developed end points of sales in second-tier and third-tier cities.
Emerging channels enabled the Group to expand its consumer base and to
enhance emotional interaction and mutual understanding with consumers,
which will be an important driving force for the sustainable development of
the Group in the medium to long term.

Exploring overseas markets and promoting “Want Want” brand to the rest
of the world to achieve brand internationalization are the medium to long
term business goals of the Group. In 2019FY, the Group’s overseas sales
achieved a mid-single digit growth year-on-year. Our first overseas sales
entity in Vietnam commenced its operation and with the setting up of a few
more overseas sales entities in the preparation. In addition to leveraging
on the strength of our “Want Want” brand to develop the overseas Chinese
market, the Group will also exploit its large variety of product offering and
distinctive features to further explore and develop the local markets abroad.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SUMMARY (Continued)

Brand building and upgrade of products

The Group implements a brand differentiation strategy with distinctive
positioning of different brands to cater for various market sub-segments and
provides consumers with products that are more suitable for their respective
needs. “Baby Mum-Mum” (B Lt 3535) is a maternal and child brand specifically
designed for babies and toddlers which satisfies consumer demands for
complementary foods for infants and young children without any additive
and free of allergens. The factory in Jiangxi designated for the production of
complementary foods for infants will officially start production in 2020. “Shi
Ji Yan” (&), a brand that uses “Nothing not Special” as its appeal, was
in cooperation with prominent KOLs (Key Opinion Leaders) and attracted
young consumer groups through new marketing methods such as live
broadcast. “Prime of Love” (EZ ) is a new brand that focuses on meeting
the needs of the elderly for health and nutrition. In 2019, “Prime of Love
Supreme Elderly Nutrition Drink” (B Z B R & k& &8X) was selected as one
of the Top 100 “iSEE Food Innovation” products. The Group also focuses on
the innovation of products, taking into account the fashionable trends and
nutritional needs in developing the taste of its products, and attending to
the practicality and customization of product design, which continue to bring
fresh eating experience to consumers.

Lively and diverse digital marketing

Through organizing diversified digital marketing activities, the Group passed
on the brand value of “people-oriented, self-confidence, unity” and the brand
image of “health, happiness, vitality”. With consumer experience as the core,
the Group explored the business models of e-commerce live broadcast and
private domain traffic, combined brand building and channel marketing, and
built a comprehensive “Want Want” fan ecosystem. Through new marketing
methods like “Zhong Cao” (meaning to recommend a product to others)
by KOLs, live broadcast and product customization, it strengthened the
social attributes of our products, broadened the reach of consumers, and
increased interaction and connection with consumers.
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SUMMARY (Continued)

Lively and diverse digital marketing (Continued)

The building of brand IP and cross-industry brand collaboration enabled
“Want Want” brand to build its cultural influence and enriched the images
of “Hot-Kid” brand. In 2019, when celebrating the 70th anniversary of the
founding of the People’s Republic of China and the 40th anniversary of
the establishment of the image of “Hot-Kid” IP, the Group released Hot-
Kid images of 56 ethnic groups and launched a series of products featuring
such images in the packaging. This captured the feeling among consumers
of their national and cultural identity and enhanced the fun of buying. In
addition, together with “China Children and Teenagers’ Fund” and Kugou
Music, the Group launched a charity project to share “Want Want” snacks
and give care to children from ethnic minorities in remote mountain areas
to deepen their understanding of ethnic culture and food safety. During the
outbreak of the COVID-19, Hot-Kid in anti-pandemic image was launched to
add positive energy and sense of responsibility to the “Want Want” brand.

The Group relies on social platforms (by setting up the Hot-Kid Club and
opening official public accounts on mainstream social platforms) to gain
insights into the characteristics of consumers and regularly posts interesting
topics and organizes activities to “play together” with consumers. At the
same time, it seeks to share the common interests of consumers and
analyses user data to drive product innovation so that the design of products
can better meet the needs of consumers.

During the “Double 11” (Singles’ Day) in 2019, a series of special peripheral
products were launched, including “ball cakes couch” (/88587 3), “| want to
pinch” (#4818), “soft soft pinch” (BXBk1Z), etc., which were well received by
consumers. The campaign won the bronze prize in the 11th Golden Mouse
Digital Media Award — Integration Category. In summer 2019, we launched
customized special drinks, namely “Hot-Kid Treasure Tea” (FE{¥E & %) and
“Hot-Kid QQ Cheese Cup” (FE{FQQZ £ #F), together with Nayuki, a popular
brand on the Internet, to let Want Want fans have a taste of instant-made
special drinks with “Want Want” characteristics. This crossover marketing
collaboration won the 6th TMA Mobile Marketing Award — Bronze Prize in the
cross-sector marketing category.
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SUMMARY (Continued)

The integration of industrial chain and finance enables the industrial
chain to operate efficiently

The Group uses internal and external professional resources to enable
partners of upstream and downstream industrial chain to obtain financial
value-added services.

Upstream Supply Chain — launching the first blockchain financing
product namely “Want Want Cloud Notes” (F Bt & %) jointly with
China Merchants Bank

In order to solve the financial needs of our supply chain partners, in July
2019, the Group teamed up with China Merchants Bank and introduced
a new supply-chain procurement payment model, i.e. “cloud notes”. By
presenting the “Want Want Cloud Notes” (FEFEZEFE), which is a sort of
promissory note of accounts payable issued by Want Want, supply chain
partners could obtain blockchain-based financing solutions from the bank
conveniently and at a competitive rate. The Group successfully issued the
first “Want Want Cloud Notes” (FEREZE ) to a carrier in April 2020 and the
carrier completed the financing in May 2020. Such service will be gradually
promoted to upstream suppliers. It helped upstream supply chain partners to
relieve their financial pressure especially during the time in early 2020 when
they encountered financing difficulties, which in turn helped the Group to
achieve upstream supply chain stability and the realization of a new model
of closed-loop financial management with the systemization of logistic flow,
financial flow and information flow.

Downstream distributors — continuing to provide “Loans to Small and
Medium-sized Enterprises” ("M#E ) to Want Want distributors

In order to solve the financial needs of our distributors during peak seasons,
the Group first implemented the distributor-dedicated marketing support
policy called “Loans to Small and Medium-sized Enterprises” (‘NMEEFR) in
2012. In recent years, the Group cooperated with China Merchants Bank,
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, WeBank and Postal Savings Bank
of China plus MYBank (Alipay) to adopt various cooperation models to
provide multi-channel, multi-combination, multi-option, competitive and
convenient financing solutions for these distributors. During the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group promptly and actively cooperated with various banks
in cooperation to launch financial relief and support policies to help these
distributors to resume their normal operation and business activities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVENUE

Due to the impact of COVID-19 on the Group’s sales in the fourth quarter
of 2019FY, total revenue of the Group amounted to RMB20,094.5 million in
2019FY, representing a decrease of 3.0% as compared with that of 2018FY.
The three key product segments maintained a balanced development. The
aggregate revenue from rice crackers and snack foods segments accounted
for 51.0% of the total revenue of the Group while revenue from the dairy
products and beverages segment accounted for 48.8%.

Rice crackers

Revenue from rice crackers segment for 2019FY was RMB5,611.4 million,
representing a decrease of 3.5% as compared with that of 2018FY. The two
main reasons for the decrease are: (1) the sales of low-margin sub-brand
rice crackers were intentionally decreased; and (2) some Chinese New
Year products were adversely affected by COVID-19. Sales of gift packs,
which were usually consumed during the Chinese New Year, nevertheless
achieved a single-digit growth rate in the 90-day CNY Sales Period in 2020
as compared with that of the CNY Sales Period in 2019. The sales of rice
crackers in overseas regions also continued to grow.

In 2019FY, the Group carried out a variety of marketing activities, such as
“Got Rice” rice crackers festival, launch of new products featuring 56 ethnic
IP in the packaging, and a number of other activities for consumers so that
consumers could keep the feeling of novelty in rice crackers products. The
rapid expansion of emerging channels such as vending machines, theme
stores and OEM orders improved the coverage of sales channels. The
forthcoming new rice crackers products will focus more on the nutrition and
taste in the selection of raw materials and the blending of flavors to meet
consumers’ increasing demands for health.

Gift pack products have maintained a single-digit compound growth rate in
recent years. Product designs have been gradually developed towards the
direction of diversification. In 2019FY, gift packs sold through traditional
distribution channels emphasized the image of “Brilliant Mouse” ($%E) and
“Bring Luck back Home” (% EEEIZX), which was in line with the traditional
Chinese New Year consumption culture. Gift packs sold by emerging
channels emphasized more on individuality and customization which
increased the social attributes of the products and met the specific needs of
young consumers. The product category of gift packs will continue to extend
towards mid-to-high end gift boxes and those for daily consumption. Sales
through emerging channels will be strengthened to cater for purchases for
different occasions and different recipients.
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REVENUE (Continued)

Dairy products and beverages

Notwithstanding the impact brought by the COVID-19, dairy products
and beverages segment still achieved a revenue of RMB9,813.4 million
in 2019FY, representing an increase of 0.9% year-on-year. The revenue
of “Hot-Kid milk”, which accounted for over 90% of the revenue of dairy
products and beverages, increased by 1.9% year-on-year.

Revenue of “Hot-Kid milk” has maintained a growing trend since 2017.
Our lively and diverse digital marketing activities have kept the image of
“Hot-Kid” IP vivid and young and reduced the gap with its consumers. A
diversified channel operation has increased the product’s overall market
coverage. Traditional distribution channels have maintained growth for three
consecutive years, driven by the solid foundation of operations at retail level
and refined management which thereby increased the coverage of points of
sales. By strictly controlling the market order, managing the inventory level
at end points of sales and accelerating the product turnover in the market,
the interests of distributors were effectively secured. Emerging channels
enriched the consumption scene and modes of youngsters. Product
offerings were expanded. “Hot-Kid Pure Milk” (EE{F£443) which is made
from 100% raw milk and rich in calcium and milk protein and “Nuts Milk” (B
R413) have gained popularity among consumers once they were made
available on e-commerce channels.

Sub-category beverages with distinctive packaging and taste, such
as “Pocket Juice Drinks” ($1%) and “Lactic Acid Bacteria” (ZL.EAE),
strengthened the display at retail outlets and enhanced the interaction with
consumers. Vending machine operation expanded the consumption scene
and resulted in a new breakthrough in sales volume. Products with low-
sugar and refreshing taste such as “Lactic Acid Bacteria” (FLBE) and
“O-Bubble Fruit Milk” (OY85R13) as well as fashionable specialty drinks like
“Plant Drinks” (fE¥J8X) and “Extract Tea Drinks” (1#25%%&X) will be launched
in 2020 to satisfy the market demand for healthy and trendy beverages.

Snack foods

In 2019FY, revenue of snack foods decreased by 9.2% to RMB4,634.2
million as compared with that of 2018FY. It was mainly due to the impact of
COVID-19 on sales and the weather condition in summer of 2019 which was
unfavourable to and adversely affected the sales of popsicles. Excluding the
impact of COVID-19, products accounted for more than half of snack foods
revenue (mainly candies, jellies, etc.) achieved a single-digit growth rate.
Product upgrades and expansion of emerging channels have become the
main driving forces for the growth of snack foods.
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REVENUE (Continued)

Snack foods (Continued)

Despite being affected by COVID-19, the revenue of candies managed to
post a mid-single digit growth rate while jellies also achieved certain growth,
which were mainly benefited from the implementation of the products’
operation strategy, i.e. the intensive cultivation of existing products and
active development of distinctive new products. At the same time of
exploring the market potential of existing products and motivating our sales
teams and channel sales, new products with unique features were also
developed which have broadened our consumer base and enhanced the
feeling of novelty and experience of consumers. Such new products include
“QQ juicy gummy” (QQZEIR) and “Super QQ” (BQQ) which emphasize their
chewy textures. These new products have attracted the young consumer
groups which in turn steadily pushed the growth of QQ gummy. The softest
jelly pudding, “Soft Pudding” (45 T ), is a perfect blend of real juice and
New Zealand imported milk source. The crispy coconut jelly also brings a
rich taste and is loved by a lot of female consumers. “Aiyo Mochi Q Rice
Noodles” (T M) i fBQK#MH), which brings multi-layer of “Q” textures, won
the 2nd “iSEE Food Innovation Award” for daily food and became a leading
performer in the new spree of consumption.

Due to the unfavourable weather condition in the summer of 2019 and
the impact of COVID-19 on our operations in the spring of 2020, the
sales of popsicles in 2019FY were faced with relatively great challenges.
Nevertheless, despite the unfavorable external environment, the Group, on
the one hand, strengthened the inventory management at the end points of
sales to ease our distributors 'operating pressure, and ensured the healthy
circulation of products in channels. On the other hand, we also actively
developed new products and new flavors and expanded multi-channel sales.
In 2020FY, the Group plans to introduce new flavors of “Dongchi” (5%1) with
the well-known Hot-Kid Milk flavor and red bean flavor, to further expand
the market share of this widely received product. By taking advantage of the
characteristics of popsicles that can be transported at room temperature and
consumed after being frozen, the Group will extend the sales channels and
strengthen sales in convenience stores, supermarkets as well as emerging
channels so as to increase the market coverage of these products.
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BB W& D

Management Discussion and Analysis

COST OF SALES

The cost of sales of the Group for 2019FY amounted to RMB10,439.5
million, representing a decrease of 7.7% as compared with that of 2018FY.
It was mainly due to the slight decline in sales and the decrease in cost
of certain key raw materials used by the Group such as carton boxes and
rice in 2019FY as compared with those of the same period in the previous
year. The Group will continue to optimize the planning of production lines
and speed up the automation process, and make use of big data and digital
platforms to improve production management efficiency and to provide
strong support for the implementation of differentiated marketing strategies.

GROSS PROFIT

Benefiting from the product-mix optimization and decrease in the cost of
certain key raw materials, the gross profit margin of the Group for 2019FY
increased by 2.6 percentage points to 48.0% as compared with that of the
previous year. Gross profit amounted to RMB9,655.0 million, representing
an increase of 2.7% over that of the previous year. The Group will continue
to improve production efficiency and optimize product mix to maintain the
healthy profitability of its products.

Rice crackers

The gross profit margin of rice crackers segment was 46.1% for 2019FY,
representing an increase of 2.9 percentage points as compared with that
of 2018FY. This increase in gross margin was due mainly to the Group’s
strategic decision to cut down the supply of low-margin sub-brand rice
crackers and the decrease in cost of rice, a key raw material, in 2019FY.

Dairy products and beverages

The gross profit margin of dairy products and beverages segment was
49.0% for 2019FY, representing an increase of 1.9 percentage points as
compared with that of 2018FY. Such increase was attributable mainly to the
optimization of product structure and the launch of new products with high
gross profit margin. Furthermore, the decrease in cost of some of the key
packaging materials as compared with that of the previous year, also had an
impact on the increase in the gross profit margin of this segment.

Snack foods

In 2019FY, the gross profit margin of snack foods segment was 48.4%,
representing an increase of 3.7 percentage points as compared with that of
the previous year. The increase was attributable mainly to the launch of new
products with high gross profit margin and optimization of product structure.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

DISTRIBUTION COSTS

The distribution costs for 2019FY amounted to RMB2,791.1 million,
representing a decrease of RMB193.6 million or 6.5% as compared with
that of 2018FY. Distribution costs as a percentage of revenue decreased by
0.5 percentage point to 13.9%, among which, labour costs as a percentage
of revenue decreased by 0.3 percentage point to 5.4% as compared with
that of 2018FY and advertising and promotion expenses as a percentage of
revenue decreased by 0.2 percentage point to 2.9% as compared with that
of 2018FY, which were mainly due to the continuous efficiency improvement
of its sales staff and the efficient and effective use of resources through
systematic and precise data management.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses for 2019FY amounted to RMB2,485.4
million, representing an increase of RMB147.3 million or 6.3% as compared
with that of 2018FY. Administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue
was 12.4%, representing an increase of 1.1 percentage points from that
of 2018FY. This was mainly attributable to the increase in research and
development expenses as a result of the implementation of the brand and
product diversification strategies. In addition, the adjustment in employees’
salaries also had an impact.

OPERATING PROFIT

Owing to the increase in gross profit margin in 2019FY, the operating
profit of the Group increased by RMB219.5 million to RMB4,805.9 million,
representing an increase of 4.8% as compared with that of 2018FY. The
operating profit margin increased by 1.8 percentage points to 23.9% as
compared with that of the previous year.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
The Group’s income tax expense for 2019FY was RMB1,412.5 million, and
the income tax rate, which was the same as that of 2018FY, was 28.0%.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for 2019FY amounted
to RMB3,649.2 million, representing an increase of 5.0% as compared with
that of 2018FY. The margin of profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company increased by 1.4 percentage points to 18.2%.
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BB W& D

Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash and borrowings

We finance our operations and capital expenditure primarily by cash flows
generated from internal operations as well as banking facilities provided
by our principal bankers. As at 31 March 2020, our bank and deposits
balances amounted to RMB17,256.9 million (31 March 2019 (Restated):
RMB17,160.4 million) (in which, RMB accounted for approximately 96.5%,
being approximately RMB16,648.0 million), representing an increase of
RMB96.5 million as compared with that as at 31 March 2019.

As at 31 March 2020, our total borrowings amounted to RMB8,880.7 million
(31 March 2019 (Restated): RMB9,517.4 million), representing a decrease
of RMB636.7 million as compared with that as at 31 March 2019. Short-
term borrowings amounted to RMB587.1 million (31 March 2019 (Restated):
RMB1,743.9 million), representing a decrease of RMB1,156.8 million
as compared with that as at 31 March 2019, and long-term borrowings,
including the guaranteed bonds issued, increased by RMB520.1 million to
RMB8,293.6 million (31 March 2019 (Restated): RMB7,773.5 million).

As a result, as at 31 March 2020, net cash of the Group amounted to
RMB8,376.3 million (31 March 2019 (Restated): RMB7,643.1 million),
representing an increase of 9.6% as compared with that as at 31 March
2019.

In April 2017, the Group issued 5-year term guaranteed bonds with a face
value of US$500.0 million and a coupon rate of 2.875% (the “Bonds”). As at
31 March 2020, the balance of the Bonds payable amounted to US$496.4
million (31 March 2019: US$494.8 million).

In June 2018, the Group issued private placement notes in an amount of
RMB500.0 million for a term of 1 year with coupon rate of 5.4% per annum
(“Private Placement Notes”) in the interbank market of the People’s Republic
of China. The Private Placement Notes were fully settled at maturity in June
2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (Continued)

Cash and borrowings (Continued)

The Group’s net gearing ratio (total borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents as a ratio of total equity (excluding non-controlling interests)) as
at 31 March 2020 was -0.55 time (31 March 2019 (Restated): -0.50 time). At
present, we maintain sufficient cash and available banking facilities for our
working capital requirements and for capitalizing on any potential investment
opportunities in the future. The management will from time to time make
prudent financial arrangements and decisions to address changes in the
domestic and international financial environment.

Cash flow

For 2019FY, our cash and cash equivalents increased by RMB96.5 million.
Among which, RMB4,845.3 million of net cash inflow was generated from
our operating activities, representing an increase of 11.3% as compared with
that of 2018FY. Net cash outflow for financing activities was RMB4,490.3
million, consisted mainly of dividend payments of RMB3,100.5 million and
net cash outflow for repayments of borrowings of RMB1,094.9 million. The
net cash outflow for investment activities was RMB291.9 million.

Capital expenditure

For 2019FY, our total capital expenditure amounted to RMB296.1 million
(2018FY: RMB381.8 million). We spent approximately RMB103.9 million,
RMB74.78 million and RMB55.78 million for expansion of factory buildings
and facilities including plant and equipment and upgrade of some of the
old plant and production facilities for the three key product segments (i.e.
rice crackers, dairy products and beverages and snack foods) respectively
to prepare for the further growth of the Group. The remaining capital
expenditure was made mainly for the purpose of adding facilities for
information technology, packaging, etc.

The above capital expenditure was financed mainly by our internally
generated cash flows and banking facilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (Continued)

Inventory analysis

Our inventory consists primarily of finished goods, goods in transit and work
in progress for rice crackers, dairy products and beverages, snack foods
and other products, as well as raw materials and packaging materials.

The following table sets forth the number of our inventory turnover days for
the year ended 31 March 2020 and for the year ended 31 March 2019:
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Inventory turnover days FERAB XY 90 80

As at 31 March 2020, the inventory balance amounted to RMB2,746.2
million (31 March 2019 (Restated): RMB2,387.7 million).

As sales of the Group was adversely affected by the pandemic during the
fourth quarter of 2019FY, the inventory turnover slowed down slightly. With
the gradual recovery of the sales momentum, the working capital efficiency
has also gradually returned to normal.

Trade receivables

Our trade receivables represent the receivables from our credit sales to
customers. The terms of credit granted to our customers are usually 60 to
90 days. Our sales to most of the customers in China are conducted on a
cash-on-delivery basis. We only grant credit to customers in our modern
distribution channels and certain emerging channels, which then on-sell our
products to end-consumers of the Group.

The following table sets forth the number of our trade receivables turnover
days for the year ended 31 March 2020 and for the year ended 31 March
2019:
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (Continued)

Trade payables

Our trade payables mainly relate to the purchase of raw materials on credit
from our suppliers with credit terms generally between 30 days and 60 days
after receipt of goods and invoices.

The following table sets forth the number of our trade payables turnover
days for the year ended 31 March 2020 and for the year ended 31 March
2019:
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Pledge of assets
As at 31 March 2020, none of the assets of the Group was pledged.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

For 2019FY, our average number of employees was approximately 42,572,
representing a decrease of 3,528 employees as compared with the average
number of employees for the year ended 31 March 2019. This was mainly
due to the enhancement of production automation and the improvement of
the sales management efficiency which led to a reduction in the demand
for corresponding personnel. Our total remuneration expenses for 2019FY
amounted to RMB3,839.8 million, representing a decrease of 4.4% as
compared with that of 2018FY. The remuneration package of our employees
includes fixed salary, commissions and allowances (where applicable), and
performance-based year-end bonuses having regard to the performance of
the Group and that of the individual staff.

Our Group always concerns about the skills of our employees and has
invested significant amount of resources in continuing education and training
programmes for our employees. Training programmes, both external and
internal, are provided to relevant staff as and when required to constantly
improve their professional knowledge and skills.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The presentation currency of the Group is RMB, but the Company’s
functional currency is still USD. More than 90% of our operating activities
are conducted in the Chinese mainland. Our Chinese mainland subsidiaries’
functional currency is RMB. The Group’s foreign exchange risks arise mainly
from procurement of raw materials and equipment from overseas, overseas
dividend payments and certain recognised assets and liabilities.

As procurement of raw materials and equipment from overseas and USD
denominated borrowings of the Group are mainly recognised in the financial
statements of the subsidiaries of the Group whose functional currency are
USD, the assets and liabilities subject to foreign exchange risks are minimal
and the relevant risk exposure after offsetting is not significant. As such,
RMB does not have a significant impact on exchange gains and losses
presented on the “Other gains — net” section of the consolidated income
statement. During the year, the Group did not hedge against its foreign
exchange risks.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of US2.42 cents
per share for the 2019FY, amounting to approximately US$300 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB2,125 million). In addition, taking into
account the actual financial situation of the Group, the Board recommended
the payment of a special dividend of US1.10 cents per share for the
2019FY, amounting to approximately US$137 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB967 million). The total amount of the above proposed
final dividend and special dividend would amount to approximately US$437
million (equivalent to approximately RMB3,092 million). Including the interim
dividend of US0.64 cent per share, totaled US$79 million (equivalent to
RMB557 million) paid in December 2019, the total amount of proposed
dividends for 2019FY would be US4.16 cents per share and the total
amount would be approximately US$516 million, representing an increase of
21% as compared with the total amount of dividend paid for the year ended
31 March 2019.
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Corporate Governance Report

Our Company, together with its subsidiaries, are committed to maintain and
uphold high standards of corporate governance practices and procedures.
We recognize the value and importance of achieving high corporate
governance standards to promote corporate transparency and accountability
and to enhance shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

We had, throughout the year ended 31 March 2020, complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for
the deviations from the code provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1 for the reasons
explained in this Corporate Governance Report.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance practices
with reference to the latest developments in corporate governance. The
key corporate governance principles and practices of our Company are
summarized below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

We have adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules regarding directors’ securities transactions. Formal written notices,
together with a copy of the Model Code, are sent to our directors (“Directors”)
prior to the commencement of the periods of 30 days immediately preceding
the publication date of our interim results and 60 days immediately
preceding the publication date of our annual results, as a reminder that
Directors must not deal in any securities of the Company during those
periods up to and including the date of publication of the results. Having
made specific enquiries with our Directors, all of them confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
regarding directors’ securities transactions throughout the year ended 31
March 2020.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Roles of the Board

The Board assumes responsibility for the leadership and control of our
Group and is also collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Group by directing and supervising its affairs. Key matters and decisions
which are reserved for the Board include those relating to:

. the objectives, policies, business plans and strategic directions of our
Group;

. overseeing and evaluating the Group’s operating and financial
performance;

. the approval of our Group’s operating and capital expenditure budgets,
interim and annual financial results and the publication thereof, major
financial arrangements and investment proposals, material contracts
and transactions, notifiable transactions, non-exempt connected
transactions/continuing connected transactions, declarations
of dividend, Directors’ appointment or re-election following the
recommendations by the Nomination Committee and other matters
which need to be dealt with by the Board;

. establishing and maintaining the risk management and internal control
systems and ensuring their effectiveness; and

. ensuring our Group has in place adequate accounting systems and
appropriate human resources to fulfill the accounting and financial
reporting functions.

Our management team, which possesses extensive experience and industry
knowledge, is led by the executive Directors and has been delegated by the
Board with the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management
and implementation of strategies approved by the Board in relation to the
business and operations of our Group. In addition, the Board has also
delegated certain specific responsibilities to the various Board committees,
namely, the audit and risk management committee (the “Audit and Risk
Management Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and the strategy committee (the “Strategy Committee”). Each of the Board
committee operates within its respective terms of reference which clearly
defines its respective duties and authorities. Further details of these
committees are set out on pages 91 to 100 in this Annual Report.
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TEER|E
Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Corporate governance functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as specified in Code D.3.1 of the CG Code, including:

. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management;

. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the employees and the Directors of the
Company; and

. to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions as
set out in the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

Composition of the Board

As at 31 March 2020, the Board consisted of 15 Directors, comprising 7
executive Directors, 3 non-executive Directors and 5 independent non-
executive Directors, as below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung*

Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. Huang Yung-Sung (Chief Marketing Officer)

Mr. Chu Chi-Wen (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui

Ms. Lai Hong Yee

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Maki Haruo

Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Toh David Ka Hock

Dr. Pei Kerwei

Mr. Hsieh Tien-den

Mr. Lee Kwok Ming

Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang*

# Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung was re-designated as an executive Director on 1 July
2019
* Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang was appointed as an independent non-executive Director

on 21 August 2019

82 2019/2020%#k | ANNUAL REPORT

EEg@

EERRAE

EEE R ERELEEETAMRID.3.1
REERERRE - B

o HERBIAQATDNEESABER
EE

° RIAREZEZIRSREEASHE
IRIFESEER

s RIUREEAQFEETEEREE
RERHWBERRER

e HIE - RARERAQNTEIRES
HETEARERFMWE) s &

s MNAQREIFTEEEGTRIFEHN
AR ER R EEEERR/RERN
BV o

EEg2AK
2020638310 EEEHISBRESA
R BRETBRYITES 3BHPTEERS
BBUEHITESE > T ©
HITES

BOTRRL A (FERITEAEE)
BAEh g

BHREE (BFEEEE)
BKMEE (THEHR)
KRB (B HAEE)

B LE

REELL

FHITEE
BB (B E)
MBEXREE

B EBELE
BIUFHITES
BRERE

BnEEt

FRIZEE

RIS E

BRI L

# BAPREN2019F7 A1 BREANITES

* BEBAER2019F8 21 HEZERE
MFHITES



9 B BEBE =R B PR/ R Want Want China Holdings Limited

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationship amongst them (if
any) are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management”
in this Annual Report. In addition, an updated list of Directors of the
Company with their roles and functions is available on our website and that
of the HK Stock Exchange.

We have arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance for
our Directors and officers.

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made by shareholders at a general
meeting or by the Board upon recommendation by the Nomination
Committee. In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity before making recommendation to the Board.

The Company has entered into formal letters of appointment with all
Directors setting out their duties and major terms and conditions of their
appointments.

Currently, our non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
do not have specific terms of appointment, which deviates from the code
provision A.4.1 which provides that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.

The articles of association of our Company (the “Articles of Association”)
provide that all our Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one-third of our
Directors for the time being or, if the number is not a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation and offer themselves for re-election. As such, the Board considers
that sufficient measures have been in place to ensure our Company’s
corporate governance practice in this aspect provides sufficient protection for
the interests of shareholders to a standard commensurate with that of the CG
Code.
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TEER|E
Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors (continued)

The Articles of Association also provide that any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office
only until the Company’s next general meeting immediately following his/her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

The Directors who shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 18 August 2020 (the “2020 AGM”)
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election are set out on page 127
in this Annual Report.

Independence of independent non-executive Directors

Following the passing away of Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou on 19 June 2019, the
Company is not in compliance with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, which
stipulates that the Company must appoint independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the Board. However, following the
appointment of Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang with effect from 21 August 2019, the
Company has been in compliance with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rule.

We have complied with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules in relation to the
appointment of at least one independent non-executive Director possesses
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Each independent non-executive Director is neither interested in the
securities or business of the Company nor connected with any Director,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company. We have also received a written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director confirming his independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and consideration was also
given to all independent non-executive Directors who have served on the
Board for more than nine years. We therefore consider each of them to be
independent.

The independent non-executive Directors are expressly identified as such

in all corporate communications of the Company that disclose the names of
the Directors.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly on a quarterly basis with additional meetings
being convened as and when necessary.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, other than written resolutions passed
by all the Directors, six Board meetings were held mainly to:

. review and discuss the Group’s business development strategies;
. review and monitor the Group’s operating and financial performance;

. review the impacts of the outbreak of COVID-19 on the Group and
to consider the necessary emergency measures and appropriate
adjustments to business strategies and future plans required to
minimize the impact brought by the outbreak and mitigate associated
risks;

. review and monitor the overseas market expansion plans and progress
e.g. the construction of the Vietnam factory and the establishment of
sales subsidiaries in various countries in the Southeast Asia region;

. approve the adoption of the dividend policy;

. approve the appointment of a new Director, re-designation of a
Director and change of composition of Board Committees;

. implement various transformation programs e.g. procurement
excellence transformation program and monitor their implementation
and progress;

. consider and approve major investment proposals and financing

arrangements;

. review and approve a connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions;

. review and approve the financial results for the year ended 31 March

2019 and for the six months ended 30 September 2019 and the
publication thereof;

. declare the payment of interim dividend and to make recommendation
of the final and special dividends for shareholders’ approval at the
annual general meeting; and

. review and approve the disclosures in the interim and annual reports
and the environmental, social and governance report with regards to
the Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules and CG Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company convened an annual
general meeting.
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TEERRE
Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EFg @
Directors’/Committee members’ attendance B ZESHEHERR
Directors’/Committee members’ attendance at the Board meetings, Board REZ2020F3A31BLEEE » REE &
committee meetings and annual general meeting during the year ended 31 EEgREHEEEE EETZEEFREK
March 2020 is set out in the following table. BREBAFASHHEMRENRTE

Meetings attended/held®

HERY ERETAHY

Audit and Risk
Remuneration Management Nomination Strategy General
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting®
EHRRER

Name of Directors B3y £ yHzEg EEZEE REZEE RHEEE REAED
Executive Directors HIEE
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng® EOTRRED 5/5@) NIA NIA N/A 1n 11"
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung BAmEE 5/58) 414 NIA 22 1" 17
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia ERREE 5/568) NIA NIA NIA 1" 17
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BEANEE 5/5@) N/A N/A N/A 11 1N
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen RENRE 5150 N/A N/A N/A 1N 1N
Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui EEEE 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 1" 1N
Ms. Lai Hong Yee PRERT 6/6 NIA NIA NIA 17 17
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun BEYI%E 516 N/A N/A N/A 1N 1N
Mr. Maki Haruo BERLE 4/59 N/A N/A N/A NIA 1N
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien BYBEE 5/568) NIA NIA NIA NIA 1"

Independent non-executive Directors ~ BUFHTEE

Mr. Toh David Ka Hock® SRELEY 6/6 44 6/6 212 NIA 10
Dr. Pei Kerwei®! BRfEELO 6/6 414 6/6 22 1" 17
Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou® ERREEO 112 0 112 01 NIA NIA
Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen WRECEE 5/6 4/4 5/6 212 n 11
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming ZEREE 6/6 414 6/6 212 " 17
Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang™ BRREED 33 22 33 0/0 1" NIA
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Directors’/Committee members’ attendance (continued)

Notes:

M

@)

®)

4)

®)

(6)

@)

®)

The denominator number represents the maximum number of meetings
held during the period in which the individual was a Board member or Board

committee member (as the case may be). “N/A” denotes not applicable.

Annual general meeting of the Company held on 20 August 2019 (the “2019
AGM”).

Chairman of the Board and Strategy Committee.

Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and Remuneration

Committee.

Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou passed away on 19 June 2019 and ceased to be
an independent non-executive Director and a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee, Audit and Risk Management Committee and

Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
and a member of each of the Audit and Risk Management Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Strategy
Committee on 21 August 2019.

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung, Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia, Mr. Huang
Yung-Sung, Mr. Chu Chi-Wen, Mr. Maki Haruo and Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien
did not attend the Board meeting that was specifically called to consider a
continuing connected transaction that each of them was considered to have
an interest in the transaction pursuant to the relevant requirements under the
Listing Rules and the Articles of Association. Accordingly, they did not vote on

the Board resolutions approving the transaction.

In addition, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with the independent

non-executive Directors without the presence of the other Directors in
November 2019.
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TEER|E
Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’/Committee members’ attendance (continued)

The Board, having considered the directorships and major commitments of
each Director and the attendance rate of each Director at Board meetings
and applicable Board committee meetings, is satisfied with the level of
time commitment given by each Director in fulfilling his responsibilities as a
director during the year ended 31 March 2020.

Board Proceedings
Regular Board meetings for each year are generally scheduled in advance
to give Directors adequate time to plan their schedules to attend the
meetings. Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board meetings, reasonable
notice would be given.

One of the important roles of the Chairman is to lead the Board to ensure
that the Board operates effectively and fully performs its responsibilities. All
Directors were encouraged to actively participate in the discussion at Board
meetings, and the Chairman has allowed sufficient time for discussion of
issues to ensure that Board decisions fairly reflect the consensus of the
Board.

The Chairman has ensured that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman has delegated
the responsibility for drawing up the agenda for each Board meeting to the
company secretary. The agenda and the accompanying Board papers are
generally circulated to all Directors at least three days before the intended
date of a regular Board meeting (and as soon as practicable for ad hoc
Board meetings). Directors are invited to include any matters which they
believe to be appropriate in the agenda of regular Board meetings and
they have full and direct access to the advice and services of the company
secretary whenever necessary. The Chairman has also ensured that all the
Directors are properly briefed on issues to be discussed at Board meetings,
and that all the Directors would receive adequate information, which is
complete and reliable, in a timely manner.

The Chairman is also responsible for promoting a culture of openness and
debate, facilitating the effective contribution of the non-executive Directors
in particular and ensuring constructive relations between the executive and
the non-executive Directors. The Chairman also has to ensure at least one
meeting is held with the independent non-executive Directors each year
without the presence of other Directors.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Proceedings (continued)

Detailed minutes are recorded for Board meetings and Board committee
meetings. Draft minutes of each Board meeting and Board committee
meetings are sent to Directors for their comments before being tabled at
the following Board meetings or Board committee meetings for approval.
Minutes of all Board meetings and meetings of Board committees are kept
by the company secretary and open for inspection at any reasonable time
following reasonable notice made by any Director.

If a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) or a Director
has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which
the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be discussed in a
physical Board meeting instead of being dealt with by way of circulation of
written resolution and the interested Director will abstain from voting on the
relevant Board resolutions in which he/she or any of his/her close associates
have a material interest and that he/she will not be counted in the quorum
present at the Board meeting. Independent non-executive Directors who,
and whose close associates, have no material interests in the transaction
should be present at such Board meeting.

Training for Directors

Every newly appointed Director, on appointment, will attend an induction
training program and receive a memorandum on the principal continuing
obligations and responsibilities to which the Company and its Directors are
subject under the Listing Rules and other laws and regulations.

Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Group’s performance
and reading materials on the updates on the latest developments and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements from time to time in order to enable the Directors to discharge
their duties. Directors may, where necessary, seek independent professional
advice at our Company’s expense.

Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Directors
are also invited to view the e-training and read related guidance materials
published by the HK Stock Exchange from time to time.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) ESg®
Training for Directors (continued) E51EI #®)
A summary of the training received by our Directors during the year ended EEREE2020F3A31HILFEFIETSHN
31 March 2020 is as follows: EIBEENT

Types of training (Note)
Name of Directors EEne 2R B (B =E)
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng ELTEREE A B
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung BB A B
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia BREREE A B
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BXKAEE A, B
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen REXFEE AB
Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui B L L A B
Ms. Lai Hong Yee REELL A B
Non-executive Directors HHTEE
Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun BEYIEE A B
Mr. Maki Haruo HEHERTE A B
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien B FEE A B
Independent non-executive Directors BUHBITEE
Mr. Toh David Ka Hock ERBEE A B
Dr. Pei Kerwei BREEt A, B
Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou (passed away on 19 June 2019) Z=EHFA 4% (KR2019466 5 19H Fttt) A, B
Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen BWMARIZEE A B
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming ZEBEE A B
Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang (appointed on 21 August 2019)  BEsR %% (KR2019F8521 HEZ(F) A, B,C
Notes: MIEE -

A.  Reading materials relevant to directors’ duties and responsibilities and A HEHEZFEREREENEHREERS
regulatory updates. BRI E o

B.  Attending or giving talks at briefings/in-house trainings/seminars/conferences/ B. HREHEEKIABEBEEENERE
forums or viewing e-training relevant to the business or directors’ duties. RSN e g RESREES

BRRERIEEN LIF -

C.  Induction training. C. BMEEI -
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same person.
Our Company deviates from this provision because Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng
performs both the roles of chairman and chief executive. Mr. Tsai is the
founder of our Group and has over 40 years of experience in the food and
beverages industry. Given the current stage of development of our Group,
the Board believes that vesting the two roles in the same person provides
our Company with strong and consistent leadership and facilitates the
implementation and execution of our Group’s business strategies. We shall
nevertheless review the structure from time to time in light of the prevailing
circumstances.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely the Remuneration
Committee, the Audit and Risk Management Committee (formerly known as
Audit Committee), the Nomination Committee and the Strategy Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the affairs of our Company. These
committees are established with written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Nomination Committee are available on our website and
the website of the HK Stock Exchange.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 18 February 2008.
Details of the duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are
set out in its terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee is established
primarily for the purpose of ensuring that we can recruit, retain and motivate
high quality personnel who are essential to the success of our Group and
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Director and senior management.

As at 31 March 2020, the Remuneration Committee comprised five
independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director and was
chaired by an independent non-executive Director.

According to its terms of reference, the Remuneration Committee shall
meet at least once a year. The Remuneration Committee met four times
during the year ended 31 March 2020. The attendance record of the
members at the Remuneration Committee meeting during such period is
shown on page 86 of this Annual Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2020:

. reviewed and recommended on the remuneration of the Directors and
the senior management and the payment of discretionary bonus;

. reviewed the current remuneration structure and package of the
Group’s Chairman;

. reviewed the Directors’ fee and recommended to the Board on the
proposed adjustments, and

. recommended the Director’s fee of the new Director.

The remuneration package for the executive Directors and the senior
management consists of two parts, namely a fixed component and a
variable incentive.

The fixed component comprises mainly salary, retirement benefit scheme
contributions and other allowances. Besides, an individual who serves on
the Board as an executive Director is also entitled to receive a fixed director
fee. The fixed component is determined with reference to individual’s
experience and qualifications, remuneration benchmark in the same industry
or industry with similar market capitalization and the prevailing market
conditions.

The variable incentive comprises discretionary bonus whose amount
is determined by the Board based on the Group’s and individual work
performance in the following ways:

According to the terms of the service contract entered into between Mr. Tsai
Eng-Meng (our Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, executive Director and
the chairman of our Strategy Committee) and the Company, the payment of
discretionary bonus is at the absolute discretion of the Board and depends
on a range of factors including but not limited to the performance of the
Group, individual’s performance, and the remuneration policy which may be
proposed by the Board from time to time. If the consolidated profits of the
Group before deductions for taxes but after deductions of the non-controlling
interests achieve a certain minimum level and if the Board exercises its
discretion to award such bonus, the Board may determine, at its discretion,
an amount which is no less than the amount which is calculated having
regard to a predetermined formula.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The discretionary bonus for other executive Directors and the senior
management depends upon the portion of the Group’s consolidated
profits after taxation for the year being allocated at a progressive rate to a
bonus pool according to the level of changes in the Group’s consolidated
profits after taxation for the year over the previous year. The distribution
of the bonus pool for each department and individual depends upon the
performance of their respective department and the individual concerned.
We took a 360-degree performance evaluation on both qualitative and
quantitative key performance indicators which mainly include financial
and operational indicators as well as indicators which measure the
satisfaction level in terms of the daily coordination and cooperation between
departments which work closely with each others.

Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
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March 2020 is set out below: HEBAEFHFMERIMT :
Number of
individuals
In the band of BN F AE
RMBO (HK$0) to AR¥07T (0% 7T)
RMB891,200 (HK$1,000,000) Z AR #891,2007T (1,000,00058 JT) 1
RMB891,201 (HK$1,000,001) AE#891,2017T (1,000,001 7T)
to RMB1,782,400 (HK$2,000,000) 2 ARE#51,782,4007T (2,000,00058 7T) 6

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in note 38 and note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 18 February 2008 and was
renamed Audit and Risk Management Committee on 1 December 2018.
Details of the duties and responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee are set out in its terms of reference. The Audit and Risk
Management Committee is established primarily for the purposes of
overseeing and reviewing the Group’s financial reporting, risk management
and internal control systems and evaluating internal controls and auditing
processes.

As at 31 March 2020, the Audit and Risk Management Committee
comprised five independent non-executive Directors and was chaired by an
independent non-executive Director.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit and Risk Management Committee (continued)
According to its terms of reference, the Audit and Risk Management

Committee shall meet at least twice a year. The Audit and Risk Management

Committee held six meetings during the year ended 31 March 2020 with

the external auditor present at four meetings. The attendance record of the

members at the Audit and Risk Management Committee meetings during

such period is shown on page 86 of this Annual Report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit and Risk

Management Committee during the year ended 31 March 2020:

94

reviewed and considered various risk management and controls
optimization projects;

reviewed the recent updates and development of accounting and
financial reporting standards and assessed their impacts on our
Group;

considered the major accounting and auditing matters raised by
external auditors and management’s responses;

discussed with the external auditor on the nature and scope of the
audit prior to the commencement of the audit for the year ended 31
March 2020;

reviewed the financial results, results announcements and financial
reports for the year ended 31 March 2019 and for the six months
ended 30 September 2019 with the management and external auditor,
and recommended them to the Board for approval;

reviewed the Group’s environmental, social and governance report for
the year ended 31 March 2019 with management;

reviewed the external auditor’s independence and approved the terms
of engagement of the external auditor;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit and Risk Management Committee (continued)

made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor, which is subject to the approval by shareholders at
the annual general meeting;

reviewed quarterly internal audit reports in respect of the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management systems and procedures
of the Group, whistle-blowing reports and the internal audit plans
for the year ended 31 March 2020, prepared by our internal audit
department;

discussed with the external auditor on our Group’s financial reporting
functions, in particular on the adequacy of resources of our Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function, qualifications and
experience of our staff and their training programs;

reviewed and approved the non-exempt connected transaction and
continuing connected transaction entered into by our Group during the
year ended 31 March 2020 and conducted an annual review of the
non-exempt continuing connected transactions of our Group;

reviewed the due diligence reports and financial valuation analysis of
an investment proposal; and

held a private session with external auditor in the absence of executive
Directors and management team.

Auditor's Remuneration
The fees charged by PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of the

Company, in respect of the audit service rendered to the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to RMB4,300,000.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee was established on 18 February 2008. Details

of the duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are set out in

its terms of reference. The Nomination Committee is established primarily

for the purpose of regularly reviewing the structure, size and composition of

the Board and making recommendations to the Board on nominations and

appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

As at 31 March 2020, the Nomination Committee comprised five
independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director and was
chaired by an independent non-executive Director.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) with effect from August 2013.

The Board reviewed and adopted the revised Board Diversity Policy
effective from 1 December 2018 in order to align with the amendments to
the Listing Rules and CG Code which came into effect on 1 January 2019.

The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach towards achieving diversity
on the Board. In considering the composition of the Board, the Board is of
the view that diversity can be considered from a number of perspectives,
including but not limited to professional qualifications, regional and industry
experience, educational and cultural background, skills, industry knowledge
and reputation, gender, ethnicity, language skills and length of service. The
above perspectives will be taken into account in determining the optimal
composition of the Board and where possible, should be balanced among
one another as appropriate. Appointments to the Board will be made based
on merits and the contributions that the individual is expected to bring to the
Board, with due regard to the benefits of diversity in the Board.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy on an ongoing basis.

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a director nomination policy (the “Director
Nomination Policy”) effective from 1 December 2018.

The Director Nomination Policy aims to:

. set out the criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of
directors of the Company;

. ensure that the Board of the Company has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company;
and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
. ensure the Board continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the following
criteria should be considered by the Nomination Committee or the Board;

. Character and integrity;

. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy
that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy;

. Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the
Board;

. Requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate would
be considered independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

. Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and gender
diversity;

. Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties as
a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company;
and

. Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s
business and succession plan and where applicable, may be adopted
and/or amended by the Board and/or the Nomination Committee from
time to time for nomination of directors and succession planning.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
The process in the nomination and appointment of directors of the Company

is briefly described as below;

(@)

Selection and Appointment of New Director

@)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

The Nomination Committee should, upon receipt of the proposal
on appointment of new director and the biographical information
(or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee should rank them by order of preference
based on the needs of the Company and reference check of
each candidate (where applicable).

The Nomination Committee should then recommend to the
Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for directorship, as
applicable.

For any person nominated by a shareholder for election as a
director at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee and/or the Board should evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should

make recommendation to shareholders in respect of the proposed election

of directors at the general meeting.

(b)

98

Re-election of Director at General Meeting

@)

(ii)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should review the
overall contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
director and his/her level of participation and performance on the
Board;

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should also review
and determine whether the retiring director continues to meet the
criteria as set out above;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
(b) Re-election of Director at General Meeting (continued)

(iii)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should then make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the proposed re-
election of director at the general meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect a candidate as a
director at the general meeting, the relevant information of the candidate will
be disclosed in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting in accordance with
the Listing Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the Director
Nomination Policy and where appropriate, makes recommendations on
changes to this Policy to the Board for consideration and approval.

According to its terms of reference, the Nomination Committee shall meet at
least twice a year. The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 31 March 2020. The attendance record of the members at the
Nomination Committee meetings during such period is shown on page 86 of
this Annual Report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2020:

. reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and made
recommendation to the Board on the Directors who should retire and
make themselves available for re-election at the 2019 AGM, pursuant
to the Company’s Articles of Association;

. considered the nomination of Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company, assessed his independence
and made a recommendation of his appointment to the Board;

. considered the re-designation of Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung as an
executive Director with effect from 1 July 2019 and his appointment as
a member of the Strategy Committee, which is proposed to the Board
for approval;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

. assessed the independence of all independent non-executive
Directors, consideration was given to Directors who have served on
the Board for more than nine years; and

. reviewed non-executive Directors’ time commitment in performing their
duties.

Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee was established on 30 June 2010. Details of the
duties and responsibilities of the Strategy Committee are set out in its terms
of reference.

The Strategy Committee is established primarily for the purpose of working
closely with the Board in formulating the medium and long-term strategic
plans of our Group for the continuous growth and sustainable competitive
advantages of our Group. It also proactively addresses issues relating to
management succession planning and overall human resources planning
and makes recommendations to improve operational efficiencies and
enhance competitiveness in order to capture market opportunities and
tackle future challenges. It will also make recommendations to the Board on
material investment and financial decisions as well as the establishment,
development and expansion of the Group’s business in all aspects.

As at 31 March 2020, the Strategy Committee comprised seven executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and four independent non-executive
Directors and was chaired by our Chairman.

According to its terms of reference, the Strategy Committee shall meet
at least once a year. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Strategy
Committee held one meeting to follow up with the management on the
progress of the procurement excellence transformation program, and results
achieved. The attendance record of the members at the Strategy Committee
meetings during such period is shown on page 86 of this Annual Report.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems of the Group:

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for establishing and
maintaining the Group’s risk management and internal control systems for
ensuring their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group’s risk management and internal control structure comprises
the Board, the Audit and Risk Management Committee, the internal audit
team and the management. To ensure the integrity and effectiveness
of risk management and internal controls on an ongoing basis, such
systems closely align with the COSO framework with constant optimization
and enhancement. Such systems are designed to achieve the following
objectives:

i providing reasonable assurance of the compliance with relevant rules
and regulations of our business operations, and safeguard of assets;

ii ensuring key risks that may impact the Group’s performance are
appropriately defined and managed; and

iii ensuring reliable financial accounting records are maintained in
accordance with the relevant accounting standards and regulatory
reporting requirements.

Risk Management System and its Main Features:

The Group recognizes that risk management is the prime responsibility of the
management that it has to identify, assess and monitor the risks relevant to
their business operations and take measures to mitigate risks in day-to-day
operations. Our internal audit team reviews the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, and regularly
reports to the management and the Audit and Risk Management Committee
on significant risks, results of risk analysis and status of risk mitigation
measures. The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Company
assists the Board in monitoring the effectiveness of risk management.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Risk Management System and its Main Features: (continued)

Our management team is equipped with internal control expertise to carry
out self-evaluation and assessment on the significant key risks so that
necessary measures would be taken to deal with the weak areas where
risks exist.

Our internal audit team reviews the Group’s risk management framework,
coordinates the risk identification and assessment procedures, strengthens
the communication with the management on the identified risks and impacts
to facilitate the implementation of risk mitigation measures, follows up the
progress of such measures, as well as summarising significant risks, other
risks and concerns in its quarterly report to the management and the Audit
and Risk Management Committee.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee discusses and reviews the risk
management and internal control systems with the internal audit team and
the management, and ensures that the Group has an effective system in
place to monitor and control the effectiveness of risk management.

Internal Control System and its Main Features:

The Group’s internal control activities are embedded in the operational
processes. The Group has clear written policies and operational procedures,
as well as the internal control system. All policies of the Group are conveyed
to the staff in a timely manner. A dedicated network platform is established
for the staff to access the Group’s policies. Regular training programs are
also provided to ensure compliance with the code of conduct by all our staff.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Internal Control System and its Main Features: (continued)

The Group has set up the whistle-blowing mechanism, such as the reporting
hotline, mailbox, and others for internal staff and interested third parties
to report any actual or suspected occurrence of improper conduct in the
Group. The internal audit team independently and objectively performs
specific investigation on such reported matters, formulates an appropriate
confidentiality system to avoid any form of harassment suffered by staff or
interested third parties who reported or cooperated with the investigation
and sets graded rewards based on the investigation results.

The Group’s internal audit team participates in the formulation of major
operational policies and procedures, performs audit on the implementation
of policies and assists the management in formulating countermeasures.

The Group’s internal audit team establishes standardized audit procedures
and develops the annual audit plan. Such procedures and plan are submitted
to the Audit and Risk Management Committee for approval. Internal audit
team puts the plan into execution as approved. The management performs the
self-assessment of internal control on the processes and procedures of each
operational cycles to obtain reasonable assurance that the internal control is
effective and to take measures to address the internal control weaknesses
identified. The internal audit team also audits the self-assessment results of the
management.

Our internal audit team communicates with the management the risks and
control weaknesses identified during the course of audit and recommends
for improvement measures. The management is responsible for ensuring
that the improvement measures are being implemented within a reasonable
timeframe whereas the internal audit team will conduct a follow-up review
to ensure that the improvement measures and solutions are effectively
implemented.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee receives quarterly reports from
the internal audit department which covers the internal audit plan, material
findings during the relevant period and the progress of implementation
of improvement measures by the management in response to the audit
findings. The quarterly reports also address matters concerned by the Audit
and Risk Management Committee members and the management, the
findings of special audit on specific key risk areas and recommendations for
improvement.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

The Board reviews the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems in place during that full financial year on a quarterly basis. For
the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board assessed the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems of the Company and
its subsidiaries by considering reviews performed by the Audit and
Risk Management Committee with the assistance of the management
team, internal audit team and external auditors. The annual review also
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions. Based on the assessment made by the Audit
and Risk Management Committee, management team and the internal
audit team, the Board is satisfied that there is an ongoing process in place
for identifying, assessing and managing the significant risks and material
internal controls (including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions) for our Group and the Board considers the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group as effective and
adequate.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information:

i The Company is aware of the requirement of timely disclosure of
inside information under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the
Listing Rules. Inside information shall be announced by designated
persons authorised to act as spokespersons in strict accordance with
the applicable laws and enactments prevailing in Hong Kong, and with
reference to the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued
by the Securities and Futures Commission; and

ii The Company has incorporated in its code of conduct strict prohibition
on unauthorized disclosure or use of confidential and inside
information. Furthermore, employees at certain levels and posts are
also required to sign the Agreement on Code of Ethics, Confidentiality
Obligations and Resolving Conflict of Interests.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2020 and of the
financial performance and cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2020,
and for ensuring that such statements are prepared in accordance with the
statutory requirements and the applicable accounting standards.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Details of the reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company
on the consolidated financial statements of our Group for the year ended 31
March 2020 are set out on pages 146 to 151 of this Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
The Company only has one class of shares. All shares are entitled to the
same voting rights and to dividends declared on a pari passu basis.

Method for convening an extraordinary general meeting

Any two or more shareholders, or any one shareholder which is a
recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)), holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company may, in accordance with the
requirements and procedures set out in the Articles of Association of the
Company, make a requisition to the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company and put forward proposals at the meeting.
The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written requisition which
must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 918, 9/F, Mira Place Tower A, 132
Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward new
resolutions at general meetings under Cayman Islands law or the Articles
of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to put forward a
resolution may request the Company to convene an extraordinary general
meeting in accordance with the procedures set out above.

Method for nominating directors

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person, other than a retiring director,
for election as a director of the Company at any general meeting (including
an annual general meeting), the shareholder shall lodge a written notice of
his/her intention to propose such person for election as a director with the
company secretary of the Company at Unit 918, 9/F, Mira Place Tower A,
132 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong during a period of at
least seven days commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the meeting convened for such election and ending no later
than seven days prior to the date of such meeting. Such written notice must
be accompanied by a notice in writing signed by the person to be proposed
of his/her willingness to be elected.
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PARTICULARS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)
Participation in general meetings

Each shareholder is entitled to receive notice of (in writing or by electronic
means) and attend every general meeting of the Company.

At any general meeting on a show of hands, every shareholder who is
present in person (or, in the case of a shareholder being a corporation by
its duly authorised representative) shall have one vote, and on a poll every
shareholder who is present in person (or, in the case of a shareholder
being a corporation by its duly authorised representative) or by proxy shall
have one vote for each share registered in his/her name in the register of
members of the Company. On a poll a shareholder entitled to more than
one vote is under no obligation to cast all his/her votes in the same way.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy with the
objectives of keeping shareholders and the investor community informed as
soon as reasonably practicable of the information on the Group and keeping
them abreast of the Company’s developments and ensuring that they are
provided with relevant, balanced and clear information in a timely manner.

The Board recognizes the importance of continuing communications with
our shareholders and investors and maintains ongoing dialogues with
them through various channels, including the Company’s annual general
meetings (“AGM”), analyst presentations following the release of the interim
and annual results as well as participation in investor conferences, etc..
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (continued)

The Company’s AGM is an important platform for direct communication
between the Board and its shareholders. The Chairman of the Board,
chairmen of all the Board committees and other Board members endeavor
to attend the AGM of the Company and answer queries from shareholders.
Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders and code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. The 2019 AGM was held in
Hong Kong on 20 August 2019. All Board members, including the chairman
of the Board and the chairmen of all the Board committees (or in their
absence, other members of the respective committees) and the external
auditor were available at the 2019 AGM to answer shareholders’ questions.
The 2019 AGM circular containing the notice of the AGM and other relevant
information of the proposed resolutions were sent to shareholders at least
20 business days before the 2019 AGM.

Attendance record of each individual Director at the 2019 AGM is shown on
page 86 of this Annual Report.

We maintain a website (www.want-want.com) to keep our shareholders and
the general public informed of our latest corporate news, interim and annual
results announcements, financial reports and other public announcements.

ERERRE

Corporate Governance Report

BERRERENRE &)

AAFZBRRBEAGEAHERREER
BNEETAr—  EEXFE RES
ZEBCIRERESEHMWRERELFE
RATRZRRBERE > WHERRNIR
B o RIBEEEETRRIEAG.TIRR
E BUFHITESRAMFEHITESRE
HERRAE  HERNEREGEENT
MR EE1 R EEESXERE
HEBRRBAFAE - AAT2019FKRA
FREEN2019FE8A20 A EHBEIT -
AAAZRESEHNERREEEEIER
FEEZES IR HUESERRERE
AEZEg v HMAKE) RIMNEZEEMITE
2019 RRBEFAEEZERERRIEEZ
BIRE o 2019F RRBF KGR BEREH TR
REFAENBEREMEBRRERN
ERENCN2019F BRRBF KEETA
BRD20EEEAFETRE

BESHE20195RRBF ARG 2 HER
SRENAF ISR ©

3 1F95% 48 #834 (www.want-want.com) 6] i 3R
RAZREBRAEEDHE WHRFEES
D BREREMAS -

2019/2020% 3 | ANNUAL REPORT 107



9 B BEBE AR BBR/A R Want Want China Holdings Limited

TEER|E
Corporate Governance Report

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
(continued)

We always welcome shareholders’ and investors’ views and input.
Shareholders may send their enquires in writing to the Board by addressing
them to our company secretary. The contact details of our company
secretary are as follows:

Address: The Company Secretary

Want Want China Holdings Limited
Unit 918, 9/F, Mira Place Tower A,
132 Nathan Road,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 27307780

Fax: (852) 27307781

Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the general meetings
of the Company. In addition, shareholders may contact Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the Hong Kong share registrar of
the Company, if they have any enquiries about their shareholdings and
entitlements to dividend.

For enquiries from institutional investors and securities analysts, please
contact our investor relations office at:

Address: The Investor Relations Office
Want Want China Holdings Limited
Unit 918, 9/F, Mira Place Tower A,
132 Nathan Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 27307780

Fax: (852) 27307781

Email: investor@want-want.com

COMPANY SECRETARY

Our company secretary, Ms. Lai Hong Yee, is a full-time employee of the
Company. For the year ended 31 March 2020, Ms. Lai confirmed that she
complied with the relevant professional training requirements under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
year ended 31 March 2020.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

TSAI Eng-Meng, aged 63, is our Chairman, Chief Executive Officer,
executive Director and also the chairman of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Tsai
is also a director of a number of the Group’s subsidiaries. He succeeded his
father to become the Group’s Chairman in April 1987. Mr. Tsai joined our
Group and began his career in the food and beverages industry in 1976 and
has over 40 years of experience in the industry. He was a council member of
the Standing Committee of Taiwan Confectionery, Biscuit and Floury Food
Industry Association, and the Food Development Association of Taiwan. In
June 2013, Mr. Tsai was awarded an honorary doctorate degree in business
studies from the Chinese Culture University in Taiwan in recognition of his
outstanding achievements in business operations and active contributions
to social welfare. In 2014, Mr. Tsai was included in the 2014 list of “The
Best-Performing CEOs in the World” released by Harvard Business Review.
In 2018, Mr. Tsai won the honor of meritorious entrepreneur on the 40th
Anniversary of Reform and Opening Up of the China Food Industry. Mr. Tsai
is a director of Want Power Holdings Limited and Norwares Overseas Inc.
which have discloseable interests in shares of the Company under Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Mr. Tsai is the father of Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung and Mr. Tsai Wang-
Chia and the uncle of Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien.

TSAI Shao-Chung, aged 39, is our executive Director and also a member
of our Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Strategy
Committee. Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung was our non-executive Director from July
2009 to June 2019 and was re-designated as our executive Director with
effect from 1 July 2019. Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung is also a director of a number
of the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung joined our Group in March
2001, following his graduation from the Canadian International School in
Singapore. He held various management positions within our Group and
had served management roles in several areas such as logistics, human
resources, information technology, planning and operations. Mr. Tsai Shao-
Chung is a director of IBF Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) and was a director of Union
Insurance Company (a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation) from 2007 to June 2020. He was also an independent non-
executive director of Netccentric Limited (a company listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange Limited) from 2015 to 2017. He has been a director of
the Straits Exchange Foundation since March 2009. Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung
is a director of Want Power Holdings Limited and Norwares Overseas Inc.
which have discloseable interests in shares of the Company under Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung is the son of Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, the elder
brother of Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia and a cousin of Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

TSAI Wang-Chia, aged 35, is our Chief Operating Officer, executive
Director and also a member of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Tsai Wang-
Chia is also a director of a number of subsidiaries of our Group. Mr.
Tsai Wang-Chia graduated from the Canadian International School in
Singapore in July 2003. He joined the Group in April 2004 and has over
15 years of experience in the food and beverage industry. He held various
management positions within our Group such as product marketing
and planning in the snack foods business unit and had also acted as a
manager in the Chairman'’s office. He was appointed as the deputy general
manager of the dairy business unit in May 2008 and was promoted to vice
president of the dairy and beverages business group in 2009. He was
appointed as the Chief Operating Officer of the Group in December 2012.
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia was awarded the “Outstanding Youth Award
(Technology Innovation)” by the Chinese Institute of Food Science and
Technology in 2015. He is a director of Want Power Holdings Limited and
Norwares Overseas Inc. which have discloseable interests in shares of the
Company under Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia is the son of Mr. Tsai
Eng-Meng, the younger brother of Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung and a cousin of Mr.
Cheng Wen-Hsien.

CHU Chi-Wen, aged 54, is our Chief Financial Officer, executive Director
and a member of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Chu graduated from
Michigan State University with a master’s degree in economics in 1992. He
also graduated with a master’s degree in professional accountancy from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong & Shanghai National Accounting Institute.
Mr. Chu has over 25 years of experience in financial management. Before
joining our Group in April 1997, Mr. Chu was a financial analyst for the
Taiwan Provincial Government from 1992 to 1995 and a finance supervisor
at Delta Electronics, Inc. from 1995 to 1996. He worked at Dialer & Business
Co. Ltd from 1996 to 1997 as an assistant finance manager.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

HUANG Yung-Sung, aged 67, is our Chief Marketing Officer, executive
Director and also a member of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Huang is also a
director of a number of subsidiaries of our Group. Mr. Huang graduated from
Taiwan Mingsin Junior College of Technology with a degree in engineering.
Mr. Huang has more than 30 years of experience in sales and marketing.
He joined our Group in January 1985 and was responsible for planning
and marketing affairs. Mr. Huang was the Group’s general manager for the
East China region from 1995 to 1998, being responsible for the Group’s
operations within such region. In 1999, Mr. Huang became a director of
the Group’s international sales division, being responsible for the Group’s
international sales operation. From 2002 until his appointment as the
Group’s Chief Marketing Officer on 1 March 2015, Mr. Huang served as the
marketing director of the China region.

TSAI Ming-Hui, aged 52, is the general manager of the Group’s Southeast
Asia Development Department, executive Director and also a member
of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Tsai is mainly responsible for the Group
business development and strategy in Southeast Asia. Meanwhile, he is
also responsible for the sales management, brand promotion and market
awareness of our products in Hong Kong and Macau. He is a director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Tsai graduated from Department
of Mechanical Engineering of Hsinpu Institute of Technology and joined the
Group in March 1995. He has over 20 years of experience in snack food,
beverage sales and team management. He was in a key management role
in the Group’s Taiwan sales department, Shanghai sales management
department, Central China sales region, and Hong Kong and Macau
regions, as well as the business unit general manager.

LAl Hong Yee, aged 52, is our company secretary, executive Director and
also a member of our Strategy Committee. Ms. Lai is a director of Leading
Guide Hongkong Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. Ms. Lai holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree in accounting from the City University of Hong
Kong. She has over 25 years of experience in company secretarial, finance,
accounting and auditing fields. Ms. Lai joined the Group in February 2008.
Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Lai worked at Gemalto Technologies Asia
Limited as financial controller for over 8 years. She is a fellow member
of both The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
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EEREREEAR

Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-executive Directors

LIAO Ching-Tsun, aged 68, is our Vice Chairman, non-executive Director
and also a member of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Liao graduated from
Taipei College of Maritime Technology with a degree in aquatic food
processing. Mr. Liao has more than 40 years of experience in the food and
beverages industry. He joined our Group in July 1977 and held various
positions within the Group such as vice president of the snack foods
business group, head of production section, head of quality control section,
deputy factory manager and factory manager of | Lan Foods Industrial Co.,
Ltd, a subsidiary of our Company. He is one of the pioneers in spearheading
the Group’s China operations. Mr. Liao was our executive Director from
November 2007 to December 2016 and was re-designated as a non-
executive Director with effect from 1 January 2017.

MAKI Haruo, aged 69, is our non-executive Director. Mr. Maki is the
president of ICCL, a listed company in Japan and one of the leading rice
cracker producers in Japan as well as our technical cooperation partner. Mr.
Maki graduated from Toyama National University with a bachelor’s degree.
Mr. Maki joined ICCL in 1976 and has served ICCL for over 40 years, and
was promoted to become its president in 1998. Mr. Maki joined our Group in
May 2001. He is a director of Want Want Japan Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the
Company.

CHENG Wen-Hsien, aged 57, is our non-executive Director. He graduated
from the Graduate School of Commerce of Waseda University with a
master’s degree in commerce. Mr. Cheng is the chairman of Hunan Want
Want Hospital Investment Management Co., Ltd. and the chief executive
officer of Hunan Want Want Hospital. Mr. Cheng joined our Group in August
2004. Mr. Cheng is the nephew of Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng and a cousin of Mr. Tsai
Shao-Chung and Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors

TOH David Ka Hock, aged 68, is our independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of our Audit and Risk Management Committee
and Remuneration Committee and also a member of our Nomination
Committee. Mr. Toh holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from the
University of New South Wales, Australia and is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in Australia. During the period from 1975 to 1990,
Mr. Toh worked at various accounting firms in Sydney and Hong Kong. Mr.
Toh joined the then Coopers and Lybrand, Singapore as a tax principal
in 1990 and later served as the head of corporate tax. After Coopers and
Lybrand merged with Pricewaterhouse to form PricewaterhouseCoopers,
Mr. Toh was the leader for providing tax advice on mergers and acquisition
transactions in Asia and the head of China Desk. Mr. Toh retired from
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Singapore in July 2007 and joined our Group
in November 2007. He was an independent commissioner of the Board of
Commissions of PT. Gajah Tunggal Tbk (a company listed on the Indonesia
Stock Exchange) from 2016 to 2018.
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EEREREEAR

Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

PEI Kerwei, aged 63, is our independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of our Nomination Committee and a member of our Audit and
Risk Management, Remuneration and Strategy Committees. He graduated
from Southern lllinois University with a master’s degree in accountancy and
holds a doctorate degree in accounting from the University of North Texas.
Dr. Pei is a full professor of accountancy at the School of Accountancy at
the W.P Carey School of Business at Arizona State University. He was
the Executive Dean of China Programs at W.P Carey School of Business
at Arizona State University, director of the W.P. Carey EMBA program in
Shanghai, MiM Custom Corporate Program in China and the co-director
of W.P. Carey DBA in Global Financial Management. Throughout his 30-
year career at Arizona State University, Dr. Pei has held the positions of
assistant professor, associate professor and professor. Dr. Pei has acted as
a consultant for a number of multi-national companies, including Motorola
Inc., Intel Corporation, Bank of America Corporation, Dial Corporation,
Raytheon Company, Cisco Systems Inc. and Honeywell International
Inc.. Dr. Pei is an independent non-executive director of Zhong An Real
Estate Limited and Zhejiang Expressway Co., Ltd. and served as an
independent non-executive director of MMG Limited from 2015 to 2019, all
being companies listed on the main board of the HK Stock Exchange. Dr.
Pei is also an external director of China Merchants Group. Dr. Pei served
as an external director of China Baowu Steel Group Corporation Limited,
the holding company of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) from 2011 to 2019. He also served as
an independent director (from 2006 to 2012) and a director (from 2012 to
2019) of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd.. Dr. Pei is a member of American
Accounting Association. He was the chairman of the Steering Committee on
Globalization of the American Accounting Association and the chairman of
the Chinese Accounting Professors’ Association of North America. Dr. Pei
joined our Group in November 2007.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

HSIEH Tien-Jen, aged 58, is our independent non-executive Director and
also a member of each of the Audit and Risk Management Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Strategy Committee.
Mr. Hsieh graduated from National Taipei University Department of Law with
a Master’s Degree. He was a lawyer at Ding & Ding Law Offices since 1988,
until he established Hsieh, Chi & Hsieh Law Offices in 1991. Mr. Hsieh has
been a partner of Hsieh, Chi & Hsieh Law Offices since its establishment.
Mr. Hsieh has rich experience in commercial law related areas, including
general contract, merger and acquisition, dissolution, liquidation and
bankruptcy. He was a Maritime Law lecturer at Chung Yuan Christian
University from 1993 to 2013. Mr. Hsieh joined the Consumer Education
Foundation of Taiwan as a volunteer in 1995 and was the foundation
chairman during 2008 to 2010. Mr. Hsieh is currently an independent
director of China Television Company Limited and ceased to be an
independent director of Union Insurance Company on 18 June 2019, each
of which is a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
Mr. Hsieh joined our Group in June 2018.

LEE Kwok Ming, aged 62, is our independent non-executive Director and
also a member of each of the Audit and Risk Management Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Strategy Committee.
Mr. Lee holds a Higher Diploma in Accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic and a Master of Science degree in Business Administration from
the University of Bath, United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is currently an independent
non-executive director of Lianhua Supermarket Holdings Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on the HK Stock Exchange) and was the chief financial
officer of Stella International Holdings Limited (a company listed on the HK
Stock Exchange). Mr. Lee has more than 30 years of financial management
experience and extensive experience in corporate finance such as mergers
and acquisitions. He assumed the position of chief financial officer in a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an associate
member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Mr. Lee
joined our Group in June 2018.
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EEREREEAE

Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

PAN Chih-Chiang, aged 48, is our independent non-executive Director
and also a member of each of the Audit and Risk Management Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Strategy Committee.
Mr. Pan holds a Bachelor Degree in Finance from the National Taiwan
University and a Master degree in Business Administration from the
University of Cambridge, United Kingdom. Mr. Pan is a founding member,
chief executive officer, director and responsible officer of Cypress Capital
Hong Kong Limited. He has extensive global capital market experience
in investment/wealth management industry, covering both institutional
clients including public pension funds, sovereign funds, venture capital
and private equity funds and insurance companies as well as ultra wealthy
families. He started his financial market career in 1997 as cash equity trader
at Jardine Fleming Securities (Taiwan), and later worked for JPMorgan
Asset Management Taiwan between 2003 and 2007 as the head of the
institutional business division providing investment advisory service to public
pension funds and corporate clients. Mr. Pan worked for Goldman Sachs
(Hong Kong) between 2007 and 2013 as portfolio manager/advisor to ultra
wealthy families and corporates. He is licensed to conduct Type 4 (Advising
on Securities) and Type 9 (Asset Management) Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission regulate activities. Mr. Pan joined our Group in August
2019.
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Senior Management

CAO Yong-Mei, aged 47, is the managing director of the manufacturing
and R&D group. Ms. Cao graduated from Jiangnan University (the former
Wuxi University of Light Industry) with a doctoral degree in food science.
She also holds a master’s degree in business administration from the W.P
Carey School of Business at Arizona State University. Ms. Cao joined our
Group in January 2001 and has held various positions, such as manager
of the research and development, manager of the Chairman’s office and
the managing director of the Chairman’s office. In March 2012, Ms. Cao
was promoted to the managing director of the manufacturing department.
In November 2017, Ms Cao was promoted to become the managing
director of the manufacturing and R&D group, responsible for facilitating
sustainable development and talent pool of the Group’s manufacturing,
quality assurances, equipment and R&D teams. Ms. Cao is the director of
our technology center, which is certified as Shanghai Municipal Enterprise
Technology Center, executive director of the Chinese Institute of Food
Science and Technology (“CIFST”) and vice president of Snack Foods
Processing Technology Society of CIFST, director of the Shanghai Society
of Food Science, and a member of China Food Industry Brand Strategy
Working Committee, Walmart Food Safety Innovation Council member,
credentialing specialist of China Engineering Education Accreditation
Association.

LEE Yu-Sheng, aged 62, is the chief investment officer of the Group.
Mr. Lee holds a bachelor of laws degree from the National Chung Hsing
University. He joined our Group in May 1986 and was a director of various
divisions, including the administration division, investment division, legal
division, civil engineering division, equipment engineering division and
human resources division. Mr. Lee was appointed as a representative
member of the Food Development Association in Taiwan in 1999. He has
been a member of the Taiwan Beverage Industries Association and Taiwan
Confectionery, Biscuit and Flour Food Industry Association since 2006 and
a member of the Trademark Examination Quality Consultation Committee of
the Intellectual Property Office, Ministry of Economic Affairs, Taiwan since
2010.
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EEREREEAR

Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management (continued)

LIN Chen-Shih, aged 66, is the technology officer of the Group. Mr. Lin
graduated from National Chung Hsing University with a bachelor’s degree
in food chemistry and engineering. Mr. Lin has more than 40 years of
experience in the food and beverages industry. Mr. Lin was appointed as
the manager of the research and development department in 1995. Since
then, he has held various positions, including the director of the production
department and the managing director of the manufacturing department.
Prior to joining our Group in August 1995, he was the head of the quality
control section at Taiwan Heysong Beverage Holdings Ltd. from 1979 to
1995. Mr. Lin was a director of Shanghai Society of Food Science. Mr. Lin
was awarded the Outstanding Alumni Awards by the National Chung Hsing
University in 2010.

CHEN Chun-Chiang, aged 51, is the managing director of R&D centre.
Mr. Chen graduated with a bachelor's degree from the Department of
Food Science of National Chung Hsing University in Taiwan in 1992 and
obtained his master’s degree from Institute of Food Engineering of Da-Yeh
University in 1994. In 1996, Mr. Chen joined the research & development
team of our Group and has been committed to R&D for over twenty years.
He has organized the developments of over a hundred kinds of new
products and applied for multiple patents. Under his leadership, the Group’s
R&D team now has over one hundred talents in various fields, including
food technology research, food testing and analysis, consumer survey and
market research. Mr. Chen is the vice director of our technology center,
which is certified as Shanghai Municipal Enterprise Technology Center, the
vice-president of Potato Food Professional Committee of China National
Food Industry Association, and member of Child Food Society of the CIFST.

TING Hung-Hsing, aged 50, is the managing director of the information
technology centre. Mr. Ting graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and holds a master's degree in hotel and tourism management.
He has worked in the field of information system management for many
years. Mr. Ting joined our Group in February 2006 responsible for
information system development. In 2007 and 2008, he was the deputy
director of the information technology department in charge of information
network and system development. In 2009, Mr. Ting was promoted to
director of the Chairman’s office responsible for facilitating and monitoring
the Group’s overall strategy execution. In 2012, he was promoted as the
managing director of the human resources department in charge of the
human resources function of the Group. In 2013, he served as the deputy
general manager of our Taipei office overseeing the business operations in
Taiwan. Since March 2016, Mr. Ting has served as the managing director of
the information technology centre.
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Senior Management (continued)

CHEN Chien-Chen, aged 54, is the managing directors of the procurement
center and the advertising and communication division of the Group. Mr.
Chen has more than 29 years of experience in trade, futures, logistics,
procurement, advertising and management fields. In 1988, Mr. Chen
obtained a bachelor’s degree from Taiwan National Chung Hsing University.
In 1997, he graduated from the department of business administration of
National Cheng Kung University in Taiwan. In the same year, Mr. Chen
joined our Group and has held various positions over the past 22 years,
including the vice head of the procurement department, head of the
procurement department, head of advertising and publicity department,
managing director of the procurement division and the managing director of
the media division. Before he joined the Group, he worked at Taiwan Great
Wall Enterprise Limited (a Taiwan listed company) as an assistant manager
of the purchasing department of commodity from 1990 to 1997.

WANG Jinping, aged 51, is the general manager of popsicles business unit.
Ms. Wang graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology with a bachelor’'s
degree in accounting. In 2002, she obtained a certificate of accounting
profession (advanced level). In 2013, she achieved a master's degree in
business administration from the W.P Carey School of Business at Arizona
State University. Ms. Wang joined our Group in March 1997 and has held
various positions, such as financial head of Harbin subsidiary and marketing
director in charge of the sales in three provinces at North Eastern China. In
August 2002, Ms. Wang was transferred to Shanghai and responsible for
marketing activities of popsicles. In April 2011, she was promoted to the
general manager of beverage business unit, in charge of marketing activities
of popsicles and beverages. Since April 2013, Ms. Wang has served as the
general manager of popsicles business unit, in charge of marketing activities
of “Popsicles”, “Sip & Slurp” and “Dongchi” as well as coordination of new
product launch. Ms. Wang has 21 years of sales experience in the food
industry.
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EEEHRE

Report of the Directors

Our Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacturing, distribution and sales of food and beverages.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2020 by business segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A review of the business and performance of the Group, including the
analysis using financial key performance indicators, during the year ended
31 March 2020 and the outlook of the Group’s business are set out in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” from pages 16 to 17 and pages 55 to 79 of this Annual Report
respectively. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group can be found throughout the Annual Report including the financial
risks as set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statement.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group focuses not only on manufacturing but also on reciprocating the
communities by making sustainable development and social responsibility
contributions as important parts of the Group’s development. The Group
endeavors to protect the environment in which it operates its business, so as
to realise sustainable development and operation.

The Group encourages environmental protection, advocates energy
conservation and emission reduction within the Group by emphasizing the
importance in protecting natural resources and environment and promotes
the environmental awareness of its employees such that fulfilling the
environmental protection responsibilities to become the common value and
direction of the management and every staff.

» o«

The Group adheres to the principle of 3Rs — “Reduce”, “Recycle” and
“Reuse”, promotes green manufacturing, ensures disposition of hazardous
waste by lawful means in accordance with the national regulations and local
environmental requirements and addresses the consumers’ desire for a

healthy and green lifestyle in its product research and development.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

The Group will review its environmental practices from time to time and
consider further implementation of measures on environmental protection in
the Group’s operations, thereby enhancing environmental sustainability.

Please refer to the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules
from pages 20 to 54 of this Annual Report for detailed discussion on the
Company’s environmental policies and performance.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group ensures compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
of the places where the Group has business operations that have material
impact on its operations, including the applicable environmental laws and
regulations.

We will closely monitor any changes in government policies, relevant laws
and regulations from time to time and assess the impact of such changes
and seek external advice if considered necessary.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that its success depends on the support from the
stakeholders, including but not limited to employees, customers (primarily
distributors and modern channel retailers) and end-consumers, suppliers
and shareholders, which is also the key to its sustainable development.
According to the Group’s philosophy of “People-Oriented, Self-Confidence
and Unity”, the Group highly values its relationships with key stakeholders.

Employees

The Group is committed to establishing a healthy, harmonious and caring
working relationship with employees’ which forms the bedrock of any
successful organization. The Group takes employees’ life and safety as
the top priority. We provide a safe and happy workplace as well as a grand
stage where Want Want staff can unleash their full potentials, provides
our staff with suitable training and development plans and career growth
opportunities and develops competitive incentive plans and remuneration
and benefits programs to motivate our employees.
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EEEHRE

Report of the Directors

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS (continued)
Customers and consumers

The Group primarily sells its products to distributors who distribute the
products to end points of sales for consumers to choose. The Group also
sells its products directly to modern channel retailers who then on-sell the
products to end-consumers.

The Group realizes the importance to maintain good long-term relationship
with its customers (primarily distributors and modern retailers). The
Group continues to look for quality distributor partners who are willing to
collaborate, to review the distributor policy from time to time to ensure its
competitiveness and attractiveness, and to provide distributors and modern
channel retailers with marketing resources and support so that Want Want
products could be delivered and displayed on the shelves at the points of
sales in a timely manner and in attractive, eye-catching ways. Meanwhile,
the Group has also paid great attention to the inventory management of
its distributors to ensure that the aging of its products would remain highly
competitive in the channels and at the points of sales so that consumers
could always enjoy the fine taste of Want Want products.

The Group adheres to strict product quality control to safeguard product
quality and safety and has established a quality assurance system covering
the whole supply chain so as to make its products perfect in all aspects,
build great reputation of Want Want brand and let consumers eat with ease,
relieved and happy.

Upholding “Be Caring, Be Attentive and Be Considerate” as the motto
of the Company, the Group provides consumers with various means of
communication in order to respond to consumers’ enquiries promptly and
realize its service commitment, which is “Customers First, Wholeheartedly
for You”.

In recent years, the Group has made use of different social media platforms
and channels to connect with consumers and create dialogues to enhance
communication and interaction with consumers and to gain consumer
loyalty and insights on the changing market demand so that the Group could
respond proactively. The Group also attempts to deliver more personalized
content and advertisements tailored to the interests and preferences of each
target consumer group.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS (continued)
Suppliers

The Group generally centralizes the procurement of a majority of its key raw
materials and packaging materials to take advantage of economies of scale
and maximize its bargaining power with suppliers. This approach enables it
to enjoy competitive prices.

The Group has established a stable long-term relationship with its major
suppliers to ensure stable and sustainable supply of raw materials and
packaging materials, their quality and timely delivery.

The Group emphasizes the evaluation and selection of suppliers and
persists in sustainable development.

The Group has established a sound supplier selection process. The Group
also assesses and manages its suppliers from different aspects and sets
up a rating system based on the assessment result. The Group manages
its suppliers according to their rating and informs them monthly assessment
result in order to work on areas of improvement with them.

Shareholders

The Company is committed to uphold high corporate governance standards
to promote corporate transparency and accountability and to enhance
shareholders’ value.

The Company recognizes the importance of continuous communications
with its shareholders. Annual general meeting is an important platform for
direct communication between the Company and its shareholders.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2020 are
set out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are
set out in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 154 and 155 of this Annual Report.
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EEEHRE

Report of the Directors

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”). It is the
policy of the Company that, in recommending or declaring dividends, the
Board shall make distributions to allow its shareholders to participate in the
Company’s profits whilst retaining adequate cash reserves for meeting its
requirements for working capital and long-term sustainable development.

The Board has the discretion to propose, declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company, subject to the Articles of Association
of the Company and all applicable laws and regulations and taking into
account the factors set out below.

The Board shall take into account the following factors of the Group when
considering the declaration and payment of dividends:

(i)  the financial performance and cash flow situation of the Group;

(i) the Group’s business strategies and operations, including future
capital requirements and investment needs;

(i) economic conditions and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Group;

(iv) amount of share repurchases made during the period; and

(v) any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The Company in general meeting may from time to time declare dividends

to be paid to the members but no dividends shall be declared in excess of

the amount recommended by the Board.

In addition, the Directors may from time to time pay such interim dividends
or special dividends of such amounts and on such dates as they think fit.

The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or warrant or

by other means that the Board considers appropriate, subject to its Articles
of Association.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)
No dividend shall be declared or payable except out of the Company’s
profits or reserves lawfully available for such purposes.

Any dividend unclaimed may be forfeited and shall revert to the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to time.

DIVIDENDS AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
An interim dividend of US0.64 cent per share for the year ended 31
March 2020 (for the year ended 31 March 2019: US0.53 cent), totalling
RMB557,138,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2019: RMB453,622,000),
were paid to the shareholders of the Company in December 2019.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of US2.42
cents (for the year ended 31 March 2019: US2.41 cents) per share and
a special dividend of US1.10 cents (for the year ended 31 March 2019:
USO0.48 cent) per share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2020. Subject
to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming 2020 AGM to be held on
18 August 2020, the proposed final and special dividends will be paid on
or about 9 September 2020. Shareholders registered under the principal
register of members in the Cayman Islands will automatically receive their
dividends in United States dollars while shareholders registered under the
Hong Kong branch register of members will automatically receive their
dividends in Hong Kong dollars. The Hong Kong dollars final and special
dividends will be calculated with reference to the exchange rate of United
States dollars against Hong Kong dollars on 18 August 2020, being the date
of the 2020 AGM on which such final and special dividends will be proposed
to the shareholders of the Company for approval.

In order to qualify to attend and vote at the forthcoming 2020 AGM, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
not later than 4:30 pm on 12 August 2020, for the purpose of effecting the
share transfers. The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 13 August 2020 to 18 August 2020 (both dates inclusive).
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Report of the Directors

DIVIDENDS AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
(continued)

In order to qualify for the entitlement to the above mentioned final and
special dividends, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 pm on 21 August
2020, for the purpose of effecting the share transfers. The register of
members of the Company will be closed from 22 August 2020 to 26 August
2020 (both dates inclusive).

RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted
to RMB4,138,810,000 (31 March 2019: RMB3,899,980,000). Movements in
the reserves of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2020 are set
out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The five largest customers contributed in aggregate less than 30% of the
Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 March 2020.

The five largest suppliers constituted in aggregate 45% of the Group’s
total purchases for the year ended 31 March 2020. The largest supplier
accounted for 24% of the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2020 did the Directors or any
of their close associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interests in these suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of
this Annual Report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung
(re-designated as an executive Director on 1 July 2019)
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia (Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung (Chief Marketing Officer)
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui
Ms. Lai Hong Yee

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Maki Haruo
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Toh David Ka Hock

Dr. Pei Kerwei

Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou (passed away on 19 June 2019)
Mr. Hsieh Tien-den

Mr. Lee Kwok Ming

Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang (appointed on 21 August 2019)

At the forthcoming 2020 AGM, the Directors retiring by rotation in
accordance with Article 130 of the Articles of Association are Mr. Tsai Eng-
Meng, Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia, Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun, Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen and
Mr. Lee Kowk Ming. All the aforesaid retiring Directors, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the 2020 AGM.

Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang, who was appointed by the Board as an independent
non-executive Director under Article 114 of the Articles of Association, shall
hold office until the forthcoming 2020 AGM and, being eligible, offer himself
for re-election.
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Report of the Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors who has offered himself
for re-election at the 2020 AGM (namely, Mr. Hsieh Tien-den, Mr. Lee
Kwok Ming and Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang) was appointed as proposed by the
Nomination Committee of the Company and after review and approval of the
Board, and has demonstrated his ability to provide an independent view to
the Company’s matters and valuable contributions to the Company during
their terms of office. The Board considers that each of them is a highly
valued and respectable member of the Board.

The Company has also received a written annual confirmation from each
of them confirming his respective independence in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. In addition, none of them is either interested in
the securities or business of the Company nor connected with any Director,
senior management or substantial or controlling Shareholders of the
Company. The Board therefore considers each of Mr. Hsieh, Mr. Lee and
Mr. Pan continues to be independent (as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules).

The Board is also of the view that each of Mr. Hsieh, Mr. Lee and Mr.
Pan would continue to bring to the Board his own perspective, skills and
experience, as further described in the details of the respective Directors
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this Annual
Report.

With their respective strong background, the Board considers that each of
them can contribute to the diversity of the Board with his own perspective,
skills and experience, in particular, Mr. Hsieh with his rich experience in
commercial law related areas, including general contract, merger and
acquisition, dissolution, liquidation and bankruptcy, Mr. Lee with his over 30
years of experience in financial management and corporate finance such
as mergers and acquisitions, and Mr. Pan with his extensive global capital
market experience in investment/wealth management industry.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
The biographical details of the Directors are set out under the section

headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this Annual Report.

CHANGES OF DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION
The changes of Director’s information as required to be disclosed pursuant

to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules are set out below.

(1)

)

Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung, an executive Director, ceased to be a director
of Union Insurance Company (a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation) with effect from 11 June 2020 and was
appointed as a director of IBF Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) with effect from 12
June 2020.

Mr. Pei Kerwei, an independent non-executive Director, ceased to
be a director of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange), an external director of China Baowu
Steel Group Corporation Limited (the holding company of Baoshan
Iron & Steel Co., Ltd.) and an independent non-executive director of
MMG Limited (a company listed on the main board of the HK Stock
Exchange), all were effective in December 2019.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming 2020 AGM do
not have any service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

BORROWINGS
Details of the borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

The charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2020 amounted to approximately RMB33,285,000 (for the
year ended 31 March 2019: RMB5,174,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2019 and 2020, for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 and for
the two years ended 31 December 2016 and the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 December 2015 and 2016 and as at 31 March 2018, 2019
and 2020 are set out in the Financial Summary on pages 14 to 15 of this
Annual Report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and the Company considers Mr. Toh David Ka Hock, Dr. Pei
Kerwei, Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen, Mr. Lee Kwok Ming and Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang
to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS EFERERITRARRALTRAEHER
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING EEZED c HRABRMRESZELER
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND wRE

ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors A2020F3 8318 » AR R EERERSITH
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and ABRARARREEMEEEE (ERRF
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within the SRABGRG (BBEGESTE) ([FHER
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of BRERAI]) EBEXVER) 2 IR ~ HEERHO RE
the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be SIRBESRABRAIEISHFAFTERE
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company EMASBREEESTNENERQATARE

and the HK Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code are as follows: B ERRKBNT ¢
(i) Interests in the Company (long position) (i) RAEXFNER (FR)
Number of ordinary shares held
BEEZERYE
Approximate %
Interests in of the issued
Beneficial Family controlled share capital of
Name of Directors interests interests corporations Total  the Company @
BERRAEBITR
EEnA BifEs RikER REGQRER BY AHBOEDLEO
Tsai Eng-Meng 154,000,000®  6,143,843,100®  6,297,843,100 50.7269%
24078
Liao Ching-Tsun 90,200 90,200 0.0007%
sl
Tsai Shao-Chung 100,356,000 100,356,000 0.8083%
LS
Tsai Wang-Chia 42,000 101,300,000 101,342,000 0.8163%
FEHX
Huang Yung-Sung 22,100 22,100 0.0002%
%) U/
Chu Chi-Wen 197,200 197,200 0.0016%
KX
Maki Haruo 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.0081%
HE&EX
Cheng Wen-Hsien 76,600 463,086,040® 463,162,640 3.7306%
BE
Tsai Ming-Hui 57,200 57,200 0.0005%
£E
Lai Hong Yee 8,000 8,000 0.0001%
REE
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

(ii)

Interests in an associated corporation of the Company (long
position)

Name of the

EERBETRARRFAFRAEHK
EEZEG HRRBRASCHEER

(23 46
(i) RARBEBCEEER (HR)

Approximate
% of total issued

Number of share capital of the

Name of Director associated corporation Nature of interests shares held associated corporation
EREERBEED #T

BN HEOEE A EEME BFEROHA RABHBABEDLE

Tsai Shao-Chung Want Want Holdings Ltd. Beneficial interests 9,665 0.0007%

54 HEZERERAT BifEn

Notes: MisE

()

@)

®)

(4)

®)

(6)

132

Based on the Company’s issued share capital as at 31 March 2020, comprising
12,415,184,135 shares.

These shares are beneficially owned by Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng’s children under

the age of 18.

These shares are directly held by Want Power Holdings Limited (“WPHL”) and
Norwares Overseas Inc. (“NOI”) as to 5,080,063,100 shares and 1,063,780,000
shares respectively. Both WPHL and NOI are wholly-owned by Mr. Tsai Eng-
Meng.

These shares are directly held by Twitcher Limited, a company wholly-owned
by Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung.

These shares are directly held by ThemePark Dome Limited, a company

wholly-owned by Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia.

These shares are directly held by Mr Big Capital Limited and Mr Big Limited as
to 163,596,040 shares and 299,490,000 shares respectively. Mr Big Capital
Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien. Mr. Cheng is also the
controlling shareholder of Mr Big Limited holding 60% of its shares.

2019/20205 % | ANNUAL REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the Directors, nor
the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any of the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the HK Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company, their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right
to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSABLE UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 March 2020, insofar as the Directors are aware, the interests and
short positions of any person, other than any Directors or the chief executive
of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the HK Stock Exchange, are as
follows:

Interest in the Company (long position)

EEEWE

Report of the Directors

ESERBRETRARRF AT RAEHK
EEZEG HRRBRASCHER
wE @

R EIMATIEE SN - 102020938318 »
BAEMAAQNRESIARSTHRAEREA
AR EEAEELIE(EERFFRAEK
BISEXVED) 2 B 17 - HEERDRES P HES
EAERIRIEE H R IRAIEIS21FRE
BFEZRTMA  SRESEESTRZITA
BERNBREBBUI M2 ERHAR

Br EMFTIREES  BIERAQNTDESHIR
BITHAEBHERBIARM18RFLER
EMERARBEAR R ZESHITEEM
LEERER] o

REEFRURGEAETERRATHS
ZHGRKE

A2020F3A31H » REEME - REH
S RHABKRGIZEIHRRTEEFTE 2B M
RETE > B THERABREBE T
EF UTAL (RLARESEESITHAE
BRINFBERATROREERGD ZEER
REBINMT :

RAR AR (FR)

Approximate % of the

Number issued share capital

Name of shareholders Nature of interests of shares held of the Company®

EARDT S BITRAMN
R A My BEERGOEE BHE D
WPHL Beneficial interests 5,080,063,100@ 40.9181%
BERER
NOI Beneficial interests 1,063,780,000? 8.5684%
BERER
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSABLE UNDER THE SFO
(continued)

Interest in the Company (long position) (continued)

Note:

(1) Based on the Company’s issued share capital as at 31 March 2020, comprising
12,415,184,135 shares.

(2)  The shares held by WPHL and NOI were beneficially owned by Mr. Tsai Eng-
Meng and are the same shares disclosed as Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng’s interests
in controlled corporations as set out under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and

debentures of the Company and its associated corporation” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the Company has not been
notified by any persons (other than Directors and the chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which requires disclosure to the Company under
the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements
headed “Related Party Transactions” and the section headed “Connected
Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions” below, no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party or were parties and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year ended 31 March 2020 or at any time during the year
ended 31 March 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 March 2020.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this Annual
Report, the Company had the following non-exempt connected transaction
and continuing connected transactions.

Connected transaction
Acquisition of Entire Equity Interest in Poyang County Linwang Forestry
Development Co., Limited

On 18 June 2019, Want Want (HK) Holdings Limited (the “Purchaser”),
a direct wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with San
Want (the “Seller”), pursuant to which the Purchaser agreed to purchase
and the Seller agreed to sell the entire equity interest in Poyang County
Linwang Forestry Development Co., Limited (the “Target Company”) at a
total consideration of RMB50 million (the “Acquisition”). Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 18 June 2019 for details.

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, executive
Director and controlling shareholder of the Company, is also the controlling
shareholder of the Seller. As such, the Seller is an associate of Mr. Tsai and
hence a connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the Acquisition
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.

As all of the applicable percentage ratios under Rule 14.07 of the Listing
Rules in respect of the Acquisition are less than 5%, the Acquisition is only
subject to reporting and announcement requirements and is exempted from
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions

San Want Framework Property Lease Agreement

On 28 December 2018, the Company entered into a framework property
lease agreement (the “San Want Framework Property Lease Agreement”)
with San Want, pursuant to which San Want agreed to lease to the Group
certain properties with a total gross area of approximately 31,275 square
meters for two years commencing from 1 January 2019 and expiring on 31
December 2020 (both dates inclusive). Such properties are currently used
and will continue to be used as the Group’s offices in Shanghai.

The annual rent payable under the San Want Framework Property
Lease Agreement shall be RMB47,954,000 and RMB49,399,000 for the
year commencing on 1 January 2019 and 1 January 2020, respectively,
exclusive of property management fees and/or utility charges, and shall be
payable in four equal instalments in cash in advance on a quarterly basis
and each instalment (other than the first instalment) shall be payable five
days before the expiry of the rental period of preceding instalment. A deposit
representing one month’s rental and the first instalment are payable upon
signing of the individual lease agreements.

The proposed annual caps of the aggregate rental amount payable by
the Group under the San Want Framework Property Lease Agreement for
each of the years ending 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 are
RMB47,954,000 and RMB49,399,000 respectively. Such annual caps are
determined by the Company based on the expected floor areas to be leased
from San Want and the rental rates with reference to the market rental
rates of respective properties as at 21 September 2018 and corresponding
expected market rental rates as of the same date of the following year,
as recommended by an independent professional valuer in their valuation
report dated 9 November 2018.

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2018.

The total rents incurred by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 and that for the first quarter ended 31 March 2020 pursuant to the San
Want Framework Property Lease Agreement were RMB47,954,000 and
RMB12,350,000, respectively, which did not exceed corresponding proposed
annual cap for the relevant calendar year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

CTV Framework Property Lease Agreement

On 28 December 2018, the Company also entered into a framework
property lease agreement (the “CTV Framework Property Lease
Agreement”) with China Television Company Limited (“CTV”), pursuant to
which CTV agreed to lease to the Group the premises with a total gross
area of 268.76 Taiwanese Ping, equivalent to approximately 888 square
meters, situated at 1/F and 7/F (the “Premises”) and three car parking slots
on B3 floor, No. 120 Chung-Yang Road, Nangang District, Taipei, Taiwan
(the “Parking Spaces”) for a term of two years commencing from 1 January
2019 and expiring on 31 December 2020 (both dates inclusive). The
Premises are currently used and will continue to be used as office by the
Group while the Parking Spaces in the same building would be used by its
staff.

Pursuant to the CTV Framework Property Lease Agreement, the monthly
after-tax rental of the Premises is NTD409,187 (inclusive NTD56,439.6 for
the management fee and NTD42,329.7 for the air-conditioning charges) and
that of the Parking Spaces is NTD6,300, totalling NTD415,487 per month.
Electricity will be charged, on a monthly basis, at NTD4.725 per kWh (&)
based on the actual electricity consumption by the Group.

The total annual rental payable for the Premises and Parking Spaces under
the CTV Framework Property Lease Agreement shall be NTD4,985,844
for each of the years commencing on 1 January 2019 and 1 January 2020,
exclusive of electricity, gas and all other costs incurred by the Group in
relation to the Premises and Parking Spaces. The rental shall be payable in
cash on a monthly basis on or before 25th of each calendar month during
the term of the lease. A deposit of approximately NTD830,974, representing
two months’ rental are payable upon signing of and in accordance with the
individual lease agreement. The electricity charge of each calendar month
shall be payable in cash on or before 25th of the following month during the
term of the lease.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

CTV Framework Property Lease Agreement (continued)

The proposed annual cap for the transactions contemplated under the CTV
Framework Property Lease Agreement for each of the years ending 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2020 is NTD5,439,444, which represents
the aggregate of the after-tax amount of annual rent, management fee and
air-conditioning charges for NTD4,985,844 together with the estimated
annual electricity charges for NTD453,600 payable by the Group to CTV
under the CTV Framework Property Lease Agreement. Such annual cap
is determined by the Company based on the expected floor areas and
number of car parking slots to be leased from CTV and the rental rates with
reference to the market rental rates for the Premises as at 1 November
2018 as recommended by independent professional valuer, previous actual
electricity consumption and certain buffer to cater for the possible increase
in electricity and other outgoing charges incurred by the Group in relation to
the Premises.

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2018.

The total rents incurred by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 and that for the first quarter ended 31 March 2020 pursuant to the
CTV Framework Property Lease Agreement were NTD4,372,000 and
NTD786,000, respectively, which did not exceed corresponding proposed
annual cap for the relevant calendar year.

Tenancy Agreement

On 21 January 2020, Shanghai Want Want Foods Group Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Want Want”), a subsidiary of the Company that indirectly owned
as t0 99.99% by the Company, as tenant, entered into a tenancy agreement
(the “Tenancy Agreement”) with Shanghai Want Qi Corporate Management
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Want Qi”), as landlord, in respect of the lease of Block
53 located at No. 488 Hong Xu Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, PRC
(the “Property”) with a total gross rental area of approximately 3,205 square
meters for a term of one year from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
(both dates inclusive). The Property is used by the modern distribution
channel business unit as offices.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Tenancy Agreement (continued)

The monthly rent (exclusive of water, electricity, cable television, gas,
heating, sanitary, telecommunication, property related fees and other
charges and outgoings) during the lease term is RMB377,869.50 per month.

The monthly rent (except for the rent for the first month) shall be payable in
advance by the Tenant to the Landlord 5 days before the commencement
of each calendar month. The rent for the first month shall be payable upon
signing of the Tenancy Agreement.

A rental deposit in the sum of RMB377,869.50, representing one month’s
rental, shall be payable upon signing of the Tenancy Agreement and shall
be refundable (without interest) to the Tenant at the end of the lease after
the Tenant shall have delivered up to the Landlord vacant possession of the
Property.

The proposed annual cap of the rental amount payable by the Group
under the Tenancy Agreement for the year ending 31 December 2020 is
RMB4,534,434. Such annual cap was determined based on the expected
floor areas to be leased and the rental rates with reference to the market
rental rates for the Property as at 25 November 2019 and expected
market rental rate for the year 2020, as recommended by an independent
professional valuer in a valuation report dated 9 December 2019.

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 21
January 2020 for details.

The rent incurred by the Group for the three months ended 31 March 2020
pursuant to the Tenancy Agreement was RMB1,134,000, which did not
exceed the proposed annual cap.
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EEEHRE

Report of the Directors

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

CTI Framework Advertising Agreement

The Company entered into the framework advertising agreement (the “CTI
Framework Advertising Agreement”) with CTI Television Incorporation (“CTI”)
on 28 December 2018 in respect of the purchase of advertising airtime at
the CTlI’s television channels for a term of two years from 1 January 2019 to
31 December 2020 (both dates inclusive).

The annual amount of advertising cost payable under the CTI Framework
Advertising Agreement shall be US$5,000,000 for each of the years
commencing on 1 January 2019 and 1 January 2020, subject to adjustments
based on the total actual broadcasting airtime incurred during the year as
provided by CTI and to be agreed by the Group not later than 25 December
in each year. Pursuant to the CTI Framework Advertising Agreement, for
each year during the term, the first instalment of US$2,500,000, representing
50% of the annual contract amount, shall be payable not later than 30 June
while the remaining balance adjusted based on the actual broadcasting
airtime incurred during the year shall be payable within 15 days after receipt
of the invoice issued by CTIl and not later than 25 December (or such a later
date as the parties may agree).

The proposed annual cap of the advertising cost payable by the Group
under the CTI Framework Advertising Agreement for each of the years
ending 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 is US$5,000,000. Such
annual cap is determined by the Group based on the expected number of
advertising airtime, broadcasting time slots and broadcasting programmes
with reference to the rates provided by CTI for the tenure of the CTI
Framework Advertising Agreement. A service fee at 10% of the advertising
cost will also be charged by CTI pursuant to the CTl Framework Advertising
Agreement, which has been included in the annual cap set out above.

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2018.

The amounts of advertising cost paid by the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 and that paid for the first quarter ended 31 March 2020
pursuant to the CTl Framework Advertising Agreement were US$4,614,000
and US$46,000, respectively, which did not exceed corresponding proposed
annual cap for the relevant calendar year.

140 2019/2020% % | ANNUAL REPORT

MEXHRSBRMEX S (&)

HERERS (#

PRIEREEBMAIRE
AATNR2018FE 12828 HEERFR X BRI
BERAB([FXRER]) HFTELES R
HiHE((PRERESRAEHE] @ Bk
MR RERBEHSESRANESRKER B
20191 1B E2020F128318 1 (&
EEEWR) BEmE o

REPREREESZEMHBE 3R
2019F1B1HK2020F1B1HEst =
FEERNEERSRMEBALSENA
5,000,000 7t © MZEEEESF12825
B2 Al REBAR AR RERIREME
ZERERREMAENTESBETH
B REPRERESRHIHZ  BES
F6AHAFZAIXTHEERFERERS
BB FM50% 2 % — BiFX1E2,500,0003%
T MESRKEREFTEREREBRAEE
WESZRMEAEARKEIFXRERLAN
BEMWISRA - LAEMM2A258 (RETH
EHAREHEMNRE A KT

HZ2019F 128318 K2020F 128318 1k
MEFESF  AEERBEPRELES
BB EENESEHERANERFEL
PR19%5,000,0005% 7T © sZFE LRI
RUTEEEBHAEEETE  BHESH
B -EBHEBREEFEEEMNSZHF X
EREERHHBETHIRAERIZENOKE
BEXR -REPRERESRHHE
RERTBRBAEERESRHEAR10%
ZIBEREE  mMEESESCEsE L
MEELRA -

BRE—SHBENRARLTBEHE2018%F
12828H 2 RE o

AEBRBEFPREXLRBESRHHEREBE
2019 12A31H L FEEREE20205F3
B3MBLE—FECESRHMERDIAS
4,614,0003 7T )2 46,0005 7T + 130 B H
HEEF2FE LR -



9 B BEBE =R B PR/ R Want Want China Holdings Limited

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Infotimes Framework Advertising Agreement

On 28 December 2018, the Company entered into a framework advertising
agreement (the “Infotimes Framework Advertising Agreement”) with
Infotimes Corporation (“Infotimes”) in respect of the provision of advertising
services to broadcast advertisements produced by the Group on various
online platforms operated by Infotimes for a term of two years from 1
January 2019 to 31 December 2020 (both dates inclusive).

The annual amount of advertising cost payable under the Infotimes
Framework Advertising Agreement shall be US$3,000,000 for each of the
years commencing on 1 January 2019 and 1 January 2020, subject to
adjustments based on the total actual usage by the Group measured by the
number of impressions incurred during the year as provided by Infotimes
and to be agreed by the Group not later than 25 December in each year.
Pursuant to the Infotimes Framework Advertising Agreement, for each year
during the term, the first instalment of US$1,500,000, representing 50% of
the annual contract amount, shall be payable not later than 30 June while
the remaining balance adjusted based on the total actual usage according to
the number of impressions incurred during the year shall be payable within
15 days after receipt of the invoice issued by Infotimes and not later than 25
December (or such a later date as the parties may agree).

The proposed annual cap of the advertising cost payable by the Group
under the Infotimes Framework Advertising Agreement for each of the years
ending 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 is US$3,000,000. Such
annual cap is determined by the Group based on the expected number of
impressions and cost per impression with reference to the rates per 1,000
impressions offered by Infotimes, depending on the size, format, timing,
duration and displaying area and media of the advertisement for the tenure
of the Infotimes Framework Advertising Agreement.
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EEEHRE

Report of the Directors

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Infotimes Framework Advertising Agreement (continued)

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2018.

The amounts of advertising cost paid by the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 and that paid for the first quarter ended 31 March
2020 pursuant to the Infotimes Framework Advertising Agreement were
US$1,500,000 and USS$0, respectively, which did not exceed corresponding
proposed annual cap for the relevant calendar year.

Listing Rules Implications

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, executive
Director and controlling shareholder of the Company, is the controlling
shareholder of San Want, CTV, Shanghai Want Qi, CTIl and Infotimes,
therefore each of San Want, CTV, Shanghai Want Qi, CTI and Infotimes is
an associate of Mr. Tsai and a connected person of the Company within the
meaning of the Listing Rules and the transactions contemplated under each
of the abovementioned framework property lease agreements, tenancy
agreement and framework advertising agreements constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company.

As the highest of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing
Rules in respect of each of (i) the San Want Framework Property Lease
Agreement, the CTV Framework Property Lease Agreement and the
Tenancy Agreement on an aggregated basis; and (ii) the CTl Framework
Advertising Agreement and the Infotimes Framework Advertising Agreement
on an aggregate basis, is, on an annual basis, more than 0.1% but less than
5%, the transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to the reporting,
annual review and announcement requirements but are exempted from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Confirmation of independent non-executive Directors

Our independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions of the Group and confirmed that each of
the transactions has been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing it on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the HK Stock Exchange.

Apart from the above continuing connected transactions and subsequent
to 31 March 2020, the Company and San Want entered into a framework
agreement on 3 April 2020, pursuant to which (i) the Group agreed to
provide processing services and packaging materials to San Want and
its subsidiaries (“San Want Group”) in respect of certain “Water God (7K
1#)” branded antiseptic and sanitizing products (“Products”) (“Processing
Services Transaction”), and (ii) San Want Group agreed to sell, and the
Group agreed to purchase, the Products for onward sale and distribution
(“Product Purchase Transaction”) for a term of one year from 1 April 2020
to 31 March 2021. The Processing Services Transaction and the Product
Purchase Transaction contemplated under the framework agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Further details are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 3 April 2020.
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EEEHRE

Report of the Directors

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party transactions
constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined under the
Listing Rules, except for the transactions described in the paragraph
headed “Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions”,
in respect of which the requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules have been complied with.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company repurchased a total
of 34,103,000 shares on the HK Stock Exchange for an aggregate amount
(excluding expenses) of HK$209,266,211 and such repurchased shares
were cancelled. Particulars of the shares repurchased on the HK Stock
Exchange during the period are as follows:

MEXHRSBRMEX S (&)

B AR5
REBRBZE2020F3831HEFER L
ZERBBHARGHBERGEVHRE
MizE34 - RRBEER S RISERERS ]
—EFTRN R F (MRS E B EHiE A
FIAAZMRE) I ZEBBR AR ZHE
BRATHERENBEERZ (EERLHR
A1) o

MRE  HEROFAF LHES

HZE2020F3831HILEE  ARFEEE
53 BT A4R5E (R EIEE M) 209,266,21178
JUEEEI S 34,103,000 B2 17 » 25 E 8B
EzRHHEEEHE - MEREBE R
EIR MG 2 FHBIT:

Aggregate

Total number Highest Lowest amount paid

Month of of shares price paid price paid (excluding
repurchases repurchased per share per share expenses)
XNER XHER XHBE

B[ A% B E IR0 A B BEeE BIEE (TEEERA)
(HK$) (HKS$) (HK$)

(&) (B7T) (B7T)

April 2019 20195 4 A 160,000 6.19 6.14 984,912
May 2019 2019%5A 26,490,000 6.22 5.94 161,337,440
October 2019 2019 £ 10 A 7,453,000 6.35 6.18 46,943,859
34,103,000 209,266,211

The Directors of the Company believe that the above repurchases are
in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders and that such
repurchases would lead to an enhancement of the earnings per share of the
Company.

Saved as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities (including the
“Bonds”) of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to
the date of this Annual Report.
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

Details of compliance by the Group with the Model Code are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 80 to 108 of this Annual Report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS’ AND
OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association and subject to the
provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (“Companies
Law”), every Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all loss
or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director, auditor or other
officers of the Company in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, in which judgement is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is
acquitted. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2020 in respect of any legal actions
which may be taken against the Directors and officers in the execution and
discharge of their duties or in relation thereto.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands (where the Company is
incorporated) which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders first.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the level of public
float as required under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March
2020 and has continued to maintain a public float as at 16 June 2020.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor for the
ensuring year will be proposed at the forthcoming 2020 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Tsai Eng-Meng
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 16 June 2020
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By RE
Independent Auditor’'s Report

e
pwec

To the shareholders of Want Want China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Want Want China Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 152 to
272, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2020;
. the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 2020;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 March 2020;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31
March 2020;

. the consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March
2020; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2020 in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“‘HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. Revenue Recognition: Sales of goods

. Income Tax Provisions
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B B R

Independent Auditor’'s Report

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BRETEE

ERARERRESBENAE

Revenue Recognition: Sales of goods

Refer to Note 2.23 Revenue Recognition:
Sales of goods in the consolidated
financial statements.

During year ended 31 March 2020, the
Group has recognised revenue from sales
of goods of Renminbi 20,094,531,000.

Revenue is recognised when the control
of the underlying products has been
transferred to the customers.

We focused on this area due to the
huge volume of revenue transactions
generated in many different locations
and from various customers, and thus
significant time and resource were
devoted in this area.

Income Tax Provisions

Refer to Note 4 Critical accounting
estimates and judgments and Note 29
Income tax expense in the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has recognised current
income tax expense on profit for the
year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to
Renminbi 1,277,536,000.

The Group is mainly subject to income
tax in the People’s Republic of China.
Significant judgements are required in
determining the provision for income
taxes as tax treatments and practices
may vary across different regions.

We focused on this area due to the
inherent complexity and judgements in
estimating the amounts of tax provisions
required.

We understood, evaluated and tested management's key
controls in respect of the Group’s sales transactions from
contract approval, recording of sales based on delivery
notes, through to reconciliations with cash receipts and
customers’ records. In addition, we tested the general control
environment of the Group’s information technology systems
and the selected automatic controls that were related to
revenue recording to assess the completeness and accuracy
of the revenue entries generated by the system.

Furthermore, we conducted testing of revenue recorded
covering different locations and customers, using sampling
techniques, by examining the relevant supporting
documents, including sales orders, invoices, goods delivery
notes and cash receipts. One of our focuses was on sales
transactions that took place shortly before and after the
balance sheet date, including inspection of goods delivery
notes with customer’s acceptance and credit notes issued
after that date, to assess whether revenue was recognised in
the correct reporting periods.

Based on our audit procedures, we found the Group’s
revenue recognition in relation to sales of goods was
supported by the evidence that we gathered.

We had periodic meetings with the Group’s tax team and
local management to understand and assess the Group's
processes and controls for identifying uncertain tax positions
that might require provisions, together with the related
accounting policy of provisioning for tax exposures.

We evaluated and tested the controls over management's
estimation process. In addition, with the assistance of
our tax specialists, we recalculated the provisions and
validated that they were supported by appropriate data and
management assessments, and that the judgements applied
were supportable considering the potential exposure and
the likelihood of a payment being required. We inspected
management’s correspondences with relevant tax authorities,
examined tax payments by tracking to payment records and
tax filing forms, and compared the provisions with the final
tax assessment notes of previous periods to assess whether
the estimates were reasonable.

Based on our audit procedures, we found management's
judgements and estimates on the income tax provisions were
supported by the available evidence.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

B2 BET RS
Independent Auditor’'s Report
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By RE
Independent Auditor’'s Report

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group'’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

150 2019/2020% % | ANNUAL REPORT
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Esmond S.C. Kwan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 16 June 2020
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mEEERER

Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
120205 R2019F
3A31H 3A31H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR¥T T AREET T
(Restated)
(=E)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I3 - HEEENERIB 6 6,770,980 7,331,250
Leasehold land and land use rights HELH R i FRAE 7 - 939,914
Investment properties REYE 8 37,944 38,038
Intangible assets BEE 9 13,027 14,199
Investments in associates BENTRE 11 15,425 18,779
Deferred income tax assets BEEFRSBERE 23 287,536 242,205
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEERAEMEME
other comprehensive income W RN S RERE 13 31,761 38,671
Right-of-use assets FREEE 10 1,062,289 -
Other non-current assets HittIEReEE = 25,980
8,218,962 8,649,036
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 7E 14 2,746,167 2,387,747
Trade receivables R ) e 15 846,744 1,034,970
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE - BER
other receivables HAb R 16 756,190 642,224
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRRESEEY 17 17,256,927 17,160,428
21,606,028 21,225,369
Total assets HEE 29,824,990 29,874,405
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to equity holders EARERBFEA
of the Company PEfhfEs
Share capital i 18 1,866,355 1,871,067
Reserves GG 19 13,406,327 13,491,223
15,272,682 15,362,290
Non-controlling interests FEiEEIM RS 81,532 97,537
Total equity R 15,354,214 15,459,827
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REEERER

Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
720204 201945
3A31H 3A31H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
b ARET T ARET T
(Restated)
(#EE5)
LIABILITIES 8&
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Borrowings (B 22 8,293,566 7,773,478
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEFRBHEE 23 214,378 267,528
Other non-current liabilities HittEReaE 74,281 75,037
Lease liabilities HEERE 10 67,034 -
8,649,259 8,116,043
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B S REAR 20 1,093,092 1,034,900
Accruals and other payables EstERAREMEMAR 21 2,371,083 2,061,082
Contract liabilities EREE 5(b) 1,584,651 1,117,541
Current income tax liabilities EHFEHEs 133,728 341,130
Borrowings B 22 587,085 1,743,882
Lease liabilities HEAE 10 51,878 -
5,821,517 6,298,535
Total liabilities Has 14,470,776 14,414,578
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 29,824,990 29,874,405

The notes on pages 160 to 272 are an integral part of these consolidated F160ZEE272E 2 MiTF BAREMBHRK 2
financial statements. —&5m o

The consolidated financial statements on pages 152 to 272 were approved FI2ZB 2N E Y REMKEBRREHESSE

by the Board of Directors on 16 June 2020 and were signed on its behalf. M2020F6 816 AHLE  WRKKRESTER
=,
Tsai Wang-Chia Chu Chi-Wen
BEIEXR KX
Director Director
EE -
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mEWEER

Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
HZ2020F HZ22019%F
3A31H 3A31H
tEE HEE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ik AR®TR ARETR
Revenue g 5 20,094,531 20,712,027
Cost of sales HEMA 26 (10,439,499) (11,311,856)
Gross profit ER 9,655,032 9,400,171
Distribution costs DA 26 (2,791,063) (2,984,626)
Administrative expenses THER 26 (2,485,415) (2,338,131)
Other income =gl ON 24 418,700 459,304
Other gains — net Hitnlza — 348 25 8,680 49,765
Operating profit EERE 4,805,934 4,586,483
Finance income BMEKA 28 558,767 503,035
Finance costs REME 28 (312,558) (277,753)
Finance income — net BWEWA —FEE 28 246,209 225,282
Share of losses of associates i3G5 1 (3,354) (5,444)
Profit before income tax BRET BB AIFIE 5,048,789 4,806,321
Income tax expense FERER 29 (1,412,546) (1,343,750)
Profit for the year FERE 3,636,243 3,462,571
Profit attributable to: PEARFIE
— Equity holders of the Company ~AARERFEA 3,649,215 3,476,599
— Non-controlling interests — RIS (12,972) (14,028)
3,636,243 3,462,571
Earnings per share for profit attributable to FARREREE AL
equity holders of the Company FBnEREF
Basic earnings per share BREAXEF 30 RMB29.38 cents  RMB27.93 cents
AR#29.38% ARM27.935%
Diluted earnings per share SREEER 30 RMB29.38 cents  RMB27.93 cents
AE¥29.38% AE#27.93%
The notes on pages 160 to 272 are an integral part of these consolidated F160E F22E 2T BEEBHRER 2
financial statements. —Z5 o
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AREZERER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

B E2020% BZE2019%F

3H31H 3A31H

LEE IHEE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

liop=3 AR®TR ARBTT

Profit for the year FEFE 3,636,243 3,462,571
Other comprehensive income Hitt2E K&
Items that will not be reclassified to HETEEL HE

profit or loss BmZIEHH
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit  RIKEREEZEH

obligations TE 19 4,763 2,991
Change in value of financial assets at RAVEEBHEMEE

fair value through other comprehensive WaRmRNSRMEE

income ZEEEE 19 (7,765) (9,376)
Items that may be reclassified to RAGHEEELTHZ

profit or loss BmZEHA
Currency translation differences EHEE A AR (399,607) (332,143)
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHB2EKE (402,609) (338,528)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXHENGHAEE 3,233,634 3,124,043
Attributable to: PEML :

— Equity holders of the Company —RAFERFEA 3,247,662 3,139,120

— Non-controlling interests — IR R R (14,028) (15,077)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE>AEKNZHEEE 3,233,634 3,124,043

The notes on pages 160 to 272 form an integral part of these consolidated B160EE272E 2T RGEMBRERZ
financial statements. — 45 o
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RERRBHR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RAREREE AL
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves eamings Total interests equity
SR

Bx  RVEE  EtEE  REEA #t B s
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ME  ARETR  ARETR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR

Balance at 1 April 2018 018F4F18 48 1,871,067 462130 (4,296228) 16,451,228 14,488,197 122,703 14,610,900
Adjustments due to business RAREHTERSH

combinations under common EENRR

control 36 - - 48,640 (17,049) 31,591 - 31,591
Balance at 1 April 2018 N18F4A1RER

(Restated) (&E5) 1,871,067 462130 (4,247,588) 16,434,179 14,519,788 122,703 14,642,491
Comprehensive income PENE
Profit for the year FEAE - - - 3,476,599 3,476,599 (14,028) 3,462,571

Other comprehensiveincome ~ E2E i
Change in value of financial RATEEBEMLE

assets at fair value through WERRNSRER

other comprehensive income ZEEED 1319 - - (9,376) - (9,376) - (9,376)
Remeasurements of post- BHRERELZ

employment benefit obligations ~ EiEE 19 - - 2,991 - 2,991 - 2,991
Currency translation differences ~ E¥ERZEH 19 - - (331,094) - (331,004) (1,049) (332,143
Total other comprehensive Ef2ANREH

incorne - - (34T -4 (1049)  (338529)
Total comprehensiveincome  2EREAE - - (337.479) 3476599 3,139,120 (15077) 3,124,043
Transactions with owners BREAZRS
Dividends paid 531 9 . . S (2296618)  (2296618) (63)  (2.296,881)
Appropriation to statutory reserves S E ekt 19 - - 217,721 (217,721 - - -
Acquisifon of non-controling inferests  UEBSE M AR 3% - - - - - (15,554) (15,554)
Capital contrbution by non-controling ~ JE 44 358

interests - - - - - 5728 5,728

Total transactions with owners ~ BEEA 2R Z A% -

ATTN (2514339)  (2296618)  (10,089)  (2,306,707)

Balance at 31 March 2019 2019E3A31 AL

(Restated) (&E51) 1,871,067 462130 (4,367,346) 17,396,439 15,362,290 97,537 15459,827
The notes on pages 160 to 272 are an integral part of these consolidated B160EE2T2E 2 M RESMBREKZ
financial statements. —EB o

156 2019/2020% %k | ANNUAL REPORT



9> ] B BT =R BBR/AE Want Want China Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RARRRNE AL
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings Total interests equity
FRaIM

kx  RHEE  AERE  REERA #it it L 3
Note  RMB'00O ~ RMB'OO0 ~ RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000
M ARBTR  ARRTR ARRTR  ARBTR  ARMTR ARMTR  ARETR

Balance at 1 April 2019 20194810 EH 1,871,067 462130  (4415,986) 17,413488 15,330,699 97,537 15,428,236
Adjustments due to business REREHTEREH

combinations under common EENRR

control 36 - - 48,640 (17,049) 31,591 - 31,591
Balance at 1 April 2019 0195451048

(Restated) (&=5) 1,871,067 462,130 (4,367,346) 17,396,439 15,362,290 97,537 15,459,827
Comprehensive income PENE

Proft forthe year EEFIR - - - 369215 3649215 (1297) 3636243

Other comprehensive income b 2EKE
Change in value of financial BATEERAMEE

assets at fair value through WERRNeRER

other comprehensive income ZBEZY 1319 - = (7,765) = (7,765) = (7,765)
Remeasurements of post- BHRERELZ

employment benefit obligations ~~ E#iEE 19 = = 4763 = 4,763 = 4,763
Currency translation differences ~ EMERZE 19 - - (398,551) - (398,551) (1,056)  (399,607)
Total other comprehensive Et2ENEES

income - - (401,553) - (401,553) (1,056) (402,609)
Total comprehensiveincome  2HRHAE = = (401553) 3,649,215 3,247,662 (14,028) 3233634
Transactions with owners BREAZRS
Dividends paid ZRE 19 = - - (3100502)  (3,100,502) (444)  (3,100,946)
Shares repurchased and BHREREENRR

cancelled 18 712) . - (180070)  (184782) - (18478
Appropriation to statutory reserves  EEZ TR 19 - - 216,281 (216,281) = - =
Business combinations under  EEEH TERAH

common control 36 - - (51,986) - (51,986) - (51,986)
Acquistion of non-controling interests  UiBRE R e 3% = = = = - (2,240) (2,240)
Capital confrbution by non-controling ~ JE 44 %58

interests - - - - - 707 707
Total transactions with owners ~ REFAZR 4% (4112) - 164295  (3496,853)  (3,337,270) (1,977)  (3.339,247)
Balance at 31 March 2020 20203831 A& 1,866,355 462,130 (4,604,604) 17,548,801 15,272,682 81532 15,354,214

The notes on pages 160 to 272 are an integral part of these consolidated F160EE2T2AZMERREMBERETZ
financial statements. —&7 e
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RERERER

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
BZ2020F BZE2019%F
3A31H 3H31H
LFE IEFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
g3 AR®T T ARBT T
(Restated)
(&=5)
Cash flows from operating activities EEIBNERSRE
Cash generated from operations BEELENERS 32 6,391,407 5,357,739
Interest paid 2R (294,824) (267,050)
Interest received 2 WFIE 485,319 547,995
Income tax paid 2R (1,736,570) (1,285,453)
Net Cash generated from operating activities EETHEENTFRS 4,845,332 4,353,231
Cash flows from investing activities Eﬁ)ﬁibﬂ’ﬁﬁ%umg
Purchases of property, plant and equipment A - HBRHRE (291,261) (354,919)
Purchases of right-of-use assets BACRAEEE (3,724) -
Purchases of leasehold land and BAEELH
land use rights e+ i fF FRAE - (25,980)
Purchases of intangible assets BARTEE 9 (1,163) (913)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYIZE - HEE
plant and equipment BB RIE 4,279 2,670
Proceeds from disposal of leasehold land HERET R b
and land use rights fEAREFTBRIE - 275,646
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HERAFEEBRESRT
fair value through profit or loss RS REESRIE - 482,390
Net Cash (used in)/generated from investing REZTE(FTA) EE
activities HFEE (291,869) 378,894
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n‘l_\éiﬁlﬁiﬁléi
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
EZE2020F BZE20195
3H31H 3A31H
LFE IEFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt ARMT T AREEF T
(Restated)
(EE7)
Cash flows from financing activities METHNRERE
Shares repurchased and cancelled SEEREHE KRG 18 (184,782) (49,189)
Dividends paid to equity holders of EAD SR A
the Company THRE 31 (3,100,502) (2,296,618)
Lease payments HERR (56,587) -
Capital contribution by FEPEH R R
non-controlling interests TE 707 5,728
Cash paid to the parent company of B IRIE H [ 42 I AUk i
the entity acquired under common control ERINFRZRE 36 (51,986) -
Cash paid to non-controlling interests holders U BB B A T EBIMER T
for additional ownership interests in T F IR R
subsidiaries BEANERE 35 (2,240) (15,554)
Proceeds from borrowings BB FIE 4,559,144 7,203,613
Repayments of borrowings BEER (5,654,014) (5,091,875)
Net Cash used in financing activities REEETANFERS (4,490,260) (243,895)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BEeERRESEEYIEINFEEE 63,203 4,488,230
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUNEERREEEY
of the year 17,160,428 12,526,029
Exchange gains B 2 Uk 33,296 146,169
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRONEER
of the year HEZEY 17 17,256,927 17,160,428
The notes on pages 160 to 272 form an integral part of these consolidated E160EE272E M AREMBHRK 2
financial statements. —&D o
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mEMBERRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Want Want China Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacturing and distribution of food and beverages. The Group’s
activities are primarily conducted in the People’s Republic of China
(“the PRC”), and its products are also sold to North America, East Asia,

South-East Asia and Europe.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3 October
2007 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered
office is Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland

House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company has had its primary listing on the Main Board of The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 26 March 2008.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless

otherwise stated.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”), which are carried at

fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are

disclosed in Note 4.
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e M RRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a) New standard, amendments and interpretation of HKFRSs
adopted by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2020

A number of new standard, amendments and interpretation to existing
standards became applicable for the financial year beginning on 1
April 2019 and the Group had to change its accounting policies as a
result of adopting HKFRS 16 ‘Leases’. The other new amendments
and interpretation did not give rise to any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements. These new standard, amendments and
interpretation are set out below:

(i) HKFRS 16 ‘Leases’

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 ‘Leases’ is disclosed in
Note 2.2 below.

(i)  HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments’, explains how to recognise and measure deferred
and current income tax assets and liabilities where there is
uncertainty over a tax treatment. In particular, it discusses as
below:

How to determine the appropriate unit of account, and that
each uncertain tax treatment should be considered separately
or together as a group, depending on which approach better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty; that the entity should
assume a tax authority will examine the uncertain tax treatments
and have full knowledge of all related information, i.e. that
detection risk should be ignored; that the entity should reflect
the effect of the uncertainty in its income tax accounting when it
is not probable that the tax authorities will accept the treatment;
that the impact of the uncertainty should be measured using
either the most likely amount or the expected value method,
depending on which method better predicts the resolution of the
uncertainty; and that the judgements and estimates made must
be reassessed whenever circumstances have changed or there is
new information that affects the judgements.
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mEMBERRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1

(@)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Basis of preparation (continued)

New standard, amendments and interpretation of HKFRSs
adopted by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2020
(continued)

HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments’, explains how to recognise and measure deferred
and current income tax assets and liabilities where there is
uncertainty over a tax treatment. In particular, it discusses as
below: (continued)

While there are no new disclosure requirements, entities are
reminded of the general requirement to provide information
about judgements and estimates made in preparing the financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 regarding prepayment features with
negative compensation enable entities to measure certain
prepayable financial assets with negative compensation at
amortised cost. These assets, which include some loan and debt
securities, would otherwise have to be measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

To qualify for amortised cost measurement, the negative
compensation must be ‘reasonable compensation for early
termination of the contract’ and the asset must be held within a
‘held to collect’ business model.

Amendments to HKAS 28 regarding long-term interests in
associates and joint ventures clarify the accounting for long-term
interests in an associate or joint venture, which in substance form
part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture, but
to which equity accounting is not applied. Entities must account
for such interests under HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ before
applying the loss allocation and impairment requirements in
HKAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures'.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. HESHREEE®E

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REBE(E

(a) New standard, amendments and interpretation of HKFRSs (a) FEBEREZ2020FE3H31H
adopted by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2020 I FEERNE B BHREE
(continued) BIRy Fra] R - 155 R 2 FE

(#&)
(v) Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 20152017 Cycle (v) 2017F12A RN BB KR

LE2015FE2017FBHF
EDE -

which were finalised in December 2017:

HKFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ — clarified that
obtaining control of a business that is a joint operation is a
business combination achieved in stages.

HKFRS 11 ‘Joint Arrangements’ — clarified that the party
obtaining joint control of a business that is a joint operation
should not remeasure its previously held interest in the
joint operation.

HKAS 12 ‘Income tax’ — clarified that the income tax
consequences of dividends on financial instruments
classified as equity should be recognised according to
where the past transactions or events that generated
distributable profits were recognised.

HKAS 23 ‘Borrowing Costs’ — clarified that, if a specific
borrowing remains outstanding after the related qualifying
asset is ready for its intended use or sale, it becomes part
of general borrowings.
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9 B3 BZBE =R B PR/ R Want Want China Holdings Limited

mEMBERRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1

(@)

(vi)

(b)

(ii)

Basis of preparation (continued)

New standard, amendments and interpretation of HKFRSs
adopted by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2020
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19 regarding plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, clarify the accounting for defined
benefit plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. They
confirm that entities must:

. calculate the current service cost and net interest for the
remainder of the reporting period after a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement by using the updated assumptions
from the date of the change;

. recognise any reduction in a surplus immediately in profit
or loss, either as part of past service cost or as a gain or
loss on settlement. In other words, a reduction in a surplus
must be recognised in profit or loss even if that surplus
was not previously recognised because of the impact of
the asset ceiling;

. separately recognise any changes in the asset ceiling
through other comprehensive income.

Additional disclosures are required if an entity adopts the
requirements prospectively.

New standard, amendments and interpretation of HKFRSs issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 April
2019 and have not been early adopted by the Group

HKFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 (but likely to be extended).

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 regarding definition of
material, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1

(b)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

2.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

New standard, amendments and interpretation of HKFRSs issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 April
2019 and have not been early adopted by the Group (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 regarding definition of a business,
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 regarding
interbank offered rates (IBORs) reform and its effects on
financial reporting, effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2020.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 regarding sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture, originally intended to be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The effective date
has not been determined.

Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 ‘Leases’
on the Group’s financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2.1 above, the Group has adopted HKFRS 16
‘Leases’ from 1 April 2019, but has not restated comparatives for the
financial year ended 31 March 2019, as permitted under the simplified
transition approach in the standard. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new leasing standard are therefore
recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1 April 2019. The new
accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2.26.
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mEMBERRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in
relation to leases which had previously been classified as ‘operating
leases’ under the principles of HKAS 17 ‘Leases’. These liabilities
were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 April
2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate

applied to the lease liabilities on 1 April 2019 was 4.00%.

(i)  Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the

following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

. the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with

reasonably similar characteristics;

. reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are

onerous;

. the accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term
of less than 12 months as at 1 April 2019 as short-term leases;

. the exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of the

right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and

. the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the

contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract
is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application. Instead, for
contracts entered into before the transition date the Group relied on its
assessment made applying HKAS 17 and HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 4

‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. HESHREEE®E
(continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued) 22 BEFBEREE (E)
(i) Measurement right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (i) RAREERHERE:Z
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Operating lease commitments (excluding leases relating 720193 831 BIRE 2 K& HERIE
to leasehold land and land use rights) disclosed as at 31  (NEIFERFEE 1 #th % 1 b FAEAR

March 2019 BEzEE) 142,656
Less: N
Short-term leases to be recognised on a straight-line RESLZBEIABEINENEE
basis as expenses (5,614)
Low-value leases to be recognised on a straight-line RESIBERABINREERE
basis as expenses (2,605)
134,437

Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate  RAGER AR ARBANEERSE
at the date of initial application, representing additional FIZEETHAER - $8ER20195F4A4

lease liabilities recognised as at 1 April 2019 1ABERWEIMEEEE 105,596

Add: o

Reclassification of leasehold land and land use rights HET R L FERAENEH 2 939,914

Right-of-use assets recognised as at 1 April 2019 R2019F4 1B RRNFEAEEE 1,045,510
The right-of-use use assets were measured at the amount equal to FAREEDZRAENEEEENS
the lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued A5t E 0 WiIRIBEMN2019F4B1REE
lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet BERERZZEEREZEMENS
as at 1 April 2019. There were no onerous lease contracts that would RETHENRSEEETAE - B
have required an adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the date of WMERBE  BREEEEEENE
initial application. BYHERAREEETRAE -
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mEMBERRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. HESHHEEE®SE

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued) 22 BFBEREE (E)

(iii)  Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on 1 April 2019 (i) R2019F4F1HELEESRER

SRR

The change in accounting policy affected the following items in the R2019F4 818 » EFBEREFETS

balance sheet on 1 April 2019: EESER2ER:

. leasehold land and land use rights — decrease by RMB939,914,000 . AE LR Lt FERAE - R
AFE#939,914,0007¢

+  right-of-use assets — increase by RMB1,045,510,000 s HRAREE-ZEMAR®
1,045,510,0007T

«  lease liabilities (current portion) — increase by RMB26,075,000 - HESGEEIEED) —EBMA
R#26,075,0007T

. lease liabilities (non-current portion) — increase by RMB79,521,000 . HEAE GEREIB D) —1Bm

AE#79,521,0007T

There was no impact on retained earnings on 1 April 2019. A2019F4 818 2RE&F L B Z F|
AL -

(iv) Lessor accounting (iv) HHEANETEE
The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting RNE B EHRELERE 167 2%
for assets held as lessor under operating leases as a result of the AEERFHSEHEETUBEA
adoption of HKFRS 16. BB EEENSTREFEEMA
# o
2.3 Subsidiaries 23 MBLRFE
2.3.1 Consolidation 2.3.1 &BtIRE
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the MEBAREASEREEHENTAE
Group has control. The Group controls an entity where the Group is T (BEABLEE  c EAEEER
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with SHEZETRNEEMAIE T2 ERN
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power [ B =R = 75 ] 4 [0 R A9 A 2 3 S B
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which FRHHZIRNENSELZ @R
control is transferred to the Group except for business combination B REEREHZER -MBAR
under common control as described below. They are deconsolidated EEHEEEEZASE2ARE O
from the date that control ceases. ARBRTHRE—ZHTEESHU
D) c MEBARIEEGIEL L AR
ELEEBAR
Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on EERQEZENRS REWE
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits and - IMARBEXZTULEE - REKE
losses resulting from inter-company transactions that are recognised ARRENRBNEX BIEREE)
in assets are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence TF U RIIRZEHEZEEE
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies WEFERSERR - MBARNE
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure FRECREEFELHRE - URRE
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. AEBRBNBRRE 3 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (continued)
(a) Business combinations

(i) Merger accounting for business combination under common
control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the combining entities or businesses in business
combinations under common control as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the ultimate holding company.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the carrying amount from the ultimate holding
company’s perspective. No amount is recognised for goodwill or the
excess of the Group’s interest in the book value of the net assets over
cost at the time of the common control combination, to the extent of
the continuation of the ultimate holding company’s interest.

The comparative financial data have been restated to reflect the
business combinations under common control which occurred during
this year as disclosed in Note 36.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration fees, costs
of furnishing information to shareholders, costs or losses incurred
in combining operations of the previously separate businesses and
other costs incurred in relation to the common control combination
that is to be accounted for by using the merger accounting method are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

(i) Acquisition method for other business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations other than common control combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

EREHRERER @)
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mEMBERRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a) Business combinations (continued)

(i)  Acquisition method for other business combinations (continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the fair value of non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control
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joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.3.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.4 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the
carry amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in
the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profits
or losses of associates’ in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the executive Directors that make strategic
decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The Company’s functional currency is US$ and the consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other gains — net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as FVOCI are included in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rates on the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of any net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is
sold or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid,
the associated exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
equity holders of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2, EESHBREE@

(continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal (continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s
ownership interest in associates that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence) the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost represents consideration paid for the purchase of the land.
Freehold land is not subject to depreciation.

Construction-in-progress (the “CIP”) represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and is stated
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes
the costs of construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No depreciation is made on CIP until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are available for use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy as
stated below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statements during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost less impairment loss (if any), other than freehold land and
construction in progress, to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

- Buildings 20-60 years
- Furniture, machinery and equipment 2-15 years
- Vehicles, aircraft and transportation 5-20 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with carrying amounts and are recognised within ‘other gains
—net’ in the consolidated income statement.

2.8 Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if
any). Cost represents consideration paid for the rights to use the land
on which various plants and buildings are situated for periods from
20 to 70 years. Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights is
calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of the leases.

As disclosed in Note 2.2, the Group has adopted HKFRS 16 ‘Leases’
from 1 April 2019, but has not restated comparatives for the year
ended 31 March 2019, as permitted under the simplified transition
approach in the standard. The reclassifications from leasehold land
and land use rights to right-of-use asset (Note 2.26) arising from the
new leasing standard are therefore recognised in the opening balance
sheet on 1 April 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.9 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the Group, are
classified as investment properties.

Properties and the building component of leasehold investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss (if any). The land component of
leasehold investment properties is accounted for as leasehold land
and classified in leasehold land and land use rights.

Depreciation of investment properties is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate cost less impairment loss (if any) to their
residual value over their estimated useful lives of 10 to 40 years.

2.10 Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred over the Company'’s interest
in net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”),
or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (continued)
(b) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at historical cost.
Trademarks acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks have finite useful lives
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks over their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

(c) Computer softwares

Computer softwares represent purchased softwares and amortised
over their estimated useful lives of 5 years.

2.11 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries, associates and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Other non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profits
or losses of associates’ in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
2.12 Investments and other financial assets

2.12.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement

categories:

. those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through

other comprehensive income or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash

flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in the income statement or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at

FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its

business model for managing those assets changes.

2.12.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
2.12.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in the consolidated income statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment
of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in the income statement
and presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented in
in the consolidated income statement.

2.

EREHRERER @)

212 RERAMEMEE (&)
2123 5t &

RS HERE - AREZAFEME
BReREEEERG 2 S AR
ETREE(NEREELFEQF
EEBBERRLRKR) - RAFEEBRRE
BRRZEMEEZRZBAARGEE
W R HHER

BEAARAMTETACERMEES
BENRERTEAINFIERFE
B EREMEECEEETZRE -

EFTA

BERTANRETTERRARAREE
HEENEBREANZREEZRS
RERH  AEESEEBTASE
R=REFTEER :

« HSEHEAE  ARHEHNBRER
EMFE  BREREEAX
NARERFNE2EERBIEK
FHE - ZEETHMEEZANE
WARBEBRF AT AR
A RILERELENEM KRG
FEREERNRE R PR
WREA S (F518) hEE s
EWEKEE—H5R - BE
BERGERBERBIIR

2019/2020% % | ANNUAL REPORT 179



9 B BEBE AR BBR/A R Want Want China Holdings Limited

mEMBERRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
2.12.3 Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

. FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through other comprehensive income (“OCI”), except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised
in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other
gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in the
income statement and presented net within other gains/(losses)
in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
2.12.3 Measurement (continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in the income statement as other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in
other gains/(losses) in the income statement as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.

2.12.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, see Note 3.1(b)
for further details.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or
less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See Note 2.12.2 for
further information about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables
and Note 2.12.4 and 3.1 (b) for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less.

2.16 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity share
capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are
cancelled or reissued.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.17 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
income tax. Income tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the
income tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be

paid to the tax authorities.
(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis difference

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only when there
is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control the
reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred
tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

2.21 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit
plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit
that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one
or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(a) Pension obligations (continued)

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined
benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of
plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation. In
countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the market

rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised in
the income statement in employee benefit expense, except where
included in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the defined
benefit obligation results from employee service in the current year.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in

profit or loss as past service costs.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the

income statement.

Remeasurement and actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the

statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly
or privately administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a

cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)
(a) Pension obligations (continued)

The Group participates in various defined contribution plans
administered by the relevant authorities or third parties, where
appropriate, and defined benefit plans for its employees in places
where it conducts business.

(b) Bonus plan

The Group recognises provision for bonuses where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

(c) Employee leave entitlements

A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and
long-service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

2.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition
Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells rice crackers, dairy products and
beverages, snack foods and other products. Sales are recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being when the products
are delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion over
the channel and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customer, and either the customer has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions
have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

The products are often sold with retrospective volume discounts
based on aggregate sales over a period of time. Revenue from these
sales is recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net of
the estimated volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for the discounts, and revenue is only recognised
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will
not occur. A refund liability (included in accruals and other payables)
is recognised for expected volume discounts payable to customers in
relation to sales. No element of financing is deemed present as the
sales are made with a credit term of 60-90 days, which is consistent
with market practice.

A receivable is usually recognised when revenue recognised as this is
the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only
the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

The Group’s obligations to provide a refund for faulty products are
under the standard warranty terms. Accumulated experience is used
to estimate such returns at the time of sale. Because of the large
size and low value of each individual product, the amount of products
returned were immaterial. It is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.
Therefore, no refund liability for goods return was recognized. The
validity of this assumption and the estimated amount of returns are
reassessed at each reporting date.

For certain payments to customers for promotion activities, the Group
did not provide a distinct good or service to customers and therefore
recorded as a deduction of revenue.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period
between the transfer of the promised goods to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value
of money.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.24 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the income statement over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
presented by deducting the grant in calculating the carrying amount of
the asset, and recognised in profit or loss over the life of a depreciable
asset as a reduced depreciation expense.

2.25 Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from financial assets that are held for cash management purposes,
see Note 28 below. Any other interest income is included in other
income.

2.26 Leases

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its accounting
policy for leases where the Group is the lessee. The new policy is
described below and the impact of the change in Note 2.2.

Until 31 March 2019, leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership were retained by the lessor were classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) were charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 April 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

2.

EREHRERER @)
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BRERANRRITEN - BEARIE
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BMEE  BERANZTEARZEREE
AR AR (FIRRE IR B TR) -

FMEWAZIRFHERESEERRN
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FiaE28 o {EMEAMFI S WA HET A
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2.26 #HE

HERBRHEANBESFEE - HK
RRTXEM  MEFEZBNTER
REE2.2

EZ2019F38318  HEAREFT
Bz A ARKRERzEETD
FAHAKEHEE - RELCEREX T2
FE (KR B B A WER Z {28 B
£%)  REENRUESEIESRS
W RAFIERX -
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Az BEREEAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.26 Leases (continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments).

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension

options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar

terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party financing was received

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does

not have recent third party financing; and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country,

currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance

of the liability for each period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.26 Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability; and

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

2.27 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

. the profit attributable to owners of the company, excluding
any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.27 Earnings per share (continued)

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination

of basic earnings per share to take into account:

. the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs

associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares; and

. the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all

dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.28 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividend is approved by the Company’s

shareholders or Directors, when appropriate.
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group’s financial performance.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk

()  Foreign exchange risk

The Company’s functional currency is US$ and majority of its
subsidiaries’ functional currency is RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future purchases from overseas, and certain recognised assets or
liabilities, such as the FVOCI which are denominated in Japanese Yen
(Note 13) and the cash and cash equivalents which are denominated
in US$ and other currencies (Note 17), and net investments in foreign
operations. The Group has not hedged its foreign exchange rate
risk because the exposure, after netting off the assets and liabilities
subject to foreign exchange risk, is not significant.

As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 10% against RMB with all other variables held
constant, the post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 would
have been RMB11,686,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2019:
RMB2,070,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of US$ denominated payables.

(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because the
equity investments held by the Group which are classified on the
consolidated balance sheets as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The Group has not hedged its price risk
arising from these investments (Note 13) and will continue to monitor
price risk exposure.

For the Group’s equity investments that are publicly traded, the fair
value is determined with reference to quoted market prices. For the
Group’s equity investments that are not publicly traded, the Group uses
its judgment to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet
date.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings with
variable rates, which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. The Bonds and other bank borrowings bear interest at a fixed
rate, which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Details of
fixed and variable interest rates borrowings are disclosed in Note 32.
The interest rates and terms of repayments of bank borrowings are

disclosed in Note 22.

The Group currently does not use any financial instruments to hedge
against its interest rate risk exposure. Management will continue to
monitor interest rate risk exposure and will consider hedging significant

interest rate risk exposure should the need arise.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, if interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 10% higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the profit before tax would have been RMB13,211,000
(for the year ended 31 March 2019: RMB17,947,000) lower/higher
respectively, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expenses on

floating rate borrowings.

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, except for
short-term bank deposits. Management does not anticipate significant
impact on interest-bearing assets resulted from the changes in interest
rates because the interest rates of bank deposits are relatively low and

not expected to change significantly.

(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The carrying
amounts of bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables included in the consolidated financial statements represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial

assets.

As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, all bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents were deposited in the high quality financial
institutions without significant credit risk. Therefore, the Group believes

related credit risk is insignificant.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued)

Most of the Group’s sales are settled in cash or in checks by its
customers on delivery of goods. Credit sales are made only to
selected customers with good credit history. The Group has policies
in place to ensure that trade receivables are followed up on a timely
basis.

In relation to balances with subsidiaries, the Company assessed the
credibility of the subsidiaries by reviewing their operating results and
cash flow position periodically.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has trade receivables for sales of inventory that are subject
to the expected credit loss model.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables from initial recognition. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. On that
basis, the loss allowance as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019
was determined as follows for trade receivables:

MERRER (&)
3.1 HERBEZEGE)
(b) 1EHEREGE)

REBARND HERNTEERFH
EFUBREYXREE - GARKE
RALENEERFFLERE - A5H
RERRABRERREZSEZE
Wk o

ERWB ARG  AAFEBESR
ERHEEXERBERMAN - 7E
MEARNERE -

() EHEERE

FEEHEFEMELENE S BYK
AXTARERBERERARR -

BERERBESEBYTIAETER
P mEEREIRARMERE - B
SR B RERBELTERX

AEBRABR BV KIREERIEIR
LA AT EREEREL KL
HBRE > AEE SERFERERME
FEHRNEHREE - BFf2EEHE
A% BESERRCEREBLER
RS HRBHRESE - BHE
#  JA2020F3 A31H KX2019%3 8
ITEMNEBEZERFSEREETN
T :

Morethan Morethan Morethan More than

1day 60 days 90days  120days
Current  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue Total

(=it gag cag cag
REH 1Bt 60BMLE  90BLAE 120BME st
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR AR®TRT AR%TR ARETR

At 31 March 2020 ®202063A31H

Gross carrying amount BEREE 562,643 232,800 21,648 6,988 78,132 902,211

Expected loss rate RHEER 0.50% 2.00% 10.00% 20.00% 60.00%
Loss allowance BRI E 2,813 4,656 2,165 1,398 44,435 55,467
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HEBREREE#E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BEREEGE)
(b)  Credit risk (continued) (b) 1R (E)
(i)  Impairment of financial assets (continued) () ZHEEHEGE)
Trade receivables (continued) BEZ BN (E)
Morethan ~ Morethan ~ More than ~ More than
1 day 60 days 90 days 120 days
Current past due past due past due past due Total
[k [l [l [l
REH  1AMLE  60AMLE  90BMLE 120BLAL 3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL AR®TR ARBTR AR®TR ARETRT AR®ETR
At 31 March 2019 (Restated) #2019%3A831R (EE7)
Gross carrying amount BEREE 744,574 233,678 15,675 17,433 95,690 1,107,050
Expected loss rate ROEER 0.50% 2.00% 10.00% 20.00% 60.00%
Loss allowance EERE 3,723 4,674 1,571 3,586 58,526 72,080

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as administrative
expenses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited against the same line item.

Net impairment gains/losses on financial assets recognised in profit or

loss

During the year, gains on reversal of losses of RMB16,655,000 (for the
year ended 31 March 2019: losses of RMB8,136,000) are recognised

in the consolidated income statement.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient
cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping committed credit lines available. Details of the
undrawn borrowing facilities available to the Group are disclosed in

Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.

196 2019/2020% % | ANNUAL REPORT

EZRUWHREBEREEFN BN
PIRITHRIX o AR UWE YT AT S
ST AR —S5EE -

FIABm AL HMEERE K B
FEE

RAEAEE  BEOBANWERZEARE
16,655,0007T (B £201963 8310 1t
FE  BEARYS,136,0007T) REE
BB RER -

(c) ETEEE

HENADHESEREREREERER
BHEERBESEEY  BBENS
BEMAHEERREMRRE - A£EE
HEHESTRAEEHEE  UREE
SHEEH - BRAEETANKRIE
REEREFBRBENGEVERE
FEE22 o

TREBEEEBERBESHNEHA
M T BEAKESRFREESE
NeRBEREBEIPARNETD
o RRPIBENSEASHOMERIT
RRERE -



9> ] B BT =R BBR/AE Want Want China Holdings Limited

e M RRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HERBTE®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BEREEGE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) mEEESE (E)

Between Between Between

Lessthan 3 months land 2 2and5 Over 5

3months and 1year years years years Total
MEAZE

3EANT 1R 1E2FR 2E5FR S5EME wst

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR

At 31 March 2020 ®202063A31H
Borrowings (Note 22) B (ffa£22) 499,230 87,855 4,779,358 3,542,550 - 8,908,993
Interests payable RIS 77,651 121,088 116,328 50,924 - 365991
Trade payables (Note 20) B 5 T3 (iEF20) 1,019,466 73,626 = = - 1,093,092
Lease liabilities (Note 10) HESE(HE0) 14,621 42,135 27,832 26,110 19,010 129,708
Accruals and other payables ~ FEETE AR HAEAH

and other non-current R EMIERE

liabilities &f 1,632,160 = 7,373 17,692 51,505 1,708,730

3,243,128 324,704 4,930,891 3,637,276 70,515 12,206,514

At 31 March 2019 (Restated) #2019F3A31R (L&)

Borrowings (Note 22) & (H=E22) 1,727,083 16,799 - 70808610 - 9552492
Interests payable RIS 78,271 190,475 253,879 326,331 - 848,956
Trade payables (Note 20) EE T BEACEZ) 993,834 41,066 - - - 1,034,900
Accruals and other payables ~ FEsTE AR E MM

and other non-current REAMIERE

liabilities a8 1,396,751 1,475 5,898 17,692 60,311 1,482,127

4,195,939 249,815 259,777 8,152,633 60,311 12,918,475
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to

shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the net gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity

excluding non-controlling interests.

The net gearing ratios at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 were as

MEREER (&)
32 EBEXERERE

FEENWERAETERR » RREAE
EREAELYE - UBRREHLHRM
REMAZERERENS - BEE
FRENERGBUUREERRA -

RTHESIARELRER  A5ET
REEREEXNTRERNBREEE @
BRREREEAR  BITHRALEEE
LURE &7 o

HERNHMAT K AREFAF
EHEELREFRAER o R
EHRRERBESSEMNRETR
Ll (R Jr b i) 715 -

2020 3HA31HKR20195F3 431

follows: B BREZEEZRNT :
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
2020% 20195
3A31H 3831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
(Restated)
(&E5)
Total borrowings (Note 22) RE (FIEE22) 8,880,651 9,517,360

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

o RERREEEY

(Note 17) (B EE17) (17,256,927) (17,160,428)
Net cash REFEE (8,376,276) (7,643,068)
Total equity excluding non-controlling wiER o T8

interests JEFE IR R 15,272,682 15,362,290
Net gearing ratio FREDAEE (54.84%) (49.75%)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HERBTE®)

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEME

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried TRIBBETE D FENGBERTH

at fair value as at 31 March 2020 by level of the inputs to valuation FREREINEANEBR 2 AEE

techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised H2020F3A31HEATFEAKRNSE
into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows: RITH B ARBATLEBRSE
BRWT=E

+  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets - MHEEEREBTEEWSEN
or liabilities (level 1). WE CREHTARE) (B1E) -

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are . MRTHEIBFBIENREN » Z
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as EEREENTEHENEME
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). AR BEE BHImER) R E

#EVRBER) (B28) -

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable - EERBBLIFMEBETHED

market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). SEE N A (BETERER
A) (5E3[8) o
The following tables present the Group’s assets that are measured at TRERKTEEMN2020F3A318 K
fair value as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019: 2019 3A31HRAFEFENE
=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B1E %2E 538 HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARMT T AR¥TRT AR%T R
At 31 March 2020 R2020%3H31H
FVOCI (Note 13) BRAFEZEBREMEE
W zs 50 BR (FY5E13) 31,761 — — 31,761
At 31 March 2019 M2019%3H31H
FVOCI (Note 13) BAVEZBHMERE
Y g5 50 AR (FIEE13) 38,671 — — 38,671

(a) Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, and the price represents actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

(a) F1EZHTHE

EERMSEENEMITANATE
REEEEEXRANTSREIRK -
EREVEBNERRISFS E
B MEBREARBRIFRZEEE
THERNERTEXZE  Zhi5
WRBER - AEESFENEREE
MNHERERESELHRE ST
EEERES1E -
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

PRC taxes

The Group is mainly subject to different taxes in the PRC. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that are
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive Directors. The executive Directors review the Group’s
internal reports in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on their
reports.

The executive Directors consider the business from a product
perspective and assess the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of segment profit or loss. Management assesses
the performance of rice crackers, dairy products and beverages, snack
foods and other products.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Group’s operations are mainly organized under four business
segments, including manufacturing and sale of:

- Rice crackers, including sugar coated crackers, savoury crackers
and fried crackers, gift packs;

- Dairy products and beverages, including flavoured milk, room-
temperature yogurt, yogurt drinks, ready-to-drink coffee, juice
drinks, sports drinks, herbal tea and milk powder;

- Snack foods, including candies, popsicles, ball cakes and jellies,
beans, nuts and others; and

- Other products, including mainly wine and other food products.

Over 90% of the Group’s revenue and business activities are
conducted in the PRC.

The executive Directors assess the performance of the business
segments based on profit before income tax excluded other
unallocated head office operating expenses, finance income-net and
share of losses of associates, which is consistent with that in the
financial statements.

(a) Segment information

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 and for
the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out as follows:

5.

B2k SEEHE)

REEWEEETEUTIINEZES D
BHE  BEEEREE

- REER SEBXEXS
BERCK Bt R AEDNE ~ KB
2 ;

- HmRER - SEEWwSFH -
EIRERLS - LB ~ BIERIN
gE - BOTER - BEEESR R
KR

- ERER EEER KR
NEEMRBER - T8 B1CH
Hith : &

- HttEm EEREEREAM

P - |
Enan °

REEBIBI0% K W K EHE =
BT

BITESREBBRASHEAFRE (T
Hit RO EMABMEXER MENR
A-FREREBLBEQTER) MG
E¥oM2RE  BRBHR -

(a) EBEH
AEBEE2020F3831HIEFER

BZE2019F3A31 A LEEMWZEN
T :

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

HE20205F HZE20195

3A31H 3A31H

LFE EFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREET T

Rice crackers RE 5,611,414 5,813,485
Dairy products and beverages 75 & ekl 9,813,411 9,729,601
Snack foods R 4,634,188 5,101,099
Other products HttER 35,518 67,842
Total revenue U EE 20,094,531 20,712,027
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mEMBERRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. KBRABEE @

(a) DEBEHR (E)

(a) Segment information (continued)

HZE2020F3A31A L EEDBEL

The segment information for the year ended 31 March 2020 is as

follows: mT
Year ended 31 March 2020
BE2020%3831 AL EE
Dairy products
Rice crackers  and beverages Snack foods  Other products Group
KR AmREH ERR RtbER £8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBFR ARBTR ARBTR ARBFR

Segment results PHEE
Revenue W 5,611,414 9,813,411 4,634,188 35,518 20,094,531
Timing of revenue recognition Eat et

Ata point in time RE-BEY 5,611,414 9,813,411 4,634,188 35518 20,094,531
Segment profit(loss) PR/ (BB 1,304,370 3,115,177 992,330 (6,590) 5,405,287
Unallocated costs RABHK (599,353)
Finance income - net BEWA-F8 246,209
Share of losses of associates ELHENRER (3,354)
Profit before income tax BEERATE 5,048,789
Income tax expense fiEkiER (1,412,546)
Profit for the year EERNE 3,636,243
Other segment items included inthe st AREF 2 EftAHER

income statement
Depreciation of property, plant and NE  BRRRETE

equipment 231,115 348,459 228,671 466 808,711
Amortisation of right-of-use assets FRESESRH 17,671 37,382 17,843 3,989 76,885
Depreciation of investment properties  REMEITE - = = 1,464 1,464
Unallocated depreciation and nE - BERRAE FREEE

amortisation of property, plant and REWEERDENE

equipment, right-of-use assets and R

intangible assets 18,838
Capital expenditure EAEX
Capital expenditure by segments RAPED L ERER 103,864 4,177 55,780 16,091 250,512
Unallocated capital expenditure FABEARR 45,636
Total Capital expenditure EREEY 296,148
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. WaRSBEEE)
(a) Segment information (continued) (a) ZDBEBERGE)
Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, investments in PHEETBRERERBAESEEY
associates and other unallocated head office and corporate assets BeENTRE  URHEMKDENE
as these assets are managed on a group basis. Segment liabilities HRAREE  ARSEEREEE
exclude borrowings and other unallocated head office and corporate HEE - pHEETEEERREM
liabilities, as these liabilities are managed on a group basis. FOWMWARRATERE  FZEE
BREBERER -
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2020 are as follows: M2020F3B31EMSBEERARE
mT
31 March 2020
2020534318
Dairy products
Rice crackers  and beverages Snack foods ~ Other products Group
*E ARREH AR EfbER £8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBFR ARBTT ARBTR ARBFR

Segment assets and liabilities ABEERERE

Segment assets HEE 2,591,487 6,620,859 3,115,137 113,056 12,440,539
Unallocated assets ROMERE 112,099
Cash and cash equivalents HeRRLZEN 17,256,927
Investments in associates BEN\ARE 15,425
Total assets BEE 29,824,990
Segment liabilities 298E 1,503,117 2,658,950 1,256,412 10,994 5,429,473
Unallocated liabilities FrHEE 160,652
Borrowings EE 8,880,651
Total liabilties aeR 14,470,776
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mEMBERRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. KAaRHBEE B
(a) Segment information (continued) (a) ZDBBERGE)
The segment information for the year ended 31 March 2019 is as HZE2019F3A31BILEESBER
follows: mT
Year ended 31 March 2019
BE19F3ANALEE
Dairy products
Rice crackers  and beverages Snack foods  Other products Group
K AmREH HERR EfER £8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTR ARET R
Segment results PHEE
Revenue W 5,813,485 9,729,601 5,101,099 67,842 20,712,027
Timing of revenue recognition Eat et
Ata point in time RE-BEE 5,813,485 9,729,601 5,101,099 67,842 20,712,027
Segment profit PHFE 1,201,441 2,951,513 1,020,820 4,826 5,178,600
Unallocated costs RABHK (592,117)
Finance income-net BEWA-F8 225,282
Share of losses of associates ELHENRER (5:444)
Profit before income tax BEERATE 4,806,321
Income tax expense fiEkiER (1,343,750)
Profit for the year EEFE 3,462,571
Other segment items included inthe st AREF 2 EftAHER
income statement
Depreciation of property, plant and NE  BRRRETE
equipment 229,539 349,066 227,589 949 807,143
Amortisation of leasehold land and land &+ b5 £t FIEHH
use rights 6,202 13,638 5,993 1,228 27,061
Depreciation of investment properties ~ REMEITE - - - 1461 1461
Unallocated depreciation and nE - BERRE BELHR

amortisation of property, plant and THERRNREREEADE
equipment, leasehold land and land R #sh

use rights and intangible assets 18,252
Capital expenditure EAEX
Capital expenditure by segments EABES 2 EAER 94,633 115,951 51,358 41,755 303,697
Unallocated capital expenditure FABEARR 78,115
Total Capital expenditure EREEY 381,812
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. WaRSBEEE)

(a) Segment information (continued) (a) ZDBEBERGE)

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, investments in PHEETERERERREEEY -
associates and other unallocated head office and corporate assets BENTRREREMRD B ZELAT
as these assets are managed on a group basis. Segment liabilities REEEE HRNZESEEHEESR
exclude borrowings and other unallocated head office and corporate —ER - pHEETERFERREM
liabilities, as these liabilities are managed on a group basis. ROBZBBRAREE  ARZE

AEmREESR-EE -

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2019 are as follows: R2019F3A31EMSBEERARE
mT
31 March 2019 (Restated)
R20195 38317 (FE5))
Dairy products
Rice crackers  and beverages Snack foods  Other products Group
KR AmREH R EthER &8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTT ARETT ARBT R ARET T ARETT
Segment assets and liabilities ABEERERE

Segment assets AHEE 2,518,037 6,711,871 3,223,981 120,879 12,574,768
Unallocated assets FOREE 120,430
Cash and cash equivalents HeRRLZEN 17,160,428
Investments in associates B2NARE 18,779
Total assets BEE 29,874,405
Segment liabilities PHEE 1,280,730 2,256,105 1,193,901 11,077 4,741,813
Unallocated liabilities AARER 155,405
Borrowings B3 9,517,360
Total liabiliies ek 14,414,578
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. KBRABEE @

(b) BEEFEXHEE

(b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts AEECRIUTEREFEANE
with customers: f&:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

20204 20194

3H31H 3A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T AREET T

(Restated)

(BEE7)

Contract liabilities — rice crackers BREaE KR 440,608 307,834
Contract liabilities — dairy products and &S HEE—

beverages R ER 774,964 528,480

Contract liabilities — snack foods EHEaE-KBRR 366,074 277,981

Contract liabilities — others EHEaE-Hitt 3,005 3,246

1,584,651 1,117,541

TRIRE AR E R PriEsd st i
ERBEFEEMNEESNEEN
BAREHE

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the
current reporting period related to carried-forward contract liabilities
that were satisfied in a prior year.

For the year ended

BEUTHHLEE
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
20204F3H31A 201943A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREEF T
Revenue recognised that was included — FE/IFTA S KB BRI EFR Kz -
in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the year:
Rice crackers KR 307,834 356,235
Dairy products and beverages HmE s 528,480 629,592
Snack foods KERmMm 277,981 331,728
Others Hith 3,246 3,097
1,117,541 1,320,652
The Group selected to choose to apply the practical expedient and not NEBZRERTRETSE  THEIKE

BTHEAESL  BEFFEHESHAN
FHR—FHUUT

to disclose remaining performance obligations as all related contracts
have a duration of one year or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. WaRSBEEE)
(c) Impact of HKFRS 16 ‘Leases’ on segment disclosures and profit (c) BBUBIRZERE16%

B/ 7 BB R TR &

The adoption of the new leasing standard described in Note 2.2 had MEE2. 2t SR ST A S E B R F
the following impact on the segment disclosures and profit in the ENDERERFBEUTEE -

current year.

For the year ended 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2020
BE220F3A3ALFE R2020%3431A
Decrease Increase Increase
A £ Bm
Segment
Segment profit Depreciation  Segment assets liabilities
PHRE i THEE pir: -V
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARRTR ARBTR ARBTR AREFR

Rice crackers KR 615 9,169 19,624 20,239

Dairy products and beverages ARREH 1,99 29,739 63,655 65,649

Snack foods G 954 14232 30462 31,416

Others Hh 49 728 1,559 1,608

3,612 53,868 115,300 118912

Comparative segment information has not been restated. As a WE|BSILLBE D EER - Btk £
consequence, the segment information disclosed for the items noted XAtE R B D BEREE—F
above is not entirely comparable to the information disclosed for the ERBECERLIFTRAELER -
prior year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

6. ¥k - WBREM

Furniture,
machinery Vehicles,
and  aircraftand  Construction
Freehold land Buildings equipment  fransportation ~ in progress Total
KA BH-BE  RERB
E4 fa B R RERIR kEIR a3t
RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000
ARETT  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR
At 1 April 2018 (Restated) 0185 4R 1R (HE5)
Cost S 36,532 5,261,830 9,722,788 284,197 5625 15356972
Accumulated depreciation ZithE - (1,763,790) (5,544,292) (240,956) - (7,549,038)
Net book amount KEFE 36,532 3,498,040 4,178 496 43241 51625 780793
Year ended 31 March 2019 BEN9F3AALEE
Opening net book amount (Restated) ENERTEEE) 36,532 3498,040 4178,496 43241 51625 707,93
Additons 5 - 1518 141,105 6,451 210,784 350,858
Transfer upon completion THRER - 5,55 120302 T4 (126,634) -
Disposals (Note 32) RE (W32 - (2969) (11919) (1723) - (16.611)
Depreciation (Note 26) 17& (Hik26) - (210,509) (601,939) (10011) - (822.459)
Exchange differences EiiZE 3715 1429 486 2 240 258
Closing net book amount EARERE 36907 3,293,067 3,826,531 38730 136,015 7,331,250
At 1 April 2019 (Restated) K2019% 45 1B (&)
Cost s 36,907 5,267,974 9,887 668 3% 136015 15,599,896
Accumulated depreciation ZitE - (19907 (6061,137) (232,602) - (8268,646)
Net book amount KEFE 36907 3,293,067 3,826,531 38,730 136,015 7,331,250
Year ended 31 March 2020 BENNFIAIALEE
(Opening net book amount (Restated) AR A (5 36,907 3,203,067 3,826,531 38,730 136015 7,331,250
Additons 5 - ki 143,908 6,127 111,047 266,474
Transfer upon completion THEER - 1971 114,762 1,059 (123,792) =
Disposals (Note 32) RE (W32 - (1,389) (9.934) (1,109) = (12431)
Depreciation (Note 26) 17E (hik20) - (204,870) (611,428) (7,861) = (824,159)
Exchange differences EiiZE 2525 2825 2,30 131 1971 9,846
Closing net book amount EREERE 39432 3,007,997 347123 37077 125241 6,770,980
At31 March 2020 200083831
Cost A& 30432 528495 10,085,611 270800 125241 15,806,040
Accumulated depreciation ZithE - (2186%9) (6614378 (233729) - (9,035060)
Net book amount KA 39432 3,007,997 3471233 37,071 125,041 6,770,980
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 6. ¥ WBRREE

The majority of the buildings of the Group are erected on leasehold TEEABIEFENEET R T
land and land use rights (Note 7 and Note 10). The buildings comprise wERAE 2 & (HE7TRMEE10) © %
factories, offices, sales offices and warehouses. EEFTEERE  BAE  HEMNS

EREER -

For the year ended 31 March 2020, depreciation expenses of HZE2020F3A831HILEEE i
RMB502,157,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2019: RMB537,459,000) ERXHP  BERIBEREK]F
have been charged in ‘cost of sales’, RMB25,048,000 (for the T ARY502,157,000T (B ZE
year ended 31 March 2019: RMB17,248,000) in ‘distribution 2019 3A31ALFE : AR
costs’ and RMB296,954,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2019: 537,459,0007t) * R[22 A A
RMB267,752,000) in ‘administrative expenses’. R ARYE25,048,000T (B &

2019 3A31HILEEE : AR
17,248,000 ) R RT1THER ]+
T AR®296,954,000T (B &
2019 3A31ALFEE : AR
267,752,0007T) °

There is no pledge of property, plant and equipment for the Group as 20203 831H % 2019%F 3 A 31
at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019. B AEBEBEIEREAYE - HeR
LK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 7. HEXTHRTHERE

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

HZE20205 EZE2019F

3A31H 3A31H

LFE LLFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMBTFT ARBFT

Opening balance FAEER 939,914 1,149,627
Adjustment for change in accounting METTER S EFEAZE (5E2.2)

policy (Note 2.2) (939,914) -

Disposals (Note 32) HE (FEE32) = (183,092)

Amortisation (Note 26) 84 (f9aE26) = (27,268)

Exchange differences &5 ERE - 647

Closing balance FRAER = 939,914

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent
prepaid operating lease payments. Most of the Group’s leasehold
land and land use rights are located in the PRC. The remaining lease
periods of the Group’s leasehold land and land use rights are between

20 to 50 years.

The Group’s leasehold land and land use rights comprise land for

buildings of factories, offices, sales offices and warehouses.

The amortisation of the Group’s leasehold land and land use rights
has been charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated

income statement.

There is no pledge of leasehold land and land use rights for the Group

as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8. kEM%E
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
HE20205F HZE20195
3H31H 3A31H
IEFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREFTT
Investment properties REWE
Opening balance F 4R 38,038 39,293
Depreciation(Note 26) & (ff7E26) (1,464) (1,461)
Exchange differences ERELE 1,370 206
Closing balance FEREER 37,944 38,038
Cost B 53,536 51,926
Accumulated depreciation e (15,592) (13,888)
Net book amount BREFE 37,944 38,038

Investment properties represent offices, sales outlets and warehouses
held by the Group in Taiwan region erected on freehold land including
the cost of land and buildings, and in the Chinese mainland erected
on leasehold land with lease period of 50 years including the cost of
buildings.

Net lease rental income amounting to approximately RMB2,141,000
(for the year ended 31 March 2019: RMB3,660,000) (Note 24) for the
year ended 31 March 2020 was related to the lease of investment
properties.

The fair value of the investment properties as at 31 March 2020 was
RMB95,782,123 (31 March 2019: RMB83,117,139). The valuation was
determined using the sale comparison approach and was within level
3 of the fair value hierarchy. Sales prices of comparable properties in
close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
property size. The most significant input into this valuation approach is
price per square foot.

RENFEEAEBEREBHEMSA
FERAFEL B FEZOPLE - 85
EBERER  UEELHREFH
A URERBESRASFEEESN
ASOFMEEL B FRENETF &
ERTHA -

BIE20205F3A31ALEENHEER
TRAFENARNKE2,141,000 T (&
F201953A31ALEE : ARY
3,660,0007T) (ftzt24) - HHEB@RE
ENEEFER -

202038318 » REVENLF
BEA ARY95,782,1237T (2019534
318 : AR¥83,117,1397T) » %%
et DR AEELELEER AR T
BEEREIRA - T LB EE
BEJRTIEBME (MYEEB EZET
AR - hAEEIREERALEST
F RIE#H °
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9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9. EREEE
Goodwill Trademarks Software Total
HE [ BH H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 31 March 2018 #2018%3R31A
Cost A 2,561 28,162 8,759 39,482
Accumulated amortisation ESiE & - (22,052) (1,462) (23,514)
Net book amount REFE 2,561 6,110 7,297 15,968
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE2019F3A31HILEE
Opening net book amount EOREFE 2,561 6,110 7,297 15,968
Additions = - 865 48 913
Amortisation charge (Note 26) BB (r26) - (969) (1,760) (2,729)
Exchange differences EXER - 47 - 47
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 2,561 6,053 5,585 14,199
At 31 March 2019 #2019%€3H31A
Cost AR 2,561 29,206 8,844 40,611
Accumulated amortisation ESig £ - (23,153) (3,259) (26,412)
Net book amount REFE 2,561 6,053 5,585 14,199
Year ended 31 March 2020 HE2020F3A31ALEE
Opening net book amount EYREFE 2,561 6,053 5,585 14,199
Additions = = 982 181 1,163
Amortisation charge (Note 26) BB (rt26) = (1,009) (1,683) (2,692)
Exchange differences EXER - 357 - 357
Closing net book amount FARETE 2,561 6,383 4,083 13,027
At 31 March 2020 2020834318
Cost AR 2,561 31,538 9,001 43,100
Accumulated amortisation ESE 5 = (25,155) (4,918) (30,073)
Net book amount RHFE 2,561 6,383 4,083 13,027

HZE2020F3A31HLEEE#EAR
#£2,692,0007T (BIZ2019F3H31H
IEFEE : ARY2,729,0007T) B 4R
ElRERMTHRER IAXZE -

Amortisation of RMB2,692,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2019:
RMB2,729,000) for the year ended 31 March 2020 has been charged
to ‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated income statement.
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10. LEASES 10. 8
()  Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet () REEEEEREIANTE
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts relating REEEBEBRITTIIHEEEH
to leases: ISR -

31 March 2020 1 April 2019

20204 20194
38318 4818
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTT

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Leasehold land and land use rights HEL R L b EFERAE 946,989 939,914
Buildings and warehouses BFREE 112,756 105,386
Equipment and others Bk EM 2,544 210
1,062,289 1,045,510
Current lease liabilities RBEEAE 51,878 26,075
Non-current lease liabilities ERBHEHEERE 67,034 79,521
Total lease liabilities HEaEHEn 118,912 105,596
Representing: B :
Lease liabilities recognised CRAHEEE 105,596
Reclassification of finance lease B ERERE
obligations to lease liabilities ERZEHEEE -
105,596
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the financial year ended 31 REZE2020F3A31B LT BEERE
March 2020 were RMB93,276,000. ARREEREARARYI3,276,000

JC °
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10. LEASES (continued) 10. 8/ #E)
(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement (i) MREEREXRERNESEE
The consolidated income statement shows the following amounts mEWERIITTIEESERENS
relating to leases: 5
Year ended
31 March 2020
BZE20205F
3A31H
IHFE
RMB’000
AR%T R
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets EREEENENX
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE L L (e FARE 23,715
Buildings and warehouses BFREE 52,654
Equipment and others R HA 1,214
77,583
Interest expense (Note 28) FIEBA X (FiEE28) 6,331
Expense relating to short-term and low-value leases B R EEEHERREMNEX
(included in cost of sales, distribution costs and (FTASEERA » DR AR
administrative expenses) (Note 26) TR ) (FiEE26) 164,104
The total cash outflow to acquire the right-of-use assests of leasehold BZ2020F3A31HILEE  AES
land and land use rights in the year ended 31 March 2020 was HELHRIMERAENERAESR
RMB3,724,000, which is presented in cash flows from investing ERSREAEAR ARYES, 724,000
activities. T AARETREENERERE ©
The total cash outflow for leases payments in the year ended 31 HZE2020F3831HILLFEE
March 2020 was RMB220,691,000. Among the cash outflow for ENfRBEERELERARYE
lease payments, the lease payment related to right-of-use assets 220,691,000t - FERNREER
was RMB56,587,000, which is presented in cash flows from financing FooRFAEEERBNEENSRK
activities and the lease payment related to short-term and low-value B AR®56,587,0007T ' sTAEE
leases was RMB164,104,000, which is presented in cash flows from FEEHELENESRE  HEHRK
operating activities. EEHERBNEETRAARE
164,104,0007T » s AKEZHELE
FIRERE o
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10. LEASES (continued)

(i) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for

The Group leases various leasehold land and land use rights, offices,
warehouses and equipment. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but except for the
leasehold land and land use rights, leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

(iv) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property and equipment leases across the Group. These terms are
used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts.
The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable
only by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

10. HE @)

iy *EENEETBRASHS
&

FEEAESERE MR L ER
BBAE - BERRE - BY—K
RETEH o AERTIZE R EERHE
BEEZBTRGR RGNS - HEH
IS INEARK > BREE LR
TiEREINEEEETERESE
MEE R

(iv) FEHAR#IFEIERE

rEENETYERRBHEHEESE
IR R IRERE - ZERRTI AR
EREHNTRETEMRARL - i
BRI R A LR EEEH
REEITHE - EASHBBHEAT
& o

11. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 11. BELATRE

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

HE20205F HZE20195

3H31H 3831H

IEEE IEFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T AREET T

Opening balance F 4R 18,779 28,859
Disposals (Note 32) B E (fiFE32) = (9,554)
Share of losses, net FEihEE o R (3,354) (5,444)
Exchange differences ERELE = 4,918
Closing balance FAREEER 15,425 18,779
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11. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 11. BiEQRRE (#E)
The Group’s associates are all unlisted and individually immaterial. AEEZHENRYAFE LT RER
The aggregated amounts of the Group’s share of these associates’ FBEKR - AEBSIHHLEHE QT
results are as follows: ZEEBEHRINAT ¢
Total
comprehensive
Name Country/place of incorporation Profit/(loss) income/(loss) % Interest held
2EKE iigss £
i AMARIERHE FE/ (B%) (BR) &R BOL
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTR
Year ended 31 March 2020 EZ2020F3A31ALEE
Jiangsu Xing-Want Rice Co., Ltd. Chinese mainland 1 1 25%
THERREARAT HEIER
Nanjing Yanzhenwang Packaging Ltd. Chinese mainland (3,355) (3,355) 20%
HREEREEMBERAR REER
(3,354) (3,354)
Year ended 31 March 2019 BZE2019F3A31ALEE
Jung Times International Ltd. (Note (a))  British Virgin Islands (1,966) (1,966) 0%
RBRLHS
Jiangsu Xing-Want Rice Co., Ltd. Chinese mainland 1 1 25%
TEEKERRAR HEBER
Associates in Taiwan (Note (a)) Taiwan region (129) (129) 0%
2EkE N E (i) fEE
Nanjing Yanzhenwang Packaging Ltd. Chinese mainland (3,350) (3,350) 20%
BEREEREEMEERAT FEIER
(5,444) (5,444)
Note (a) KtEt(a)
During the year ended 31 March 2019, Jung Times International Ltd. and ABZE2019F3A31HLEFE © Jung
Associates in Taiwan were disposed by the Group. Times International Ltd. & & & AT E
WAEBEE -
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12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

12. &MTAMER

FVOCI Financial Total
assets at
BAYE amortised
ERHM cost
ZEKETE  IREHERERRT
HEmEE BRHLSREE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARMT R AR%T R
31 March 2020 7202063H31H
Assets as per balance sheet ZBEEBBXRMNEE
FVOCI (Note 13) RAFEZERHMEE
Wz ae Bk (BYEE13) 31,761 - 31,761
Trade receivables (Note 15) B 5 EWER (MFE15) = 846,744 846,744
Deposits and other receivables  && & E MUK = 208,466 208,466
Cash and cash equivalents RERESEEY
(Note 17) (FFEE17) = 17,256,927 17,256,927
Total Fab 31,761 18,312,137 18,343,898
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
REHR A
ERAE A
SHas
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Liabilities as per balance sheet EERERNER
Trade payables (Note 20) g 5 IR (fFE20) 1,093,092
Accruals and other payables EstBR R E MRS 1,632,160
Borrowings (Note 22) &R (FfEE22) 8,880,651
Lease liabilities (Note 10) HEBE HEE10) 118,912
Other non-current liabilities HineRE&E 49,033
Total st 11,773,848
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12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 12. &MTRERN &)
FVOCI Financial Total
BAVE assets at

EBHEM  amortised cost

2HEWNETER  IREHERAR
HEemEE RNWESMEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBET T AREET T

31 March 2019 (Restated) H2019F3H31H (BE7)

Assets as per balance sheet ZBEEBERNEE

FVOCI (Note 13) RAFEZERAHMEE
Wz AR (F5E13) 38,671 - 38,671
Trade receivables (Note 15) E 2 REWGK (FEE15) - 1,034,970 1,034,970
Deposits and other receivables &% & E UL - 123,394 123,394
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESEEY
(Note 17) (FF=E17) - 17,160,428 17,160,428
Total a5 38,671 18,318,792 18,357,463
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
SCARMEMD
A=
RMB’000
AREET T
Liabilities as per balance sheet EERERNEAR
Trade payables (Note 20) g 5 IR (fE20) 1,034,900
Accruals and other payables EstBR R E MRS 1,660,357
Borrowings (Note 22) Bk (FfEE22) 9,517,360
Other non-current liabilities HitIERBEE 45,958
Total #Et 12,258,575
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13. FVOCI 13. ROFEEFAHM2EWNRICIE
The FVOCI of the Group are stated at fair value and include the BEAVEZEBREMEEKRTEAD
following: FEIELEFEUATRIE

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
HZE2020% HZE20195

3A31R 3A31H
IEEFE EFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTT

Opening balance F 4R 38,671 46,962
Losses recognised in other REMZEERGEAERNER
comprehensive income (Note 19) (FfFEE19) (7,765) (9,376)
Exchange differences ERELE 855 1,085
Closing balance FAREEER 31,761 38,671
The FVOCI included the following: BRATEEREMEZEKETCEEE
UT&IE:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

20204 20194

3H31H 3A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTT

Listed equity securities LERES 31,756 38,666

Unlisted equity securities ELEHRERES 5 5

Total o 31,761 38,671

Market value of equity EmmE 31,761 38,671
The FVOCI are denominated in the following currencies: BRAFEERHEMEAEKELIRAT

HEHSIE -

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

2020% 2019%F

3H31H 3831H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®ETT

Japanese Yen =y 31,756 38,666
New Taiwan Dollar HEH 5 5
Total w5 31,761 38,671
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14. INVENTORIES 14. 8
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
2020%F 201945
3H31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
(Restated)
(BEH)
Raw materials and packaging materials R#EI K &9 1,621,545 1,367,994
Work in progress THm 216,331 214,805
Finished goods SR 646,599 603,542
Goods in transit BT EY 261,692 201,406
Total st 2,746,167 2,387,747
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in HZ2020F3A31HLEFE  #R
‘cost of sales’ amounted to approximately RMB10,439,499,000 for AR ATHEHEREKINEFEER
the year ended 31 March 2020 (for the year ended 31 March 2019: A B AEK¥10,439,499,0007T (B
RMB11,311,856,000). Z2019F3A3MBLEFE : AR
11,311,856,0007T) °
The Group recognised losses of approximately RMB58,205,000 (for BE2020F3831HILLEE » XEE
the year ended 31 March 2019: RMB48,310,000) in respect of the TREFERMBFEMEREEY
losses on obsolete inventories and write-down of inventories for the AE#58,205,0007T (B £20195F3 8
year ended 31 March 2020 (Note 26). B1BELLFE : ARM48,310,0007T)
(HizE26) °
15. TRADE RECEIVABLES 15. BHEKR
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
2020%F 201945
3H31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
(Restated)
(REH)
Trade receivables B 5 B
— from third parties -ERE= 886,717 1,094,011
— from related parties (Note 34(b)) — PR EARE 75 (F9EE34 (b)) 15,494 13,039
902,211 1,107,050
Less: provision for impairment of trade & : & 5 FEUFK
receivables RERE (55,467) (72,080)
Trade receivables, net B SR — 358 846,744 1,034,970
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15. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 15. EHERKR®RE)
Most of the Group’s sales are on cash-on-delivery basis whereas AEERBOHNEEUREBENS
those made through modern distribution channels are normally on NET BRRRSHERENGEER
credit terms ranging from 60 to 90 days (for the year ended 31 March F—RERFOBZEIOANEER
2019: 60 to 90 days). (B E2019F3A31BILFE : 60H
Z90R) °
As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, the ageing analysis of trade 720203 HA31HK%2019%3 A 31
receivables based on invoice date is as follows: H BEZERBURENZEZAHNIRE
W

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

2020%F 20194

3H31H 3H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R AREEF T

(Restated)

(&%)

Within 60 days 60H A 382,742 447,461

61-90 days 61290H 187,662 368,864

91-180 days 91£180H 237,273 199,770

181-365 days 181&365H 20,153 36,511

Over 365 days 365H Lk 74,381 54,444

Total #ct 902,211 1,107,050
As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, the Group’s trade A2020%FE3A831HK2019F3 A 31
receivables, before provision for impairment, are denominated in the B AMBEEREI 2E 5 BN

following currencies: LT 5IE#EHE

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

2020%F 20194

3H31H 3H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREEF T

(Restated)

(&%)

RMB AEHE 759,264 966,733

Us$ ESv 33,273 35,333

New Taiwan Dollar mew 89,764 92,179

Other currencies HibE#s 19,910 12,805

Total Rt 902,211 1,107,050
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15. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables approximated

their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of trade receivables as mentioned above.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the

calculation of the allowance.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and the Group’s
exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk can

be found in Note 3.1.

16. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

15. BHEBKHE)

FEEEZRUSNREAENREESR
BERAEAQNFERES -

AEERKRE ABNERERRSE
ERALANE S BYCRIREE °
AEBYESEEMERRERIE
e

AEEEAEBHBERELEREIR
WL At ETEERBL &H
EREE S RERRERAFERES
EiEEE - BREBEENFEER
Fff5E3.1(b) °

FHEZBUGKRERARERGEE
FEER - SNERE R R A R ERNE R
Y IEE

16. AR - He& R HERR

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

20204 20194
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
(Restated)
(BE5)
Prepayments - advanced payments to ~ FB{YFX1E

suppliers — EH R TR IR 365,084 375,192

Amounts due from related parties FEUR B 5 R E
(Note 34(b)) (FF5E34(b)) 2,562 2,373
Recoverable value added tax A E R 145,034 124,514
Prepayment for income tax B ERARE 37,606 19,124
Deposits B 32,990 38,797
Others HAth 172,914 82,224
Total Faby 756,190 642,224

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables approximated
their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.
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17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17. BleRBALEED
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
2020%F 20194
3H31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R AREEF T
(Restated)
C<EX)
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFEREE 9,906,067 10,823,428
Short-term bank deposits SEHAERITIE R 7,350,860 6,337,000
Total T 17,256,927 17,160,428
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following HENBESEEYUTHERE :
currencies:
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
2020%F 20194
3H31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
(Restated)
C<EX))
RMB AEHE 16,647,992 16,671,700
uss$ ESv 350,911 264,551
Others Hith 258,024 224,177
17,256,927 17,160,428
RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the international market. ARBEBBHSZLIFTEHLRE
The conversion of RMB into foreign currency and remittance of RMB o RARBIBANMERBGARYE
out of the PRC are subject to the rules and regulations of exchange EHAPE - AP EKEEMG 2 INE
controls promulgated by the PRC authorities. E I35 Bl B2 3R A5 P BR o
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the RBEABNEERRRSRIERS
carrying values of cash and cash equivalents as mentioned above. PR ERFASEEMHIREE ©
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18.

SHARE CAPITAL 18. B®*
Number of  Share Capital
shares B2
i RMB’'000
AR¥T
Ordinary shares, issued DRITRHBZE
and fully paid: EHER

Shares of US$0.02 each HREE0.02E T 2K 1D

At 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 M2018F4A 1A K2019%3A31H 12,449,287,135 1,871,067
Shares repurchased and cancelled SRR REHE RS (34,103,000) (4,712)
At 31 March 2020 20203 H31H 12,415,184,135 1,866,355

The movements in issued share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2020 were set out as below:

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company acquired
34,103,000 of its own shares through purchases on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Among these shares, 26,650,000
shares were repurchased and cancelled in April and May 2019, while
the remaining 7,453,000 shares were repurchased and cancelled in
October 2019.

The total cost to acquire the above 34,103,000 shares was
RMB184,782,000 and has been deducted from share capital
of RMB4,712,000 and retained earnings of RMB180,070,000
respectively.

224 2019/2020% 3 | ANNUAL REPORT
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HZE2020F3A31BLEEE » AN
AEEEHEXBERATEE
HAE34,103,0000% 1% 1% o H& >
26,650,000 AR 1714201964 A K5
BEEEIRFEE - mMEIER7,453,0008%
R ER2019F10 B BRI K -

Yo B £ 334,103,000 B 12 B 2
ZHERRA B ARY184,782,0007T ¢
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4,712,000t & A K%180,070,000
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19. RESERVES 19. f#f&
Currency

Share Capital FVOCl  realignment ~ Statutory Retained

Premium reserves Teserves reserve Teserves Subtotal eamings Total
#O7E
igelt
EENE
B

BhEE  EAliE  GREE EWERER  IRGR Nt REER %
fos RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RBOOO  RMBOOD  RWBOOD  RWBOO0  RMBOO
gE ARETR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTR  AREBTR

As at 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31R 462130 (7,313620) 26,699 86,371 290232  (3834,09) 16451228 12,617,130
Adustments due tobusiness ~ REFEHTERAHELN

combinafions under ik

common control 3 - 48,640 - - - 48,640 (17,049) 31,591
As at 1 April 2018 (Restated) 201848 1R (BEF) 462130 (7,264,980) 28,699 86,371 2902322 (3785458) 16434179 12648721
Profit for the year EEAE - - - - - - 3476509 347659
Changeinvalue of FVOCI  RATEEBLM

2NETEIEERE 4 . - e - - e - e

Remeasurements of EffERIER2

post-employment Bifits

benefit obligations - 2,991 - - - 2,991 - 2,991
Appropriation to stafutory HRTITRE

reserves - - - - 11721 217721 7,721) -
Dividends paid %HiRE . - . - : - 2B (229661)
Currency translation EHERER

diferences . - S S I
s at 31 March 2019 Restated) H2019% 38317 (EE3) 00 (261969 19323 (MATZY) A0 (305216) 17396439 13491223
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19. RESERVES (continued) 19. GEfE (&)
Currency
Share Capital FVOCI  realignment  Statutory Retained
Premium reserves Teserves reserve  reserves Subtotal earnings Total
BATE
et
EdE
RN
RHEE  EARE  SREE HMERER  iERE M REEA a3t
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B ARETn  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
As at 31 March 2019 R2019E3831R 462130 (7.310,629) 19323 (44723) 3120043  (3,953856) 17413488 13459632
Adjustments due tobushess  EEEEATERAK
combinations under common  E4 178
control % - 48,640 - - - 48,640 (17,049) 31,501
As at 1 April 2019 (Restated)  #2019%4 1R (£E5]) 462130 (7,261,989) 19323 (44723) 3120043 (3905216) 17396439 13491223
Profitfor the year EERE - - - - - - 3649215 3649215
Shares repurchased and BEEREHE R
cancelled - - - - - - (180,070) (180,070
Changeinvalue of FVOCI  RATEEBEMZENS
HENERERS 13 - - (7,765) - - (7.765) - (7.765)
Business combinations under  &ERHIT 2 ERAH
common control 36 - (51,986) - - - (51,986) - (51,986)
Appropriation to stafutory HRZITRE
Teseres - - - - 216,281 6281 (216,281) -
Remeasurements of post- BHERER B2
employment benefit
obligations - 4763 - - - 4763 - 4763
Dividends paid %HRE - - - - - - (3100502 (3100502
Currency translafion EHERER
differences - - - (398,551) - (398,551) - (398,551)
As at 31 March 2020 202053A31A 462,130 (7,309,212) 11,558 (643214) 3336304 (4,142474) 17548801 13406327

(@) Share premium

Pursuant to Section 34 of the Cayman Companies Law (2003
Revision) and the Articles of Association of the Company, share
premium of the Company is available for distribution to shareholders
subject to a solvency test on the Company and the provision of the

Articles of Association of the Company.

(b) Capital reserves

This represents principally capital reserves arising from the share
swap transactions during the Group reorganisation in 2007.
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19. RESERVES (continued)

(c) Statutory reserves

The PRC laws and regulations require companies registered in
the PRC to provide for certain statutory reserves, which are to be
appropriated from the net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses
from prior years) as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements, before profit distributions to equity holder. All statutory
reserves are created for specific purposes. PRC companies are
required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to statutory surplus
reserves, upon distribution of their post-tax profits of the current year.
A company may discontinue the contribution when the aggregate sum
of the statutory surplus reserve is more than 50% of its registered
capital. The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to make
up losses of the companies, to expand the companies’ production
operations, or to increase the capital of the companies. In addition,
a company may make further contribution to the discretional surplus
reserve using its post-tax profits in accordance with resolutions of the
Board of Directors.

The Taiwan Company Law requires a company to appropriate 10%
of its annual net income to legal reserve before it declares any part of
such net income as dividends and/or bonuses, until the accumulated
legal reserve equals the total registered capital. This reserve can only
be used to cover losses, or, if the balance of the reserve exceeds
50% of the registered capital, to increase the registered capital by an
amount not exceeding 50% of the legal reserve.

19. fiEf& (&)

(c) EEfRE

HECEREEARERETEZMOAF
1Z BRE M BRI 2 AVFEFE
(EEUAEFENRFBRR) P - R
DIRFE T RS E AR - BIR
DRBE T EERBE - IREER
BEHRBRBEMRYL - FEILQF
ROIKEFENBRRERNE » A@%
EREBHEEBFFNBEN10% - EQ
AAER ﬁ?ﬁ%‘ﬁﬂ'ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ
REI50%Es - DA AFILEBIE - EE
BERRER T AEREARMNEE
BARANEEEBERBRNARNE
Ao fboh  HRESENRER A
B A A BRI R R BB 15 0 B B fE
BIEHE—DHK -

[BEBEDRDEIREQXAREIR
EAHDWEFEFRAERRER
FALR A - BEFEFRAN10%E
BELERR  HERMEERES
REBEMEARILE - ZRBRATAKE
WHEEE IREZRENESRER
AMEARKS50% - BI A AEZ N
MBEAR - MEHEIEBBEEREN
50% °
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20. TRADE PAYABLES 20. EHEMR
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
20205 20194
3H31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Trade payables — to third parties BREAR—EAE= 1,093,092 1,034,900

The ageing analysis of the trade payables as at 31 March 2020 and 31
March 2019 is as follows:

F2020F3HA31HKR201953 431
B BESEARPERERIWOT :

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

20204 20194

3A31AH 3H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARET T

Within 60 days 600 A 985,783 970,721
61 to 180 days 61£E180H 82,972 43,194
181 to 365 days 181&365H 11,584 6,422
Over 365 days 365H L k& 12,753 14,563
Total s 1,093,092 1,034,900

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximated their fair values

REE&ERA - EZERAHRNKRE

as at the balance sheet dates. BEHEEAFEES

21. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. EHEAREMEMS
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
20204 20194
3H31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
(Restated)
(&F=5)
Accruals FEETER 1,167,778 950,976
Salary and welfare payables e R ERNFIE 392,633 400,725
Deposits & 294,000 290,545
Other taxes and levies payable HibEAHEREE 173,977 263,606
Advance received for plant resettlement FEURIFIBHERR 172,313 -
Others Hith 170,382 155,230
Total st 2,371,083 2,061,082

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables approximated
their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

228 2019/2020% 3 | ANNUAL REPORT
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22. BORROWINGS 22, f&®
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
2020 201945
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
(Restated)
(BEH)
Non-current IERE
Long term bank borrowings REFSRATE RN — BIRH
— unsecured (Note (c)) (F¥EE(c)) 4,776,382 4,441,858
Bonds (Note (a)) &% (Mizk(a)) 3,517,184 3,331,620
8,293,566 7,773,478
Current TED
Short term bank borrowings SEERATE R — IR
— unsecured (Note (d)) (BF=E(d)) 587,085 1,243,882
Notes payable (Note (b)) FES =15 (MiEE (b)) = 500,000
587,085 1,743,882
Total borrowings HEFR 8,880,651 9,517,360
Note (a): FMizE(a) :
In 2017, the Group issued US$500,000,000 guaranteed bonds (“Bonds”) which R20175F » AEBERTHEERES ([E
will be repayable in whole on 27 April 2022. The Bonds were issued with a #%1)500,000,0003% 7t © W5582022564 8
principal amount of US$500,000,000, bearing interest at a fixed rate of 2.875% 27 HEE{EE - A€ 584500,000,0005
per annum, payable semi-annually and listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong T2 EHERT  WiK2.875% 2 EEE
Kong Limited. The offering price for the Bonds is 98.878% of its principal MEFE  BREXRFIARABBHER
amount. The value of the liability, taking into account of the transaction costs of ZHAERAR LT - BEFHEBRER
RMB17,875,000, was determined upon issuance of the Bonds. ©X298.878% ° KRR ZHAARYE

17,875,000t - BEZEBEEREE R
THREE -
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22. BORROWINGS (continued)

Note (b):

In June 2018, the Group issued the private placement notes issue in an amount
of RMB500,000,000 for a term of 1 year with coupon rate of 5.4% per annum
(“Private Placement Notes”) in the interbank market of the People’s Republic
of China. The Private Placement Notes have been redeemed and settled at
maturity on 27 June 2019 in full at their principal amount together with interest
accrued to the Maturity Date.

Note (c):

As at 31 March 2020, long term bank borrowings are mainly comprised of
US$300,000,000 long term and RMB670,000,000 long term borrowings from
Bank of China (HK) which will be repayable in May and April 2021 and US$
280,000,000 long term borrowings from Mizuho Bank which will be repayable
in May 2021.

Note (d):

As at 31 March 2020, short term bank borrowings are mainly comprised
of RMB330,000,000 short term borrowings from Bank of China (HK),
US$18,733,000 short term borrowings from Mizuho Bank, US$10,000,000
short term borrowings from Citibank.

230 2019/2020%#k | ANNUAL REPORT
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FiEE(b) -

MR2018%F6 A AEECEFEARHL
MESEANBRTETSRTSEAARE
500,000,0007C © HiPRA16  ZEFES
BFE54%FAHERBEERETART
(MEAHEBREXMETIA] - FAHE
EEEEE T ACR20195F6 527 B BH
EOWE AN EASEEREZ2HAMN
FEERIE -

FEE(c) :

A2020F3A31H » REARITEREE
BERPERT(EBDNSHNREAER
300,000,000% 7t (HR2021F5 A EIE)
KR EERARS670,000,0005T (AR
202154 A E12) LA R fEMizuho BankEU§
K B 1E 7£280,000,0003 Jt (B R20214F
5A&E) -

FiEE(d) -

7202038310 » EHRITEREES
ERPERT (BB ENEHRERAR
#£330,000,000T * #Mizuho BankBEX{SHY
S HR{E 818,733,000 T LA R R TEEIR 1T
E{S #Y 2 HA{& 710,000,000 7T ©



9> ] B BT =R BBR/AE Want Want China Holdings Limited

e M RRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22. BORROWINGS (continued) 22. ERE)
The effective weighted average interest rates per annum of bank REEEBXRANRITER(TEE
borrowings (excluding Notes and Bonds payable) at the balance sheet ENREBERES) BERMEFLESER
dates are as follows: T -
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
2020 20194
3A31H 3A31H
(Restated)
(REZ)
RMB ARE 3.96% 0.50%
Us$ EV 1.59% 3.21%
HKD BT - 2.39%
Other currencies Hith & #s 0.59% 0.76%
At 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, the Group’s borrowings were 720203 HA31HK%2019%3 A 31
repayable as follows: H > AEBNEREEEFEDT :
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
2020 20194
3H31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT
(Restated)
(REZ)
Within 1 year 1R 587,085 1,743,882
Between 1 and 2 years 1225 4,776,382 -
Between 2 and 5 years 2B5%F 3,517,184 7,773,478
8,880,651 9,517,360
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are not materially different to RATISAREHEE » ERNERE
their fair values, as the market interest rates are relatively stable. The BHHEENFEERZREEAEE - A EE
fair values are based on discounted cash flows using a rate based on TEAENERF YR RIBIED 8L
the borrowing rate and are within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. RIS REFENEBENLAFERRE
28 o
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22. BORROWINGS (continued) 22, ERE)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings were denominated in AEEERNWEEEUATIEERE
the following currencies: i :

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

20204 20194

3H31H 3H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT AREEF T

(Restated)

(R=E )

us$ ESy 7,827,141 8,376,493

RMB ARHE 1,021,000 503,000

HKD BT - 606,458

Other currencies Hitp 5 ¥ 32,510 31,409

8,880,651 9,517,360

The Group had the following undrawn bank borrowing facilities as at

REEEBEXRBAKREE TIIRER

the balance sheet date: RSRITIE R RIS ¢
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
20204 20195
3A31H 38318
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
RMB facilities AR¥mIE 4,192,282 4,170,000
US$ facilities ES- ] 3,163,809 3,361,074
Other facilities Hibmiid 24,758 21,814
7,380,849 7,552,888
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23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 23. BEFRFR

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax

EEFSHEERELEMSHAED

liabilities is as follows: AT
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
2020% 20195
3H31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETTT
Deferred income tax assets: EIEFTEFRERE !
— Deferred income tax assets to be — 1218 B AUk E Y
recovered within 12 months ELEMESHEE 219,209 187,735
— Deferred income tax assets to be — 1218 B & Uk E /Y
recovered after 12 months ELEMESNEE 68,327 54,470
287,536 242,205
Deferred income tax liabilities: ELFIEHEs .
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — 1218 B & Uk E /Y
recovered after 12 months EEFEHREE 214,378 267,528

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
each of the periods, without taking into consideration the offsetting of

EHBELEREHEERAGECRE
ZRABUER -HARENEH) B

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: BB -
Deferred income tax assets: EEFBREE :
Other
temporary
Tax losses differences* Total
Hit
K E R S E R et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR¥ET T AR¥T
At 1 April 2018 20184818 126,457 122,103 248,560
(Charge)/credit to the TR lER
consolidated income () &
statement (52,294) 45,876 (6,418)
Exchange differences B X =48 - 63 63
At 31 March 2019 2019 3831H 74,163 168,042 242,205
(Charge)/credit to the e lER
consolidated income (Z88) &R
statement (7,973) 52,963 44,990
Exchange differences EHEE - 341 341
At 31 March 2020 202053 H31H 66,190 221,346 287,536
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23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 23. BEMRBRGE
Deferred income tax liabilities: ELEREHREE:
Withholding
tax Others Total
FEMB Hith st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T ARET

At 1 April 2018 20184818 144,066 134 144,200
Charge to the consolidated ERElER

income statement %] 125,000 - 125,000
Transfer to tax payable R B RENTIE (1,672) - (1,672)
At 31 March 2019 20193 H31H 267,394 134 267,528
Charge to the consolidated ERaRER

income statement X 6H 180,000 - 180,000
Transfer to tax payable EREENTIE (233,150) = (233,150)
At 31 March 2020 M2020563H31H 214,244 134 214,378

*

accrued expenses and provisions.

Other temporary differences mainly represent the unrealised profits,

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-forward
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
the future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise
deferred income tax assets of approximately RMB84.0 million (31
March 2019: RMB64.6 million) in respect of tax losses amounting
approximately to RMB335.8 million (31 March 2019: RMB258.5
million) as at 31 March 2020 that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. These tax losses as at 31 March 2020 amounting to
RMB37.3 million, RMB71.2 million, RMB93.7 million, RMB41.0 million
and RMB92.6 million will expire in year 2020, year 2021, year 2022,

year 2023 and year 2024 respectively.

Deferred income tax liabilities have been recognised for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the earnings of certain
subsidiaries incorporated in PRC for the year ended 31 March 2020
that are expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future. As to
the other subsidiaries incorporated in PRC, the Group has no plan
to distribute the respective retained earnings as at 31 March 2020.
Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB432,188,000 (31 March 2019:
RMB398,037,000) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax and the related unremitted earnings of subsidiaries amount to
RMB8,643,762,000 (31 March 2019: RMB7,960,738,000) as at 31

March 2020.
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REUEEBRREZBFEMm
EREBERENEZ  AEepnsgsE
M BEEMERELFREHE
ZE o 2020%F3H31H » KEEFR
A £ 88 DUIK S SR R FE B U A B9 B
EEBHYARKES3.3581Z T (2019
F3H31H : AR¥E2.585(8 ) i
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8,4008 T (201953 H31H : A
F#£6,460& JT) ° M2020F3H31H
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AR®T7, 12087 - AR¥9,3708
T AR¥4,100B TR AK#9,260
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20224 ~ 2023F R 20245 JEi ©

HZE2020F3A31H L FEMP R
MAZHETFHEBEARABRTRK
RO RzBAMEZS2BNFHRED
BRELMESHEE - P EHEM
RINEMHMBLARMS » ~N&EH
W E| D IRMN2020F3A31 B
HEEREREF - H2020F3H8318 -
FEHIF AR ¥432,188,0007T (2019
F3H31H : AK%398,037,000
TC) WARRIEEMESHERE - M8
BHBLARNADRBINAEARYE
8,643,762,0007T (2019 3H31H :
AE#7,960,738,0007T) °
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OTHER INCOME 24, HtkA

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

BZE2020%F HZE2019%

3HA31H 3HA31H

LHFEE IHFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARBT T

Government grants BB & 337,473 368,757

Sale of scraps HEBENE 69,760 73,830
Rental income from investment REMEFE

properties HEmA 2,141 3,660

Others HAth 9,326 13,057

Total st 418,700 459,304

The government grants represent subsidy income received from
various government authorities as incentives to certain subsidiaries of

the Group in the PRC.

OTHER GAINS - NET

BFESEREBUARBREINE
BB - ERBTAEEESREET
M D RIRVERRE o

25. Hfhli — B8

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
BZ2020F BZE2019%F
3A31H 3H31H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) [E R (B518) 35,856 (39,924)
Donation expenses BREHX (33,285) (5,174)
Gains on disposal of financial assets HERAFEEBERTEN
at fair value through profit or loss EREENKE = 16,600
Losses on disposal of property, HEMZE - HEEREREN
plant and equipment, net e FEE (8,152) (13,941)
Gains on disposal of leasehold land HERE T R T b AR
and land use rights G — 92,554
Losses on disposal of investments HERBENTNKREEE
in associates, net TRER = (9,554)
Others Hith 14,261 9,204
Total st 8,680 49,765
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26.

236

EXPENSES BY NATURE

26. HEHHEBSHMAX

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
EZE2020% BZ2019F
3A31H 3A31H
ItEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R ARET T
Raw materials used and changes 2 AR
in inventory RFEZE 7,691,015 8,195,270
Promotion and advertising expenses EERESRX 573,899 642,515
Employee benefit expenses including ETEFBX (BEEEMHS)
directors’ emoluments (Note 27) (FtEE27) 3,839,830 4,016,939
Transportation expenses EHR Y 814,146 848,838
Water, electricity and energy expenses KERAEERX 593,354 666,655
Depreciation of property, plant and Y13 - MR NRBITE
equipment (Note 6) (H3te) 824,159 822,459
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE
(Note 10) (Fff5E10) 77,583 -
Amortisation of leasehold land and land &+ #th % & b {F FA 4
use rights (Note 7) s (MEET) = 27,268
Amortisation of intangible assets mREERH
(Note 9) (FfF5E9) 2,692 2,729
Depreciation of investment properties ~ REVEITE
(Note 8) (FfF3E8) 1,464 1,461
Rental expenses for buildings BFREEHSHES
and machinery (Note 10) (Fg7E10) 164,104 185,991
Losses on obsolete and write-down PRE R IFEMIRER
of inventories (Note 14) (FgzE14) 58,205 48,310
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment & 5 BEUFUR(E (B E) B 1E
of trade receivables (Note 3.1(b)) (FF3E3.1(b)) (16,655) 8,136
Auditor’s remuneration RERTI &
— Audit service — %R 4,300 4,300
— Non-audit service — IR BBRTE = 320
Machinery parts and HBREHR
maintenance expenses RERHX 260,464 281,737
Others HAth 827,417 881,685
Total of cost of sales, distribution costs ~ $§&E KA ~ D EERARR
and administrative expenses 1THE A 15,715,977 16,634,613
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27. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 27. BETiRFIMAX
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
BZE2020%F HZE2019%
3HA31H 3HA31H
LHFEE IHFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBT T
Wages and salaries IERFS 3,071,873 3,116,719
Pension and other social welfare RARERHEMEEER 625,999 773,430
Other benefits HAhigFl 141,958 126,790
Total including Directors’ emoluments  #85t &% & S5 EH 3,839,830 4,016,939
(@) Five highest paid individuals (a) HEBEESHATL
The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest in the REEBEEEFMHNAEZATEIEDN
Group included four Directors (for the year ended 31 March ZEE (HE2019F3831HILEE -
2019: four) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis ME) » HEFMEMEIS2 MDA
shown in Note 38. The emoluments payable to the remaining PR AHESEEEMNESR —F
one (for the year ended 31 March 2019: one) highest paid (B ZE2019F3A831BILEEFE | — )
individuals during the years are as follows: BREHmATHHMESOT
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
B ZE20205F HZE2019%F
3A31H 3H31H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
Salaries e 614 623
Discretionary bonuses BETEAT 705 556
Other benefits* HAh3g > 218 278
1,537 1,457
In the band of: BENF
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017& 7t £2,000,000%& 7T 1 1
* Other benefits include housing and car allowances. * Hi@REE(EERAERR
For the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, no H £2020%F3831HK%201953 731
payments had been made by the Group to the Directors or HIEFE  KNEBHEEB SRR
the highest paid individuals in respect of inducement to join or HEMOESESESFHALTIZARK
compensation for loss of office. Ho

2019/2020% ¥, | ANNUAL REPORT 237



9 B BEBE AR BBR/A R Want Want China Holdings Limited

mEMBERRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28. FINANCE INCOME - NET

28. MBIA - 2@

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
B ZE2020% HZE20195
3H31H 3A31H
ILEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AREET T
Finance cost RE R AR
— Interest expenses on borrowings —ERAEEX (306,227) (277,753)
— Interest expenses on lease liabilites —HE&EF S/ X (6,331) -
(312,558) (277,753)
Finance income BE A
— Interest income on cash and cash -HERBSEEYIE
equivalents A 558,767 503,035
Net finance income il E R B 246,209 225,282
29. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 29. Fhii3IREH
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
B ZE2020% BZE2019%
3H31H 3A31H
ItEE IEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Current income tax EEIRSH -
Current income tax on profits FEFEN
for the year EHTS 1,277,536 1,212,332
Deferred income tax EIEFTSH
Withholding tax on dividends from FEIRANB L ERE
Chinese mainland subsidiaries 2RI 180,000 125,000
Origination and reversal of tax losses ~ FIEEEREBEERDN
and temporary differences EERER (44,990) 6,418
Total By 1,412,546 1,343,750

238 2019/2020% 3 | ANNUAL REPORT



9> ] B BT =R BBR/AE Want Want China Holdings Limited

e M RRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 29. FiRIRER#E
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the 7 £ [ BR BT 15 B4 A B P 43 40 1Y i
theoretical amount that would arise using the statutory tax rate in the HERHPBIEREERE25% (BE
Chinese mainland of 25% (for the year ended 31 March 2019: 25%) as 20193 A31HILFE : 25%) 5T ER
follows: HmBIRENEZENT ¢
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
EZ2020F EHZE2019F
3A31H 3A31H
LHFE ILFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R ARBT T
Profit before income tax BRETSRL AT RS 5,048,789 4,806,321
Income tax calculated at statutory BRHBIEREERETENER
tax rate in the Chinese mainland 1,262,197 1,201,580
Effect of different tax rates and MEBARTEHER
preferential tax rates of subsidiaries BEERENEE 5,572 (63,716)
Expenses not deductible for ik
tax purposes 33,989 53,973
Additional deduction of research and EIMDB AT X
development expenses (96,737) (25,058)
Tax loss for which the DTA was not WEERIELERIEEEN
recognised BiEgsE 22,848 26,809
Reversal of DTA which could not be BEREREEBERSRN
realized according to EERIBEE
management expectation 4,677 25,162
Withholding tax on dividends from FREIE R E LD R RS 2 T
Chinese mainland subsidiaries 180,000 125,000
Income tax charge Pt 1,412,546 1,343,750
The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted AATRBEHEERE AR EEHER
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman EdfMRvAEHREERLA
Islands and, accordingly, is exempted from payment of Cayman Islands I RAREREHNEEREFE
income tax. B o
Enterprises incorporated in the Chinese mainland are subject to B ZE2020F3A831HILEE » RHE
Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) mainly at rate of 25% (during the year BEATFMRNEEBR25% (BZE
ended 31 March 2019: 25%) during the year ended 31 March 2020. 20195 3A31 B LEFE : 25%) B RH
MEEMBR ((EEMBHRD
Enterprises incorporated in other places are subject to income tax at REZE2020F38318LLFE » Hftb
the prevailing rates of 0% to 30% during the year ended 31 March 5 M AR ML Y S H IR E IR ITHY
2020 (during the year ended 31 March 2019: 0% to 30%). FIBHEE0%ZE30% (B ZE20195F3
B31BLEE 0% E30%) HMB
1 o

2019/2020% % | ANNUAL REPORT 239



9 B BEBE AR BBR/A R Want Want China Holdings Limited

mEMBERRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

30. HERET
(a) EK
ERERBFIEAQNTERISTEARE

{ERIBB SR EEE BT HBR 2 N
AT -

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
BZ2020% HZ2019F
3H31H 3A31H
LFE HEE

Profit attributable to equity holders KA T ERIFE AEGRE
of the Company (RMB'000) ARETFR) 3,649,215 3,476,599

Weighted average number of ordinary ERTERRMETIH
shares in issue (thousands) (&) 12,422,335 12,449,287
Basic earnings per share BREREF RMB29.38 cents RMB27.93 cents
AK¥29.38% AR¥27.935
(b) Diluted (b)y #H

Diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings per
share since the Company does not have diluted shares.
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31. DIVIDENDS 31. 2
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
EZE2020% BZE2019F
3A31H 3A31H
ItEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBT T
Interim dividend paid of US0.64 cent (for B+Z@ERPHRE
the year ended 31 March 2019: FRR0.645EL (BZE2019%F
US0.53 cent) per ordinary share 3A31HLLEFE 1 0.53%4L) 557,138 453,622
Proposed final dividend of US2.42 cents RIS ZBIRALRE
(for the year ended 31 March 2019: FIR2. 42 (BE20195F
US2.41 cents) per ordinary share 3AMHLLEE 1 2.41340L)
(note (a)) (FfEE(a)) 2,125,530 2,020,050
Proposed special dividend of US1.10 BRIREEBERISERE
cents (for the year ended 31 March FR1.10EML (BE20195F
2019: US0.48 cent) per ordinary share  3831HILFE : 0.483%1l)
(note (b)) G () 966,547 404,010
3,649,215 2,877,682

(@) On 16 June 2020, the Board recommended the payment
of a final dividend of US2.42 cents (for the year ended 31
March 2019: US2.41 cents) per ordinary share, totalling
RMB2,125,530,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2019:
RMB2,020,050,000) for the year ended 31 March 2020. The
proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March
2020 is calculated based on the total number of shares in issue
as at the date of this report. The payment of the proposed final
dividend is to be approved by the shareholders at the Company’s
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The financial statements
do not reflect this dividend payable.

(@)

A202056H16H » EEaEiE
HIRNE ZE2020F3831H0 1t
FENARBERESRZTER
2.42E Al (B Z£2019F3831H
IEFE @ 2.41E40) » HFFAR
#£2 125,530,000t (B £2019
F3A3IBLEEE : AR
2,020,050,0007t) ° & %2020
F3A3M B L FEMNEIRARHAR
BENEBRARE BHC BT
BHBEEFE RIZBREZ
EEENRANTAERERREBEF
RELEBRMAE - BHKIRRK
RIBRICE RS -
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31. DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b)

On 16 June 2020, the Board recommended the payment
of a special dividend of US1.10 cents (for the year ended
31 March 2019: US0.48 cent) per ordinary share, totalling
RMB966,547,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2019:
RMB404,010,000) for the year ended 31 March 2020. The
proposed special dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March
2020 is calculated based on the total number of shares in issue as
at the date of this report. The payment of the proposed special
dividend is to be approved by the shareholders at the Company’s
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The financial statements
do not reflect this dividend payable.

The dividends paid during the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted
to RMB3,100,502,000, comprising the final dividend and special
dividend of RMB2,543,364,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019
and the interim dividend of RMB557,138,000 for the year ended 31
March 2020, which were paid in September 2019 and December 2019
respectively.
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32. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 32. EEEEMRE
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) EEEEMNED
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
HZ2020% HZ2019F
3A31H 3A31H
HFE HEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBT T
Profit before income tax BRFRS BRI 5,048,789 4,806,321
Adjustments for: BUTEEELRE
— Depreciation of property, plant and — WD - HEBK
equipment (Note 6) BETE (fiEEe) 824,159 822,459
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —-EREEERE
(Note 10) (MfzE10) 77,583 -
— Amortisation of leasehold land and land —HE L i iF AR
use rights (Note 7) (MEE7) = 27,268
— Depreciation of investment properties —REVERE
(Note 8) (Kt3E8) 1,464 1,461
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9)  — &2 & E# 8K (1319) 2,692 2,729
— Losses/(gains) on disposals of leasehold ~ — EEBHE it 2 + ith/F A
land and land use rights and property, DYSE/ERE =Ny A
plant and equipment (Note 25) B8,/ (hz) (FizE25) 8,152 (78,613)
— Losses on obsolete inventories and -REFERFEMAEE
write-down of inventories (Note 26) (F¥EE26) 58,205 48,310
— (Reversal of)/provision for impairment of ~ — & 5 WX
trade receivables (Note 26) RE (B E) /48 (Ff3E26) (16,655) 8,136
— Gains on disposal of financial assets - HERA T EEBBRCEN
at fair value through profit or loss TREEMNRE (HFE25)
(Note 25) - (16,600)
— Losses on disposal of Investments in - HERBENRANREZER
associates (Note 11) (MzE11) - 9,554
— Interest income (Note 28) —FE U (FFEE28) (558,767) (503,035)
— Interest expenses (Note 28) —MEFH % (Ff5£28) 312,558 277,753
— Share of losses of associates (Note 11) — PGB A BB (BTEE11) 3,354 5,444
5,761,534 5,411,187
Changes in working capital: LELESEE
— (Increase)/decrease in inventories —FE (Em R (416,625) 137,133
— Decrease in trade receivables -ES R 204,881 103,255
— Increase in prepayments, deposits and —-EARE  BER
other receivables Hth U IE i (19,712) (15,728)
- Increase/(decrease) in trade payables -G SRR, () 58,192 (251,930)
— Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities ~ —&HWAEELM (HD) 467,110 (203,221)
— Increase in accruals and other payables ~ —FERTE B R E ARG N 336,027 177,043
Cash generated from operations SEELNES 6,391,407 5,357,739
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 32. EEEEMBE (E
(a) Cash generated from operations (continued) (a) EEEEMNERSE
In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of leasehold land and REEREXRT  EEHELHE L
land use rights and property, plant and equipment comprise: AR AR Y - HESRBREN AT
BRERRE
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
EZE2020% BZE2019F
3A31H 3A31H
ItEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBT T
Net book amount of property, M - HEEREE
plant and equipment (Note 6) BREFHE (K EE6) 12,431 16,611
Net book amount of leasehold land RS+ #h & + i ARERRE
and land use rights (Note 7) FE (HEET) = 183,092
(Losses)/gains on disposals of EERSLt MK AR
leasehold land and land use DARYDZE ~ BB 1A
rights and property, plant and EEz (BB s
equipment (Note 25) (FffEE25) (8,152) 78,613
Proceeds from disposals of EEHET K L ihF A
leasehold land and land use DRI - MBREE
rights and property, plant P8R8
and equipment 4,279 278,316
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32. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued)
(b) Net cash reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net cash and the movements in

32. EEEEMBS @

(b) BFEFREHER

REFEFIFF25I & HENREFER

net cash for each of the periods presented. REFEHEEEDOW -

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

Net cash REFH 2020 2019
EZE20205 BZE2019F

3A31H 3HA31H

LHEE IHEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET AREEF T

(Restated)

(R=E )

Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 17,256,927 17,160,428

Borrowings — repayable within one year &3 —BR—FREER

(including overdraft) (BREEX) (587,085) (1,743,882)
Borrowings — repayable after one year £ —ER—EREE (8,293,566) (7,773,478)
Lease liabilities HEBE (118,912) -
Net cash RE R 8,257,364 7,643,068
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBESEEY 17,256,927 17,160,428
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BIEHEEE — B EF=R (4,893,181) (4,472,485)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BERARE —F AR (4,106,382) (5,044,875)
Net cash REFHE 8,257,364 7,643,068
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32. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 32. BEEEMNRE (B
(b)  Net cash reconciliation (continued) (b) BEFHEEEKRGE
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
HihEE HEEDELNERE
Cash  Borrowings ~ Borrowings
and cash due within due after Lease
equivalents Lyear Lyear liabilities Total
BERHE R-%R R-5#%
S/ HEMER  HENER HEEE @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE  ARBTr ARETR ARETR ARETR
Net cash as at 31 March 2018 R2018F3A3LANREFE
(Restated) (&E51) 12,526,029 (3,802,856)  (3,104,257) - 5,618,916
Cash flows RéRe 4,488,230 2,321,110 (4,438,848) - 2,376,492
Foreign exchange adjustments INERE 146,169 (268,136) (219,670) - (341,637)
Other non-cash movements Hit#BE%28 - - (10,703) - (10,703)
Net cash as at 31 March 2019 R2019F3A3L AR EFE
(Restated) (&575)) 17,160,428  (1,743882)  (7,773478) = 7,643,068
Recognised on adoption of HKFRS 16 RIRAE B RS £ 165
(see Note 2.2) MR (RHE2.2) = = = (105,596) (105,596)
17,160,428 (1,743,882)  (7,773,478) (105,596) 7,537,472
Cash flows Beneg 63,203 1,207,085 (112,215) 56,587 1,214,660
Recognition of right-use-assets ERAFAREE - - - (69,903) (69,903)
Foreign exchange adjustments HERZ 33,296 (50,288) (396,470) - (413,462)
Other non-cash movements HtkRegs - - (11,403) - (11,403)
Net cash as at 31 March 2020 W202063A3LAMBEFE 17,256,927 (587,085)  (8,293,566) (118912) 8,257,364
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COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at 31 March 2020 and 31 March
2019 but not yet incurred is as follows:

33. *iE

(a) EAEE

A2020F3 8318 K%20195F3 A 31
H CEIEBRBENERRIEM
T

31 March 31 March
2020 2019
20205 20194
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Contracted but not accounted for: EENERALR
— Property, plant and equipment — Y - WBRRERE 32,112 17,964

(b) Operating lease commitments
Operating lease commitments — as lessee

The Group leases buildings and warehouses and equipment and
others under lease agreements. From 1 April 2019, the Group has
recognised right-of-use assets for these leases, except for short-
term and low-value leases, see Note 2.2 and Note 10 for further
information.

(b) KEHERE
AL ERNE — BAFAA

AEBERBHEEHEAAEFTURE
ERFREREM - B2019F4818
B AEBCRZSHERAFEAE
BE  HTEEEPREEEES
E— S ERBRME2.2R%MEE10

The operating lease commitments are as follows: REREREWDT :

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

2020 201945

3A31H 3H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREETF T

No later than 1 year 1A 58,115 38,378
Later than 1 year and no later 1255

than 5 years 8,680 59,139

Later than 5 years 5F Lk - 45,139

66,795 142,656
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33. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments (continued) (b)

Operating lease commitments — as lessor

The Group leases out certain office premises, plant and equipment
under operating lease agreements. The leases have various terms
and renewal rights. The future aggregate minimum rental receivables

under these operating leases are as follows:

33. &ik(#

REHERIE A

AAETHERIE — DA

FEERBEEHEHRLAETH]
DNEYE - HBERRE - ZFHER
ETEFHRBENER - RIEZZE
EHE RRKEEKESABEN

T
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
20204 20194
3H31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREEF T
No later than 1 year 1A 1,167 1,286

Later than 1 year and no later 1255

than 5 years 1,840 1,993
Later than 5 years 5F Lk 3,105 3,565
6,112 6,844
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. BBRARS
The ultimate controlling parties of the Group are Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, AEBZREERFBETHEE
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group, and his (FEEZEERITHAR) REXR
families. B o
(@) Transactions with related parties (a) EEEEBFMIRS
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
EZE2020% BZE2019F
3A31H 3A31H
ItEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Sales of goods HEEW
— a minority shareholder of a - REE—-REHBAR
subsidiary of the Group Z2—BDERR 29,925 29,162
Purchases of goods and services BERRERE
— a company which a Director of the —-KREE-BREEHEER
Group has beneficial interest ERz—BAF 5,559 3,416
— a minority shareholder of a —REE—-REHEAR
subsidiary of the Group Z—BLERE = 30
— a subsidiary of Hot-Kid Holdings —Hot-Kid Holdings Limited
Limited which is beneficially (FEBXEERES
owned by the Chairman ZATF) z—EHE AR
of the Group 1,310 1,310
— a company controlled by the —REBEFERETEHIE
Chairman of the Group Z—REAF 13,930 4,719
Total purchases of goods and services B E &R & RIGET 20,799 9,475
Advertising expense EEX
— a company controlled by the —REBFFERETEHIE
Chairman of the Group 2 — AT 33,713 42,589
Rental expenses of buildings EFHESMEX
— companies controlled by the —REBEFERETEHIE
Chairman of the Group /NG 50,405 43,737
Rental income of buildings BFHESWA
— companies jointly controlled by the - REBXFEHEEHRRE
Chairman of the Group 1EHIRE 2 A ) 1,791 1,791
In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the above transactions AAREERE  LARZNRBEEZE
are carried out in the ordinary course of business and in accordance 7% 48 72 R 30 AR 35 48 BE 15 2R 2 IR R
with the terms of the underlying agreements. 1T
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Balances with related parties

34. WBARS E)

(b) EEREEEETT HVAEER

31 March 31 March
2020 2019
2020 201945
3A31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R ARET T
(Restated)
(&E5)
Trade receivables (Note 15) B 5 UK (FIEE15)
— a minority shareholder of a - REE—-REHBAR
subsidiary of the Group Z2—BDERR 15,494 13,039
Other receivables (Note 16) HithFEUX (FEE16)
— subsidiaries of a company which is —-KREEFEERHEEZ
beneficially owned by the ARHHE AT
Chairman of the Group 2,562 2,373
Other non-current liabilities HittIkReaE
— a company jointly controlled by - AEBEFEHEEHLRE
the Chairman of the Group 1EH|RE 2 — B A A 9,884 10,804
Other payables HAES R
— a company jointly controlled by - REBFFEEEHLE
the Chairman of the Group gz —BAE 919 919

The receivables are unsecured, bear no interest and without fixed
repayment terms.

In March 2013, a subsidiary of the Group entered into a building
lease arrangement with Beijing Want-Yang Foods Ltd. (“Beijing Want-
Yang”), a company jointly controlled by the Chairman of the Group,
with a contract amount of RMB25,750,000 and a rental period of 20
years. Beijing Want-Yang prepaid RMB17,470,000 to the Group in
2013. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group recognized
rental income of RMB1,355,000 (During the year ended 31 March
2019: RMB1,355,000) in “other income” in the consolidated financial
statements. The remaining balance of RMB9,884,000 (31 March 2019:
RMB10,804,000) and RMB919,000 (31 March 2019: RMB919,000) is
recognized as “other non-current liabilities” and “other payables” as of
31 March 2020 respectively.
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 34. FMARS (E)
(c) Key management compensation (c) FEEBEAEHE
Key management includes Directors (executive and non-executive) TEEBAEEEEE(PITESEH
and senior management. The compensation paid or payable to key FATEZ)IRSREEAE - @E
management for employee services is shown below: ZEBABXMEREIRBENEH
REMNBMEOT ¢
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
B Z2020%F BZE20195F
3A31H 3A31H
IHFE IHFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREEF T
Fees ik 5,541 5,032
Salaries £ 5,885 5,141
Discretionary bonuses BIIETEAL 88,232 86,424
Other benefits HAtbia R 4,670 4,427
Employer’s contribution to EEHRIKEFE
pension scheme HIEEER 479 430
Total #st 104,807 101,454
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35.

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group acquired an
additional 24% interest of a partially-owned subsidiary for an amount
of RMB11,091,000 and an additional 20% interest of a partially-owned
subsidiary for an amount of RMB4,463,000. During the year ended
31 March 2020, the Group acquired an additional 40% interest of a
partially-owned subsidiary for an amount of RMB2,240,000 with the
effect as follows:

35.

HIFRFNERIRS

REBZE2019F3831BLFE » A&
B LLA F#11,091,000 T 15 — 2B
DHEEME QTN 24%ER - B
RUARYA4,463,000 C S — =B
DB E LA TMNEIN20%ERE - B
HE2020F3831BLEE  X&EE
LLAR#2 240,000 0 S — B350
BEMBRATKEEIIM0%ES - HE
LHIMT :

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

EZE2020% BZ2019F

3A31H 3A31H

LFE EFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBT T

Share of net assets acquired WEFEESRE 2,240 15,554
Consideration paid to non-controlling 2RISR EE

interests (2,240) (15,554)

Excess of consideration paid recognised #£xf RIS RS G4 E
in the transactions with non-controlling

interests reserve within equity

R 5 iR
O (VHEEE
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATION

Acquisition of Poyang County Linwang Forestry Development Co.,
Limited

In June 2019, Want Want (HK) Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a share purchase agreement with San
Want Holdings Limited, pursuant to which, Want Want (HK) Holdings
Limited acquired Poyang County Linwang Forestry Development Co.,
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Poyang Linwang”) from San Want
Holdings Limited at a total consideration of USD7.35 million. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, Poyang Linwang carries on a
business. Before and after the acquisition, Want Want (HK) Holdings
Limited and San Want Holdings Limited were ultimately controlled
by Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, and the control was not temporary. As such,
the acquisition is considered to be a business combination under
common control. According to Hong Kong Accounting Guideline 5
“Merger Accounting for Common Control Combination” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the comparative
financial figures of the consolidated balance sheet, consolidated
statement of changes in equity, consolidated cash flow statement and
related explanatory notes of the Group were restated as if Poyang
Linwang had been combined since the date of establishment in
2008. The comparative financial figures of the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income of
the Group were not restated as the amount was insignificant.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Poyang Linwang
as at the transaction date and the comparative financial figures were as
follows:

36. EHaH

W EBESRS A EEMER B AR QA

MR2019%6 8 » KR AIMNTFRARES
AR B R A B AR AER A
AFTTREKBHRE  REBEZH
E 0 BBHERERA RS
BRE PR A B UK B8 T ERFS A M AE AR SERT
BARLT ([ESMHKET])  AHES
7358 X c ARREERE Bk
MEERE —THERK - WiBATE » B8
REERERATDREEERERA
T RELTIALEHRIES  EH3
FEEREMR - Elt - WEBWRALE
BEHETHEESH - REBEBFEEFTM
AEBEHNEBSTIE3IE5%E—
BEHTEHESHERE]  AEFBEE
BEARBER HEAEZEDR 4
BEREBRN BB TR KE
FHETTEY - HOESHAEE2008
FRIZBBREAANEH - KEH
BEWNBEREGEETHERZRALLE
BRBFZRESBEIERETES -

RX5 BHEREMHEcEERAER
HERLCBFBEHZHIINT -

18 June 31 March
2019 2019
20194 20194
6H18H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
ASSETS BE
Property, plant and equipment Y3 - R NERIB 7,106 7,134
Inventories 7E 4,617 3,701
Trade receivables =y AlEN 678 21
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRIE - &E
receivables R HE MR 2,106 774
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBRESEEY 16,750 26,337
LIABILITIES 8f&
Borrowings =B = 3,000
Accruals and other payables st & AR H BN 361 3,266
Contract liabilities EHEaE = 110
Net Assets FEE 30,896 31,591
Total purchase consideration BB B 51,986
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37. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, CASH FLOW 37. XLFIEEARE  WER He
STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE mMERREHESE
COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company ARAREEEER
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
2020% 20195
3H31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WBREE 52 63
Investments in subsidiaries RBATMNIRE 6,289,717 5,974,231
6,289,769 5,974,294
Current assets REBEE
Due from subsidiaries FEUR BT B8 A BRI RRIE 3,279,016 2,430,318
Prepayments, deposits and other EARIE - ZER
receivables H X 1,329 1,081
Cash and cash equivalents BHERIRESEEY 47,584 1,338
3,327,929 2,432,737
Total assets BREE 9,617,698 8,407,031
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to equity EATERBFEA
holders of the Company EihEzs
Share capital [N 1,866,355 1,871,067
Reserves & (Note(a))
(Hiat(a)) 4,138,810 3,899,980
Total equity R 6,005,165 5,771,047
LIABILITIES =V
Non-current liabilities FERBAE
Due to subsidiaries B A aFIE 322,372 306,374
Borrowings (RS 670,000 -
992,372 306,374
Current liabilities REEE
Due to subsidiaries FEASHY B A BIRYRRIR 2,209,216 1,806,104
Other payables HAnFER 10,094 23,506
Borrowings EEN 400,851 500,000
2,620,161 2,329,610
Total liabilities waeE 3,612,533 2,635,984
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 9,617,698 8,407,031

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of

Directors on 16 June 2020 and was signed on its behalf.

Tsai Wang-Chia
R
Director

EF
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37. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, CASH FLOW 37. TLTREABE KRR R

STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE mMERRFEFEEE#E)
COMPANY (continued)
Income statement of the Company NI EES
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
BZ2020F BZE2019F
3A31H 3A31H
ItEE IFFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBT T
Dividend income BREUWA 3,229,102 1,909,332
Other income HAl A 534 215
Other gains, net HAnle s — H 58 31,015 172
Administrative expenses THEAR (32,436) (23,953)
Operating profit BEF®E 3,228,215 1,885,766
Finance income MEUWA 7,380 25,191
Finance cost A& A (58,860) (20,412)
Finance (cost)/income — net & (RA) KA —F5E (51,480) 4,779
Profit before income tax RRATS B AT R E 3,176,735 1,890,545
Income tax expense FeHER (2,252) -
Profit for the year FEFE 3,174,483 1,890,545
Profit attributable to: PEALFIE
— Equity holders of the Company AYNCIL Ere =2 =N 3,174,483 1,890,545
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37. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, CASH FLOW 37. TLTRBABE  WEE R

STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE REERFHFESD E)
COMPANY (continued)
Cash flow statement of the Company AARRERER
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
BZ2020F BZE2019%F
3H31H 3H31H
LHFE LFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities &EZBHNRESHE
Cash generated from/(used in) BEELE (FAK Note (b)
operations RE Bzt (b) 969 (21,557)
Interest paid 2FE (74,809) -
Interest received 2 UFIE 34,147 585
Income tax paid 213 TSt (2,252) -
Net Cash used in operating activities EETBANTERSE (41,945) (20,972)
Cash flows from investing activities REZHNELSRE
Payments for property, plant and WIZE - BB
equipment B ENE = (67)
Proceeds from loans to W EIME AR
subsidiaries (EEN 499,091 -
Investment in a subsidiary RBARINRE (1,108) -
Loans to subsidiaries ERTHIE AR = (415,964)
Dividends received from subsidiaries 1) ff 8 2% B W R Y AR B 1,854,546 1,298,361
Net Cash generated from investing RETEEE
activities WFRE 2,352,529 882,330
Cash flows from financing activities BEFHNREFRE
Shares repurchased and cancelled Bl AE) &S A e (184,782) (49,189)
Dividends paid to equity holders of AAXTREREEFEA
the Company TRRE (3,100,058) (2,296,618)
Repayment of borrowings BIEER (1,617,451) -
Proceeds from borrowings KT SE] 2,187,026 500,000
Proceeds from borrowings from a M B A RHER S
subsidiaries FIE 416,745 718,915
Net Cash used in financing activities REEBANTRS (2,298,520) (1,126,892)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BE&RREEEWEM
cash equivalents (R2) #8 12,064 (265,534)
Cash and cash equivalents at FONRERES
beginning of year ZEY 1,338 208,263
Exchange gains B 5 Uz 34,182 58,609
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRNEER
of the year REZEY 47,584 1,338
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37. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, CASH FLOW 37. TLTREABE KRR R

STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE REERFHFESD E)
COMPANY (continued)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company MzE(a) AR B EEE
Share Currency Retained
premium  Realignment earnings Total
43 fE EHES REEF #@st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETR AR®BTrR AR%®Txn
As at 1 April 2018 M2018F481H 462,130 (902,688) 4,292,825 3,852,267
Profit for the year FERE - - 1,890,545 1,890,545
Currency translation differences EMELERE - 453,786 - 453,786
Dividends paid THKRE - - (2296618)  (2.296,618)
As at 31 March 2019 M2019F3831H 462,130 (448,902) 3,886,752 3,899,980
As at 1 April 2019 201954818 462,130 (448,902) 3,886,752 3,899,980
Profit for the year FEFHE - = 3,174,483 3,174,483
Shares repurchased and cancelled EBE R 2R - = (180,070) (180,070)
Currency translation differences EMERERE = 344,919 = 344,919
Dividends paid TARE = = (3,100,502)  (3,100,502)
As at 31 March 2020 M2020%F3831H 462,130 (103,983) 3,780,663 4,138,810
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37. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, CASH FLOW

37. FLFREARET - BR2X e

STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE MERRFEFEEE#E)
COMPANY (continued)
Note (b) Cash used in operations MizE(b)&EFTANERS
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
BZ2020%F BZE2019F
3A31H 3A31H
ItEE IHFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBT T
Profit before income tax BR PS8 AT A 3,176,735 1,890,545
Adjustments for: MUTREELHAZE
— Depreciation of property, — W BBR
plant and equipment RIBIHE 11 7
— Interest income —F B A (7,380) (25,191)
— Interest cost —-RMEXH 58,860 20,412
— Dividend income - REWA (3,229,102) (1,909,332)
(876) (23,559)
Changes in working capital: EEETEE
— Increase in prepayments, —JERRIE - BEREAM
deposits and other receivables FEUFRIE hn (248) (117)
— Increase in accruals and other - EAREMENRK
payables N 2,093 2,119
Cash generated from/(used in) EEEL (EM)
operations WiEE 969 (21,557)
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38. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 38. EXFETIRES
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERSNEEAEME
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is set out ARFBESRSREEAEMER
below. PN o
For the year ended 31 March 2020, emoluments paid or payable in BZ2020F3A31AILEE  HAEE
respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the Company Bz ATz AREMSBME (THRB
or its subsidiary undertaking: AARHEMBARAR WT ¢

Estimated Employer's
allowances  contribution

Discretionary  and benefits to benefit
Name of Directors Fees Salary honuses inkind scheme Total
AR EIHEAS
EEps e He BA  freREE  FENMEX ast
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TR  ARBTR  ARBTR  AREBTR  ARETR  ARMT:R

Executive Directors: HTES!
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng BOTAREE 639 1,017 80,000 240 26 81,922
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung BamEE 432 503 505 120 87 1,647
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia BEREZAE 352 205 2,022 420 = 2,999
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BXIEE 388 264 604 213 16 1,485
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen RiEks 418 563 1,260 360 17 2,618
Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui ZELL 209 384 192 212 23 1,020
Ms. Lai Hong Yee RRERL 209 256 123 384 16 988
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun* B 418 = - 1,009 = 1,427
Mr. Maki Haruo IBEXEE 209 = = = = 209
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien Bydis 209 = = = - 209
Independent non-executive BUkHTES:
Directors:
Mr. Toh David Ka Hock SRELE 418 = - = = 418
Dr. Pei Kerwei BRfEET 418 = = = - 418
Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou TRAKE 46 = = = - 46
Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen BRCEE 209 = = = = 209
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming TEALE 209 = = = - 209
Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang BrRLE 128 - - - - 128
4911 3,192 84,706 2,958 185 95,952
* The other benefit for Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun is the consultancy fee. * I REEYIEENEMBERAZERA
Bo
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38. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (continued) 38. EERFIRMS(E)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued) (a) EEBERSNEBEAEME @
For the year ended 31 March 2019, emoluments paid or payable in BZ2019F3A31ALLEE  HAE
respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the Company EZATZENARENSIE (TRA
or its subsidiary undertaking: AR EMEAREAR AT ¢

Estimated Employer's
allowances  contribution

Discretionary  and benefits to benefit

Name of Directors Fees Salary honuses inkind scheme Total
EftERE  EIHBRHKE

EEps e e WA  fMFeREE  FEOMR @it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AR®TR  ARETR  ARETR  AR®TR  ARETR

Executive Directors; HTES:
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng EiREL 326 985 79,052 240 2 80,628
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia ERRELE 296 201 1403 421 - 2,321
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BXIEE 330 250 455 193 - 1228
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen RiExks 404 549 1115 360 16 2,444
Mr. Chan Yu-Feng EBERE 97 79 - 92 5 273
Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui ZHELL 135 248 183 134 15 715
Ms. Lai Hong Yee REERL 135 225 116 187 10 673
Non-executive Directors: FHTEE
Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun* B 404 - - 1,016 - 1420
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung BT 3N - 1,232 126 86 1815
Mr. Maki Haruo IBEXREE 157 - - - - 157
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien ByEis 157 - - - - 157
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
Directors:
Mr. Toh David Ka Hock SRELE 404 - - - - 404
Dr. Pei Kerwei ARt 404 - - - - 404
Mr. Chien Wen-Guey X REEE 43 - - - - 43
Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou TRAKE 190 - - - - 190
Dr. Kao Ruey-Bin BEWEL 64 - - - - 64
Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen BRCEE 166 - - - - 166
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming TEREE 166 - - - - 166
4,249 2,537 83,556 2,769 157 93,268
* The other benefit for Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun is the consultancy fee. * T REEYISENEMERAZER
Bo
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38. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement and termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits
or termination benefits during the year ended 31 March 2020.

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for making available
directors’ services

The Group did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services during the year ended 31 March 2020.

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour
of directors, bodies corporate controlled by or entities connected
with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings were made available
in favour of directors, bodies corporate controlled by or entities
connected with directors subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 March 2020.

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of 31 March 2020 or at any time during
the year ended 31 March 2020, except those disclosed in Note 36.

38. EEmETIREREE)

(b) EBRARLRLEF

EENEE2020F3831BILEET
U EN S A% & W EUE AR R A S 48
LERER o

(c) PMRERHEZREMEAE=FIE
HEVEHE

REENEE202053A831BLEEE
WERRHESREREME=ZFX
JHE

d) MEE ZZEEBEHNE
ABEERZESHEBEEEIR
HNER EERREMBRI S
HER

NERFNEE2020F38318LLE
EEAEE TEDES - SZE5E
EEHNEABERZESNEE T
RIEHNER EERRHMRS -

() BEBEXRS  ZHAESRANE
K

72020F3831BEE E£2020%F3
A31B It FEEMEGRE - AQa I
BRSPS RAEE 2 EBEMAQT]
ZEZTHERBETETEEERE
BZEERS - TYRER 0 MHEHEE
GWEMZ BRI ©
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. XEMELT

2020538318 » NEBNEEM

The following sets out the details of the principal subsidiaries of the

Group as at 31 March 2020.

Country/place

BARFBHIWT -

Issued and paid up Effective interests

of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
gE /it BRIRAR rEBRE
NEER ARIER/ HE B/ ERER WERERY  TEER
Directly owned
ERER
Want Want Holdings Ltd. Singapore US$212,331,000 99.99 Investment Holding
REERERARE s 212,331,000% 7 REZR
Long Wave Foods Limited HKSAR HK$100 100 Trading of food and beverages
RARRERAR BBRE 10087 RERHHES
Want-Want Foods Limited HKSAR HK$2 100 Trading of food and beverages
RERMAERAT BBRE 28T RERHHES
Leisure Foods Limited HKSAR HK$1 100 Trading of food and beverages
HRRRERAR BBRE 187 RERHHES
Like Snacks Trading Limited HKSAR HK$1 100 Trading of food and beverages
BYIRMESERAT BBRE 187 RERHHES
Want Want (HK) Holdings Limited HKSAR US$10,000,000 100 Investment holding
ERRRERERAR BBRE 10,000,000% 7 REER
Big Want (HK) Holdings Limited HKSAR US$1 100 Investment holding
ERARERERAR BBRE (EV REER
Want Want China Finance Limited BVI US$50,000 100 Investment holding
EBRLES 50,000% 7 REER
Want Want Indonesia Holdings Pte Limited HKSAR US$500,000 100 Investment holding
BEKE 500,000% 7 REZR
Indirectly owned
HEEs
Anhui Kuang-Want food Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB22,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
ZHERRREEERAT EIER AR#22,000,0007 and related activities
RERSHES U REEERED
Anji Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,400,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ZERERBARAT FEER 1,400,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERDHRRARE
Anging Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$7,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ZEAERRERAT FEER 7,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDHRRARE
Anging Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$100,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ZEREREERAT FEER 100,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDHRRARE
Anyang Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$8,930,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ZHEIERBERAT FEER 8,930,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDHRRARE
Bao-Want Technology Packaging Taiwan region NTD9,000,000 60 Sales of chemical materials
Materials Co., Ltd. REHE 9,000,000%7 &% and plastic films/bags

BENFENRHERAT
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. TEMBLT @)

Country/place

Issued and paid up Effective interests

of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /iR BEIRHRZ rEERE

RRER RIER/HE R /g WERERY  TEER

Indirectly owned (continued)

BEHE (&)

Baotou Salagi Ming Want Dairy Co., Ltd. Chinese mainland US$10,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

BEENEREAEERAT HEIER 10,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA

Beijing Be-Want Foods Ltd.# Chinese mainland US$9,350,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

TRV ERERAF HEIRR 9,350,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA

Beijing Big-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$13,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

FTRARERERAF HEIRR 13,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA

Beijing Cheng-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,440,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

TRRERRERAT HEIRR 1,440,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA

Beijing Dairy-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$25,100,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

FTRARRRERAT HERR 25,100,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA

Beijing Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,400,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

TRIRRRERAT HEIRR 1,400,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA

Beijing Lion-Want Packing Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$2,100,000 100 Manufacturing of packing

TRREEEBRAT HENER 2,100,000% 7 materials
HEaLR

Beijing Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

TREERRERAT HEIRR 6,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA

Changchun Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB150,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

RERHRRERAF HEIRR AR¥150,000,0007 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA

Changsha Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$19,320,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

ROBHRRERAT HEIRR 19,320,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARH

Chengdu Ming-Want Dairy Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$35,700,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

KRR AERRAF HEIRA 35,700,000% 7t of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA

Chengdu Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$9,800,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

KARRRRERAR HEIRA 9,800,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA

Chongging Xi-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB1,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages

EFERHERRAT HEIRA AR#1,000,0007 and related activities
RmREBEZURBBERED

First Family Enterprise Co., Ltd. Taiwan region NTD66,500,000 100 Trading of snack Food

HREHZRNERAR REHE 66,500,000%7 & # RARRES
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Country/place

39. FEMBLT @

Issued and paid up Effective interests

of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /iR BEIRHRZ rEERE
ARER RIER/HE R /REs WERERY  TEE
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (&)
Guangdong Si-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB10,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
ERERAHEERAR FERR AR#10,000,0007 and related activities
RmREBEZURBBERED
Guangdong Ming-Want Dairy Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB50,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ERARAFERAR FERR AR#50,000,0007 of food and beverages
HERDERRARA
Guangxi Ling-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB3,500,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
ERERHEARAR HEIRR ARH3,500,0007 and related activities
RmREBEZUREBERED
Guangxi Ming-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$25,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ERHARRRERAF HEIRR 25,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Guangxi Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$11,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ERRRRRERAR HERR 11,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDERAARA
Guangzhou Be-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$4,850,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENSERRERAR HEISR 4,850,000% ¢ of food and beverages
HERDBRRARA
Guangzhou Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$10,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENAERRERAR HERR 10,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangzhou Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENCRERRERAR FEIRR 6,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERRARA
Guangzhou Ming-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese mainland US$15,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENARALEERAR FEIRR 15,000,000 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangzhou Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$9,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENERRRERAR FERR 9,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangzhou Xiang-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$14,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENFRERRERAR FEIRR 14,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangzhou Yong-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$7,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENKERRERAR HEIRR 7,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERRARA
Hangzhou Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$11,250,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
RNARRRERAR HEIRR 11,250,000% 7T of food and beverages
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Country/place
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39. XEMBLT#E)

Issued and paid up Effective interests

of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /iR BEIRHRZ rEERE

RRER RIER/HE R /g WERERY  TEER

Indirectly owned (continued)

BEHE (&)

Hangzhou Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$4,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

AN RRERAR HEIRR 4.500,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA

Hangzhou Mei-Want Machinery Ltd. Chinese mainland US$600,000 100 Manufacturing and sales of

MNEREHREERAT HENER 600,000% 7T machineries and related services
HEREERHREBRE

Hangzhou Sun-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$12,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

MBERRERAR HEIRR 12,000,000% 7 of food, wine and beverages
HERSHRM  BERSA

Hangzhou Tiane Foods Chemical Co., Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,050,000 100 Manufacturing of dehydrating, deoxidating,

mNaEIBRAT HEIRR 1,050,000% preservative and related products
RER R REM  HREREBER

Hangzhou Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland 1S$9,800,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

ANERRRERAF HEIRR 9,800,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA

Harbin Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$5,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

RREEEERRERAT HEIRR 5,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA

Hubei Yuan-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB4,500,000 100 Trading of food and beverages

HtEREEERAT HERR AR#4,500,0007 and related activities
RmREBEZUREBERED

Hefei Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

AREERFERAT HEIRA 6,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA

Heilongjiang Yuan-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB3,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages

ZEIGHEEERAR HEIRR AR#3,000,0007 and related activities
EmREBEZUREBERED

Henan Ping-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB3,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages

RTREEERA R HEIRR AR#3,000,0007 and related activities
EmREBEZUREBERED

Henan Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,750,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

MEEERRERAR HEIRR 1,750,000% of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA

Houma Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$4,700,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

GERRRRERAR HEIRR 4.700,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA

Huaian Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$102,100,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

EZRRRRERA R HEIRR 102,100,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA

Hubei Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$4,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution

M IRERERAT HEIRR 4.500,000% 7 of food and beverages

HERDHRANRA
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Country/place

39. FEMBLT @

Issued and paid up Effective interests

of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /iR BEIRHRZ rEERE
ARER RIER/HE R /REs WERERY  TEE
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (&)
Hubei Ming-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$10,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ALPERRERAR HEIRR 10,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Hunan Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$57,400,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
HEARRRERAT HERR 57,400,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDERAARA
Hunan Jet-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese mainland US$5,500,000 100 Manufacturing of packing bags
HEERERENEEERAT HEIER 5,500,000% 7 and carton boxes
REALERRER
Hunan Tai-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB2,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
HERREEERAF FEIRR AR#2,000,0007 and related activities
RmREBEZURBBERED
Hunan Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$15,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
HEEERRERAT FEIRR 15,000,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERDERRARA
| Lan Foods Industrial Co., Ltd. Taiwan region NTD10,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
HERRIERGERAT FEHE 10,000,00051 4% of food and beverages
HERDERRARA
Island Port Corporation BVI US$25,000,000 100 Investment holding
RERZEE 25,000,000% 7 REZR
Jiangsu Rongwang Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB10,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
IHERREERAF HERR AR#10,000,0007 and related activities
RRRANESUREEESEED
Jiangxi Be-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$12,600,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
IEAVERRERAT HERR 12,600,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Jiangxi Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$11,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
IARRRRERAF HERR 11,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Jiangxi Wen-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB2,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
IANHEEERAF FEIRR AR#2,000,0007 and related activities
RmREBEZURBBERED
Jiaxing Mei-Want Machinery Ltd. Chinese mainland US$12,500,000 100 Manufacturing and sales of
RAEEARNAEERAT HEIER 12,500,000% 7 machineries and related services
HEREERHRNBRE
Jiaxing Feng Want Precision Equipment Chinese mainland RMB5,600,000 100 Manufacturing and sales of
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.# HEIER AR#5,600,0007 machineries and related services
REERRERBERERRAR HEREERHRBBRE
Leading Guide Corporation BVI US$40,000,000 100 Trading of raw materials, machineries
RBELRE 40,000,000% 7 and efc.
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. TEMBLT @)

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests

of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /iR BEIRHRZ rEERE
RRER RIER/HE R /g WERERY  TEER
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (&)
Leading Guide Hong Kong Limited HKSAR US$50,000 100 Trading Company
BERE 50,000% I
Lianyungang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$8,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BEZEMARRERAR HERR 8,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Liaoning Tai-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB5,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
BEAZHEEERAT HEIER AR#5,000,0007T and related activities
RmRYBEZUREBERED
Longchang Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$12,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BEUHRRERAT HEIRR 12,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Longchang Ming-Want Dairy Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB50,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ERRAERRAR HEIRR ARE#50,000,0007C of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Longchang Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,750,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BERERRERAT HEIRR 1,750,000% of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Longchang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$700,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
EERHRRERAT HEIRR 700,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Longchang Xiang Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$4,100,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BEHARRERAT HEIRA 4,100,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Luohe Big-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB100,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BUARRRERA R HEIRR AR¥100,000,0007 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Luohe Ru-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB50,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BUARRRERA R HERR AE#50,000,0007C of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Luohe Want-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$7,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BURRRRERAR HEIRR 7,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Media Sense INC. BVI US$25,000,000 100 Investment holding
RERZEE 25,000,000% 7 REER
Ming Want Worldwide Limited BVI US$250,000 100 Investment holding
RERZEE 250,000% 7 REER
Nanjing Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$111,850,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BRARRRERAR HEIRA 111,850,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Nanjing Cubic-Want Plastic Ltd. Chinese mainland US$2,500,000 100 Production of packaging materials
ERmEEENRERAT HEIER 2,500,000% 7t and cans

LEBRMHRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. TEMBLT @)

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests

of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /iR BEIRHRZ rEERE
ARER RIER/HE R /REs WERERY  TEE
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (&)
Nanjing Fore-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,300,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BRERRRERAR FERR 6,300,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Nanjing Jet-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese mainland US$17,000,000 100 Manufacturing of packing bags
HREMENERAT HEIER 17,000,000% 7 and carton boxes
REALERRER
Nanjing Lion-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese mainland US$3,700,000 100 Manufacturing of packing
ERREELERAT HEIER 3,700,000£ 7 materials
HEaSR
Nanjing Minghong Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$15,000,000 75 Manufacturing and distribution
BREAARRERLT HEIER 15,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Nanjing Be-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$3,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BRLERRERAR HEIRR 3,500,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Nanjing Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$2,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BREERRARAR HEIRR 2,500,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Nanjing Sen-Want Dairy Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB1,200,000,000 80 Manufacturing and distribution
BRRREALERRAF FESEA AR1,200,000,0007 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Nanjing Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$6,400,000 91 Manufacturing and distribution
BRERRRERAF HEIRR 6,400,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Ningxia Ming-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese mainland US$12,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ESRHAEERLT HEIER 12,000,000% of food and beverages
RERDERAARA
Poyang County Linwang Forestry Chinese mainland US$18,350,000 100 Agricultural Planting and Management
Development Co., Ltd. HEIER 18,350,000 7t and Livestock and Poultry Breeding
BESEREMERRERAR EEEERERNRBEER
Qihe Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$35,130,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ETRERRERAR HERR 35,130,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Quanzhou Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$15,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
FNURRRERAR HEIRR 15,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDERAARA
Quanzhou Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$10,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
SNEERRERAR HEIRR 10,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Shanxi Want Want Trading Ltd. Chinese mainland US$350,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
REREEEERAR HENER 350,000% 7t and related activities
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Country/place

e M RRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. XEMBLT#E)

Issued and paid up Effective interests

of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /iR BEIRHRZ rEERE
RRER RIER/HE R /g WERERY  TEER
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (&)
Shandong Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$4,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
LRAERRERAT HEIRR 4.500,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Shandong Jet-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese mainland US$5,000,000 100 Manufacturing and sales of packaging
IRERGEMBERAT HENER 5,000,000% 7 materials and carton boxes
HEREERMHRER
Shandong Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$62,350,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
LRAERRERAT HERR 62,350,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Shandong Yuan-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB3,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
LREHRERRAT HEIRR AR#3,000,0007 and related activities
EmRYBEZUREBERED
Shanggao Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,800,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
IRRERRERAT HERR 1,800,000% of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Shanggao Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$5,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
TERERRERAR HEIER 5,000,000£ 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Shanghai Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$15,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
TBURERERLT HEIER 15,000,000% T of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Shanghai Ruwang Electronic Commerce Chinese mainland RMB140,000,000 100 Provision of consultancy services
Co., Ltd. HEIRR AR¥140,000,0007 and information
LEMEEFERERAR RAEEEARBRER
Shanghai Fuwang Culture Communication Chinese mainland RMB5,000,000 100 Provision of consultancy services
Co., Ltd. HEIER AR#5,000,0007T and information
PERE L BRERAR REZHARBERER
Shanghai Want Want Foods Group Co., Ltd. ~ Chinese mainland US$30,350,000 100 Provision of consultancy services
TERHEREEERAF HEER 30,350,000£ 7 and information
REEARBRER
Shanghai Hao-Want Network Technology Chinese mainland RMB10,000,000 100 Engaged in network technology
Co., Ltd. HEIER AE#10,000,0007 services, consulting, etc.
LR RENEERAR e RRRIMERS - 2%
Shanghai Want-Want Network Technology Chinese mainland RMB10,800,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
Co., Ltd. HEIER AE#10,800,0007 and related activities online
LERRRENEERAR EmREBEZURRBRSEHED
Shanghai Want Want Trading Ltd. Chinese mainland US$4,500,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
HEREHERRAT HENER 4,500,000%7 and related activities

RRRRNER I RREERED
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. XEMEBLAT A

Country/place

Issued and paid up Effective interests

of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /iR BEIRHRZ rEERE
ARER RIER/HE R /REs WERERY  TEE
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (&)
Shenyang Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$9,950,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
EHRAERRERAT FERR 9,950,000% 7T of food, wine and beverages
RERDHRM  BERHA
Shenyang Rice-Want Cereals & Qils Ltd. Chinese mainland US$9,600,000 100 Processing and sales of rice and
ERETEERERAT FEER 9,600,000% 7 oil products
KRHERMIRHEE
Shenyang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$10,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
EHREERRERAT HERR 10,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Shenyang Yan-Want Rice Flour Manufacturing - Chinese mainland US$3,300,000 100 Rice Flour Manufacturing
Co., Ltd.* HEIER 3,300,000% 7T HERR
BERETRRREERAR
Shijiazhuang Ming-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese mainland US$22,750,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
REHARAEERAR HERR 22,750,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDERAARA
Shuangcheng Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$3,620,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
RREEHREERRERAT PEER 3,620,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Tongchuan Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$15,600,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
)R RRERAR HEIRR 15,600,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERDBRAARA
Tongchuan Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,750,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
1) EERRERAR FEIRR 6,750,000% of food and beverages
HERDERRARA
Want Want Corporation (Thailand) Thailand THP10,000,000 100 Trading Company
%E 10,000,000%8k I
Want Want Philippines Holdings Pte Limited Singapore US$250,000 100 Investment company
g 250,000% 7 REQR
Want Want Thailand Holdings Pte Limited Singapore US$400,000 100 Investment Holding
REZEUAERERAR g 400,000% 7 REZR
Want Want Vietham Company Limited Vietnam US$17,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
HREEERAT Him 17,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Want Want Vietnam Holdings Pte Limited Singapore US$19,030,000 9 Investment Holding
REEEIAERERAR g 19,030,000% REZR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. TEMBLT @)

Country/place

Issued and paid up Effective interests

of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /iR BEIRHRZ rEERE
RRER RIER/HE R /g WERERY  TEER
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (&)
Want Want Vietnam Trading Co., Ltd. Vietnam VND200,000,000 100 Trading Company
e 200,000,000#i%/E I
Want Want Food Pte Ltd. Singapore SGD100,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
REREHABRAF Eiipied 100,005 AN3% 7T BRREBES
Want Want Four Seas Company Limited HKSAR HK$2,000,000 70 Distributing of food and beverages
HEHERA R BFEEE 2,000,000 7 and related activities
PHRRRABAREEESEED
Want Want Japan Co., Ltd. Japan JPY100,000,000 60 Import, export and distribution
A B Ak &4t AR 100,000,000 of food and beverages and
related services
RmREBEL O R EARMERS
Weifang Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$3,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
S EERRERAR HEIRR 3,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Wingate Overseas Holdings Ltd. BVI US$50,000 100 Investment holding
RERZEE 50,000% 7 REER
Wellstand Enterprises Limited BVI US$1 100 Trading of raw materials,
RBELRE 1£5n machineries and efc.
FHH - BHZES
Wellstand Singapore Pte Limited Singapore US$50,000 100 Investment Holding
g 50,000% 7 REER
Xiantao Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$5,100,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
LERRRERAR HERR 5,100,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Xining Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
AERRRRERAR HEIRR 6,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMANRA
Xinjiang Ru-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,100,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
FRARRRERAR HFEIRR 6,100,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Xinjiang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$7,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
FERRRRERAR HEIRR 7,500,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Xuzhou Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$11,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
HBHARRRERAR HEIRR 11,500,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Zhejiang Ming-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese mainland US$79,100,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
HLARAEERAR HEIRR 79,100,000% 7t of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Zhejiang Ru-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$24,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
IARRRERAR HEIRR 24,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. FEMEBLAR#E)
Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /it ERTRAR rEERE
ARER RIBR/HE RE/EHER WEREZY  FDER
Indirectly owned (continued)
BiRES (@
Zhejiang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland RMB100,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
IR RRERAR FERR AE#100,000,0007 of food and beverages
HERAERRARR
Zhejiang Yuan-Want Trading Co. Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB10,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages and related
LGB EARA R HENER AE®10,000,0007 activites
BRREBESURERERED
Zhong Want Holdings Limited HKSAR HK$1,000 100 Investment Holding
FRERERAR BERE 1,000 7T REER
Notes: B -
# represents sino-foreign equity/cooperative joint venture. # REPHNEE EERE-
* represents enterprise wholly-owned by a Chinese mainland legal entity. * RERPBEBEREABELE -
The remaining enterprises incorporated in the Chinese mainland are HBEHREERTMNEEIBING
all foreign-invested enterprises. RERE -
All the enterprises incorporated in the Chinese mainland are limited FIERTBERRTFMNEEIAER
liability companies. SEAT
HKSAR denotes Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. ERBREEBEITHE -
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